

Solvency and Financial Condition Report (SFCR)

Solvency II group of Wüstenrot & Württembergische AG



W&W AG Solvency II group

Table of contents

Summary	3
A Business and business results	6
A.1 Business	6
A.2 Underwriting performance	13
A.3 Investment performance	15
A.4 Change in other results	17
A.5 Other information	18
B System of governance	19
B.1 General information about the system of governance	19
B.2 Fit and proper requirements	29
B.3 Risk management system, including own-risk and solvency assessment	32
B.4 Internal control system	40
B.5 Internal audit function	42
B.6 Actuarial function	43
B.7 Outsourcing	43
B.8 Other information	45
C Risk profile	46
C.1 Underwriting risk	48
C.2 Market price risk	51
C.3 Counterparty credit risk	56
C.4 Liquidity risk	58
C.5 Operational risk	59
C.6 Other material risks	62

C.7 Other information	64
D Valuation for solvency purposes	65
D.1 Assets	68
D.2 Technical provisions	78
D.3 Miscellaneous liabilities	83
D.4 Alternative valuation methods	84
D.5 Other information	84
E. Capital management	85
E.1 Own funds	85
E.2 Solvency Capital Requirement and Minimum Capital Requirement	91
E.3 Use of the duration-based equity risk sub-module for calculating the Solvency Capital	Requirement 93
E.4 Differences between the standard formula and any internal models used	93
E.5 Non-compliance with the Minimum Capital Requirement and non-compliance with the Requirement	Solvency Capital
E.6 Other information	93
Annex	95

W&W AG Solvency II group

Summary

The insurance group of Wüstenrot & Württembergische AG is covered by the scope of Solvency II. Pursuant to legal requirements, the Solvency II group prepares and publishes a Solvency and Financial Condition Report each year. This report is intended to increase the transparency about the economic condition of the Solvency II group and provide insight into the insurance group's net assets and solvency condition.

The W&W Group came into existence in 1999 as a result of the merger of the two long-standing companies Wüstenrot and Württembergische. The Group consists of the Housing, Insurance and brandpool divisions and offers 6.5 million customers financial planning solutions that meet their needs. In doing so, the W&W Group focuses on omni-channel sales, ranging from its own mobile sales force to cooperation partners and sales agents, broker activities and digital initiatives.

In 2020 the W&W Group generated a consolidated net profit of €210,751 thousand (previous year: €249,059 thousand).

The business model of the W&W Group proved to be stable, including during the coronavirus pandemic. In the 2020 reporting year, the basic business and economic conditions of the W&W Group were adversely influenced by the pandemic dissemination of the coronavirus. The crisis team of the W&W Group initiated a variety of measures early on in order to stem the spread in the W&W Group and curb the impact of the pandemic on business operations. In the process, our availability to customers, as well as our ability of employees to work, was assured at all times. The financial statements of the W&W Group are affected by the impact of the coronavirus pandemic to varying degrees of intensity, particularly in customer lending business, in the area of investments and real estate, and in insurance business.

In addition to ancillary services undertakings, entities from other financial sectors and other entities, the Solvency II group consists of the following insurance undertakings:

- Wüstenrot & Württembergische AG (W&W AG),
- Württembergische Versicherung AG,
- · Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG,
- Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG.

W&W AG, headquartered in Stuttgart, Germany, is the strategic management holding company of the W&W Group. W&W AG is a publicly traded company.

Key function holders are subject to certain fit and proper requirements. The Solvency II group has the following four key functions:

- Independent risk controlling function
- Compliance function
- Internal audit
- Actuarial function

The independent risk controlling function is integrated in the decision-making process in organisational terms through inclusion in the executive structure and in operational terms through the operational execution of the risk management system, risk reporting, and the implementation and enhancement of the risk management system. The compliance function in the W&W Group has a tripartite organisation: the Executive Board, the central compliance unit and decentralised compliance units. The internal audit function for W&W AG is handled by the Group Audit department. It also acts as service provider for the audit function for all important domestic subsidiaries. The responsible holder of the actuarial function is head of the Actuarial Function section and is supported in her tasks by other holders of actuarial functions at the individual companies and the employees who report to them.

The risk profile consists of the risk areas market price risks, underwriting risks, counterparty credit risks, operational risks and business risks. Having the largest share of risk capital requirements are market price risks at 51.6%, underwriting risks at 19.6% and counterparty credit risks at 18.1%. Accordingly, the prudent person principle has high importance for the Solvency II group. Investments are made only in assets and instruments whose risks can be properly identified, measured, monitored, managed, controlled and reported, and can be properly taken into account in assessing their overall solvency needs. As part of strategic asset allocation (SAA), the individual investment objectives of the companies in the Insurance division and of W&W AG are set at least once a year, taking into account the nature of the insurance business conducted and the corporate structure for the following year.

The solvency overview forms the basis for the further calculation of own funds. The following compares the summary solvency overview for the Solvency II group (on the basis of Solvency II rules) with the corresponding figures from the IFRS consolidated balance sheet:

Summary solvency overview				
	Solvency II	IFRS (carrying amount)		
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020		
Total assets	45,687,224	76,472,481		
Total liabilities	37,826,024	71,386,218		
Excess of assets over liabilities	7,861,200	5,086,263		

The differences between Solvency II and IFRS are particularly a result of the fact that the Solvency II scope of consolidation and the consolidation methods to be applied under Solvency II deviate from the corresponding IFRS rules. Various undertakings (particularly Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG and Allgemeine Rentenanstalt Pensionskasse AG) and funds are fully consolidated in the IFRS consolidated financial statements but not in Solvency II.

Additional differences in valuation between Solvency II and IFRS can be found, in particular, in the following cases:

- · Under Solvency II, assets are accounted for at market values. Under IFRS, they are in some cases recognised at amortised cost.
- Under Solvency II, technical provisions are calculated with the aid of cash flows from premiums and for benefits, using a risk-free yield curve. In the area of life insurance, the expected profit participation is included, particularly for future years. Under IFRS and the German Commercial Code (HGB), technical provisions are determined as at a cutoff date.

The Solvency II group calculates the Solvency Capital Requirement using the Solvency II standard formula. It does not use an internal model or partial internal model. In calculating the technical provisions for the Solvency II group, Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG uses the volatility adjustment pursuant to Section 82 of the German Act on the Supervision of Insurance Undertakings (VAG) and the transitional arrangement on provisions in Section 352 VAG. During the reporting period, the Solvency II group satisfied both the Minimum Capital Requirement and the Solvency Capital Requirement.

The following table provides a summary presentation as at 31 December 2020 of eligible own funds, the Solvency Capital Requirement, and the solvency ratios, with and without taking into consideration the volatility adjustment and the transitional arrangement on provisions, pursuant to the Solvency II rules:

Solvency ratios				
in € thousands	Solvency II 31.12.2020	excluding consideration of the volatility adjustment 31.12.2020	excluding consideration of the transitional arrangement on provisions 31.12.2020	excluding consideration of the transitional arrangement on provisions and excluding consideration of the volatility adjustment
Eligible own funds	6,841,710	6,932,045	5,398,818	5,496,034
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR)	2,938,371	3,109,878	2,919,434	3,088,428
Solvency ratio (%)	232.8	222.9	184.9	178.0

Depending on how things develop, the coronavirus pandemic may result in an income decline and a deterioration in net assets, financial condition and risk position, especially if the coronavirus pandemic should persist in 2021. Under these circumstances, the solvency condition may also decline. Specific adverse effects on own funds and the Solvency Capital Requirement are not foreseeable at this time.

Following the solid first quarter, the W&W Group is confident of posting consolidated net profit for 2021 as a whole in the upper end of the strategic target corridor of €220 to 250 million, which has long been the objective. Because of the continued uncertainties about the further course of the coronavirus pandemic, a more specific forecast is not possible at this time.

The Executive Board of W&W AG approved this Report and its public disclosure on 12 May 2021.

W&W AG Solvency II group

A Business and business results

A.1 Business

Overview

The Wüstenrot & Württembergische Group (W&W Group) came into existence in 1999 as a result of the merger of the two long-standing companies Wüstenrot and Württembergische. The Group consists of the Housing, Insurance and brandpool divisions and offers approximately 6.5 million customers financial planning solutions that meet their needs. In doing so, the W&W Group focuses on omni-channel sales, ranging from its own mobile sales force to cooperation partners and sales agents, broker activities and digital initiatives.

W&W AG, headquartered in Stuttgart, Germany, is the strategic management holding company of the Group. It coordinates all activities, sets standards and manages capital. As an individual entity, its operations are almost exclusively restricted to reinsuring the insurance policies written by the Group. It also renders services for the Group as a whole in various areas. W&W AG is a publicly traded company. Since 21 December 2020, the stock of W&W AG has no longer been listed on the SDAX index of the Frankfurt stock exchange. Compared with more volatile securities, W&W stock has a low trading volume in free float, which is a key criterion for membership on the SDAX.



In the Housing division, the focus is on the home loan savings business of Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG, along with the construction financing that it offers. Other areas include the property development business of Wüstenrot Haus- und Städtebau GmbH and real estate brokerage by Wüstenrot Immobilien GmbH.

In the Insurance division, the W&W Group offers a wide range of life and health insurance products as well as property/casualty insurance products. The key companies in this division are Württembergische Versicherung AG, Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG and Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG.

The brandpool division oversees the digital brand Adam Riese and the digital activities of the W&W Group. It is also dedicated to financial planning and invests in other digital business models in the areas of housing, finance, health, family, education and mobility. The aim is to develop an ecosystem of independent, decentralised brands.

The W&W Group operates almost exclusively in Germany and is represented there by two key offices in Stuttgart and Ludwigsburg/Kornwestheim.

The W&W AG shareholder structure remained stable over the course of the year. Our key shareholder is the non-profit Wüstenrot Foundation. It maintains an indirect participation of 66.31% through two holding companies. Of this, 26.40% is held by WS Holding AG, Stuttgart and 39.91% by Wüstenrot Holding AG, Ludwigsburg. The other major shareholder of W&W AG is FS W&W Holding GmbH, Munich (renamed in 2020; previously: Horus Finanzholding GmbH), with more than 10% of the shares. Approximately 9.2% (previous year: 11.0%) of all shares issued by W&W AG are held by foreign shareholders.

The following presents information about the supervisory authority and the statutory auditor of the Solvency II group:

Fundamentals	
Solvency II group	Solvency II group of Wüstenrot & Württembergische AG
Ultimate parent undertaking	Wüstenrot & Württembergische AG
Supervisory authority	Address of the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin): Graurheindorfer Str. 108 53117 Bonn alternatively: Postfach 1253 53002 Bonn
	Contact details for the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin): Tel: 0228/4108-0 Fax: 0228/4108-1550 Email: poststelle@bafin.de or DE-Mail: poststelle@bafin.de-mail.de
Statutory auditor	Ernst & Young GmbH Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft Flughafenstraße 61 70629 Stuttgart

Significant business and other events

Overview of significant business events

The change of ownership of Aachener Bausparkasse AG (ABAG) to Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG took place on 1 January 2020 following successful conclusion of the ownership control procedures that were conducted by the authorities in November 2019. The purchase strengthens Wüstenrot Bausparkasse, Germany's most venerable home loan and savings bank, on its path to increased growth.

Effective 1 April 2020, Wüstenrot & Württembergische AG sold its Czech subsidiaries Wüstenrot stavební spořitelna a.s. and Wüstenrot hypoteční banka a.s. to MONETA Money Bank.

Effective 1 September 2020, Alexander Mayer, member of the Executive Board of Württembergische Versicherung AG and Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG and managing director of W&W Asset Management GmbH, was appointed to the Executive Board of W&W AG as Chief Financial Officer. He took the place of Dr Michael Gutjahr, who retired effective 1 September 2020 after 32 years with the W&W Group and its predecessor companies, including 21 years as member of the Executive Board.

By building the new campus at the Ludwigsburg/Kornwestheim location, W&W AG as owner is investing in the future of the corporate group. Employees moved into the first section of the building on schedule in late 2017, and work on the second section commenced in 2018. The entire project, located on an approximately six-hectare site, is scheduled to be completed by 2023. In all, the W&W campus will then have seven interconnected office buildings with some 4,000 modern work stations for Wüstenrot and Württembergische employees.

"W&W Besser!"

The W&W Group continues to strive for a high degree of stability and sustainable growth of its enterprise value. To achieve this, it is positioning itself as a company that makes it possible to obtain financial planning from a single source. It aims to make this vision a reality in light of increasing competition, notwithstanding the uncertain recovery of the German economy, as well as due to the persistent phase of low interest rates and growing regulatory requirements.

"W&W Besser!" is not considered a rigid programme. Rather, it is an attitude that it intended to guide all actions of employees. With "W&W Besser!", the W&W Group succeeded in continuing to grow, despite the coronavirus pandemic, the persistent phase of zero and negative interest rates, and increasing regulatory requirements.

"W&W Besser!" made it possible to post further implementation achievements in 2020. The merger of Aachener Bausparkasse AG into Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG, retroactive to 1 January 2020, made it possible to stay on track for continued growth and expand partnership business. As a result, an even broader group of customers is being reached. Württembergische Versicherung AG achieved double market growth in all profitable segments. The focus on SME partners - and associated with this, the expansion of underwriting capacities in corporate customer business - paid off. In charting the course into the digital future, digital business models in the brandpool division are tapping into new customer groups and market segments. More than 164,000 customers are relying on the digital brand Adam Riese.

The "W&W Besser!" initiative will be continued in 2021 in order to rigorously ensure that products, services and processes remain aligned with customer benefits throughout the entire W&W Group.

Coronavirus pandemic

The business model of the W&W Group proved to be stable, including during the coronavirus pandemic. Its impact on the W&W Group will be depicted in the following.

In the 2020 reporting year, the basic business and economic conditions of the W&W Group were adversely influenced by the pandemic dissemination of the coronavirus. The crisis team of the W&W Group initiated a variety of measures early on in order to stem the spread in the W&W Group and curb the impact of the pandemic on business operations. In the process, availability to customers, as well as the ability of employees to work, was assured at all times.

The financial statements of the W&W Group are affected by the impact of the coronavirus pandemic to varying degrees of intensity, particularly in customer lending business, in the area of investments and real estate, and in insurance business. A variety of supportive measures by central banks and countries mitigated the effects on national economies. Particularly noteworthy is the German Act to Mitigate the Consequences of the COVID-19 Pandemic (Gesetz zur Abmilderung der Folgen der COVID-19-Pandemie), which was enacted by the Bundestag on 25 March 2020. Among other things, the act provided for the ability to defer payments for three months (statutory moratorium), as well as suspension until 30 September 2020 of the obligation to apply for commencement of insolvency proceedings on account of the risk of liability and in some cases also criminal proceedings that are associated with failure to comply with the obligation. In addition, due to the dynamic pace of infections during the second half of the year under review, the Federal government and the states enacted targeted temporary measures (November/December assistance and bridging assistance). As part of these extraordinary business aid packages, subsidies equal to 75% of turnover in the relevant prior-year month were in principle granted based on the number of days the business was closed, as were additional subsidies to cover fixed costs in the event of lower turnover occasioned by the coronavirus. Furthermore, suspension of the obligation to apply for commencement of insolvency proceedings was extended until 31 December 2020, not just for companies that were overindebted but also for those that were illiquid, and with the German Act to Protect Employment as a Consequence of the Covid-19 Pandemic (Gesetz zur Beschäftigungssicherung infolge der COVID-19-Pandemie) of 3 December 2020, the legislators decided to extend the special arrangements concerning short-time working benefits essentially until the end of 2021. These measures make it possible for companies and their workers to share in the anticipated upturn following the lockdown and thus have a stabilising effect. On the other hand, it can be anticipated that insolvency figures will rise significantly when these statutory measures expire.

Because of the duration and extent of the coronavirus pandemic, it is difficult to estimate the spread of the virus and the associated financial effects, as well as its impact on the net assets, financial position and financial performance of the W&W Group. The estimates, assumptions and discretionary judgments that are relevant to the financial statements were made on the basis of management's best knowledge and currently available information. Despite increased uncertainties, the W&W Group believes that the assumptions and estimates utilised appropriately reflect the current situation. Nevertheless, particularly in light of the further development of the coronavirus pandemic, there may be deviations from these estimates.

Transactions within the Group

W&W AG is the reinsurer for the Group's insurance. Various service contracts are in place between Group companies. In addition, Group undertakings make use of a variety of banking services.

In 2014 Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG issued a subordinated loan in the nominal amount of €250,000 thousand, of which €20,000 thousand is held within the Group. In 2015 Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG took out a further subordinated loan in the nominal amount of €250,000 thousand, of which €247,000 thousand is held within the Group. The subordinated liabilities of Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG include an Additional Tier-1 bond in the amount of €30,000 thousand, all of which is held within the Group.

Allgemeine Rentenanstalt Pensionskasse AG offers occupational pension schemes to other Group companies. In addition, reinsurance is in place between various subsidiaries of W&W AG and Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG for the purpose of protecting the phased-in early retirement (Altersteilzeit) contracts of the W&W Group against insolvency.

List of related undertakings

The W&W Group, which is used to prepare the IFRS consolidated financial statements, is fundamentally different from the scope of the W&W AG Solvency II group. For instance, in particular, the Solvency II scope of consolidation, the consolidation methods to be applied under Solvency II and the specification of the consolidated data associated with this differ from the corresponding IFRS rules. Various undertakings (particularly Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG and Allgemeine Rentenanstalt Pensionskasse AG) and funds are fully consolidated in the IFRS consolidated financial statements but not in Solvency II.

In the 2020 financial year, the scope of consolidation experienced the following material changes in ownership inter-

- Ownership of Aachener Bausparkasse changed to Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG,
- Sale of the Czech subsidiaries Wüstenrot stavební spořitelna a.s. ad Wüstenrot hypoteční banka a.s.

The following presents the list of the scope of consolidation of the Solvency II group as at 31 December 2020. The figures relate to the most recent annual financial statements available on the reporting date. The information concerning legal form, country, voting rights percentages, and other characteristics can be found in the Annex to this Report in Template S.32.01.22. The related undertakings and associates are assigned to one of the following types of undertakings, irrespective of the corporate purpose specified in the articles of association:

- (Re-) insurance undertakings (IU),
- Ancillary services undertakings (ASU) material or immaterial,
- Entities from other financial sectors (OFS),
- Other undertakings.

The following associates are included in the scope of consolidation of the Solvency II group:

- BWK GmbH Unternehmensbeteiligungsgesellschaft,
- BWK Holding GmbH Unternehmensbeteiligungsgesellschaft,
- Fundamenta-Lakáskassza-Lakástakarékpénztár Zrt.,
- Keleya Digital-Health Solutions GmbH,
- V-Bank AG (including its subsidiaries V-Check GmbH and V-Fonds GmbH).

ver.di Service GmbH is a joint venture and is also included in the scope of consolidation of the Solvency II group.

For further information, please see Chapter D.

List of undertakings in the Solvency II scope of consolidation

Name and registered office of the company	Calculated participation, in % (from the standpoint of W&W AG)	Classification	Equity (thousands)	Curren cy	Reporting date
3B Boden-Bauten-Beteiligungs-GmbH, Ludwigsburg	100.00%	Other	63,338	€	31/12/2019
Adam Riese GmbH, Stuttgart¹	100.00%	ASU (immaterial)	25	€	31/12/2019
Allgemeine Rentenanstalt Pensionskasse AG, Stuttgart	94.89%	OFS	47,526	€	31/12/2019
Altmark Versicherungsmakler GmbH, Stuttgart	100.00%	ASU (immaterial)	2,969	€	31/12/2019
Altmark Versicherungsvermittlung GmbH, Stuttgart	100.00%	ASU (immaterial)	382	€	31/12/2019
Asendorfer Kippe ASK GmbH & Co. KG, Stuttgart	94.89%	ASU (immaterial)	2,778	€	31/12/2019
Beteiligungs-GmbH der Württembergischen, Stuttgart	94.89%	Other	3,310	€	31/12/2019
BWK GmbH Unternehmensbeteiligungsgesellschaft, Stuttgart	34.11%	OFS	246,026	€	31/12/2019
BWK Holding GmbH Unternehmensbeteiligungsgesellschaft, Stuttgart	34.11%	OFS	11,416	€	31/12/2019
City Immobilien GmbH & Co. KG der Württembergischen, Stuttgart	94.89%	ASU	103,503	€	31/12/2019
City Immobilien II GmbH & Co. KG der Württembergischen, Stuttgart	94.89%	ASU	104,432	€	31/12/2019
Fundamenta-Lakáskassza-Lakástakarékpénztár Zrt., Budapest, Hungary	11.47%	OFS	63,600,000	HUF	31/12/2019
G6 Zeta Errichtungs- und VerwertungsGmbH & Co OG, Vienna, Austria	99.90%	ASU (immaterial)	24,202	€	31/12/2019
Ganzer GmbH & Co. KG, Harrislee	94.89%	ASU (immaterial)	2,000	€	31/12/2019
Gerber GmbH & Co. KG, Stuttgart	94.89%	ASU	264,235	€	31/12/2019
Gestorf GmbH & Co. KG, Stuttgart	94.89%	ASU (immaterial)	472	€	31/12/2019
GMA Gesellschaft für Markt- und Absatzforschung mbH, Ludwigsburg	100.00%	Other	2,028	€	31/12/2019
Hinterbliebenenfürsorge der Deutschen Beamtenbanken GmbH, Karlsruhe	94.89%	ASU (immaterial)	114	€	31/12/2019
IVB - Institut für Vorsorgeberatung, Risiko- und Finanzierungsanalyse GmbH, Karlsruhe	94.89%	ASU (immaterial)	78	€	31/10/2019
Keleya Digital-Health Solutions GmbH, Hamburg	21.96%	Other	416	€	31/12/2019
KLV BAKO Dienstleistungs-GmbH, Karlsruhe	89.20%	ASU (immaterial)	231	€	31/12/2019
KLV BAKO Vermittlungs-GmbH, Karlsruhe	73.16%	ASU (immaterial)	242	€	31/12/2019
Miethaus und Wohnheim GmbH i.L., Ludwigsburg	100.00%	Other	1,962	€	31/12/2019
Rente.de AV GmbH, Stuttgart	100.00%	Other	25	€	31/12/2019

List of undertakings in the Solvency II scope of consolidation (continuation)

Name and registered office of the company	calculated participation, in % (from the standpoint of W&W AG)	Classification	Equity (thousands)	Curren cy	Reporting date
SAMARIUM drei GmbH & Co OG, Vienna, Austria	99.95%	ASU (immaterial)	9,623	€	31/12/2019
Schulenburg GmbH & Co. KG, Stuttgart	94.89%	ASU (immaterial)	116	€	31/12/2019
treefin GmbH, Munich ¹	100.00%	ASU (immaterial)	3,383	€	31/12/2019
V-Bank AG, Munich	15.00%	OFS	48,591	€	31/12/2019
V-Check GmbH, Eschborn	15.00%	Other	1,200	€	31/12/2019
ver.di Service GmbH, Berlin	50.00%	Other	158	€	31/12/2019
V-Fonds GmbH, Munich	12.00%	Other	683	€	31/12/2019
W&W Asset Management Dublin DAC, Dublin, Ireland	100.00%	OFS	11,599	€	31/12/2019
W&W Asset Management GmbH, Ludwigsburg ¹	100.00%	OFS	11,261	€	31/12/2019
W&W brandpool GmbH, Stuttgart ¹	100.00%	OFS	3,275	€	31/12/2019
W&W Europe Life Limited i.L., Dublin, Ireland	100.00%	Other	18,835	€	31/12/2014
W&W Gesellschaft für Finanzbeteiligungen mbH, Stuttgart	100.00%	OFS	59,409	€	31/12/2019
W&W Informatik GmbH, Ludwigsburg¹	100.00%	ASU	473	€	31/12/2019
W&W Investment Managers DAC, Dublin, Ireland	100.00%	OFS	8,541	€	31/12/2019
W&W Produktion GmbH i.L., Berlin ¹	100.00%	Other	25	€	31/12/2019
W&W Service GmbH, Stuttgart ¹	100.00%	ASU (immaterial)	100	€	31/12/2019
Windpark Golzow GmbH & Co. KG, Rheine	94.89%	ASU (immaterial)	7,917	€	31/12/2019
WL Erneuerbare Energien Verwaltungs GmbH, Stuttgart	94.89%	OFS	76	€	31/12/2019
WL Renewable Energy GmbH & Co. KG, Stuttgart	94.89%	OFS	94,718	€	31/12/2019
WL Sustainable Energy GmbH & Co. KG, Stuttgart	94.89%	OFS	81,237	€	31/12/2019
Wohnimmobilien GmbH & Co. KG der Württembergischen, Stuttgart	94.89%	ASU	118,431	€	31/12/2019
Württembergische Akademie GmbH, Stuttgart	100.00%	Other	2,098	€	31/12/2019
Württembergische France Immobiliere SARL, Strasbourg, France	100.00%	ASU (immaterial)	15,574	€	30/9/2020
Württembergische France Strasbourg SARL, Strasbourg, France	100.00%	ASU (immaterial)	45,855	€	30/9/2020
Württembergische Immobilien AG, Stuttgart	100.00%	OFS	120,257	€	31/12/2019
Württembergische KÖ 43 GmbH, Stuttgart	89.90%	ASU (immaterial)	22,808	€	31/12/2019
Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG, Stuttgart	100.00%	IU	49,048	€	31/12/2019
Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG, Stuttgart	94.89%	IU	473,512	€	31/12/2019
Württembergische Logistik I GmbH & Co. KG, Stuttgart	94.89%	ASU (immaterial)	9,849	€	31/12/2019

1 Profit and loss transfer agreement in place.

List of undertakings in the Solvency II scope of consolidation (continuation)

Name and registered office of the company	Calculated participation, in % (from the		Equity	Curren	
	standpoint of W&W AG)	Classification	(thousands)	су	Reporting date
Württembergische Rechtsschutz Schaden-Service-GmbH, Stuttgart	100.00%	ASU (immaterial)	77	€	31/12/2019
Württembergische Versicherung AG, Stuttgart ¹	100.00%	IU	350,563	€	31/12/2019
Württembergische Vertriebspartner GmbH, Stuttgart ¹	100.00%	ASU (immaterial)	74	€	31/12/2019
Württembergische Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, Stuttgart	94.89%	OFS	37	€	31/12/2019
Württfeuer Beteiligungs-GmbH, Stuttgart	100.00%	OFS	1,003	€	31/12/2019
WürttLeben Alternative Investments GmbH, Stuttgart¹	94.89%	OFS	103,025	€	31/12/2019
WürttVers Alternative Investments GmbH, Stuttgart ¹	100.00%	OFS	46,025	€	31/12/2019
Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG, Ludwigsburg	100.00%	OFS	830,564	€	31/12/2019
Wüstenrot Grundstücksverwertungs-GmbH, Ludwigsburg	100.00%	Other	2,057	€	31/12/2019
Wüstenrot Haus- und Städtebau GmbH, Ludwigsburg	100.00%	Other	106,351	€	31/12/2019
Wüstenrot Immobilien GmbH, Ludwigsburg	100.00%	Other	3,945	€	31/12/2019

A.2 Underwriting performance

Net premiums earned rose by €165,975 thousand to €4,415,144 thousand. Both Property/Casualty Insurance and Life and Health Insurance saw significant increases.

In the Property/Casualty Insurance segment, net premiums earned rose substantially by €76,450 thousand to €1,641,765 thousand (previous year: €1,565,315 thousand). All business segments made a contribution to this.

In the Life and Health Insurance segment, net premiums earned increased to €2,491,775 thousand (previous year: €2,415,128 thousand) as a result of higher volume in single-premium insurance policies in new business.

Insurance benefits (net) fell by €195,035 thousand to €4,455,443 thousand.

In the Property/Casualty Insurance segment, insurance benefits (net) rose to €880,661 thousand (previous year: €823,242 thousand) as a result of the considerably larger insurance portfolio. The coronavirus pandemic had an impact on claims development in two respects. On the one hand, claims expenses in the motor line fell as a consequence of the lockdown. On the other, as part of the ex gratia arrangement, expenses were incurred for business closure insurance policies as a consequence of the business closures ordered by the authorities. In addition, because of persistently low interest rates, the actuarial interest rates in several business lines were lowered, thus strengthening the reserves by an amount in the mid-eight figures. Owing to the very good portfolio, the loss ratio (gross) stood at 64.2% (previous year: 62.2%). The combined ratio (gross) came in at 90.6% (previous year: 89.4%).

In the Life and Health Insurance segment, insurance benefits fell to €3,410,309 thousand (previous year: €3,665,042 thousand). In the previous year, the sharp rise on the equity markets in 2019 led to an increase in the provision for unitlinked insurance policies. By contrast, the provision for unit-linked insurance policies declined in the 2020 financial year due to weaker and more volatile trends on the equity markets compared with the previous year. Benefits to customers were secured further through the regular build-up of the additional interest reserve (including interest rate reinforcement). Additions totalled €352,304 thousand (previous year: €364,844 thousand). In this regard, the corridor method was applied to calculate the reference interest rate. In order to depict the build-up of the additional interest rate reserve as realistically as possible, capital disbursement probabilities were applied that are specific to each undertaking.

Germany is the core market of the W&W Group. More than 90% of all gross premiums written in the reporting period were attributable to Germany, meaning that it was unnecessary to prepare Template S.05.02.01, which provides a geographic analysis of premiums, claims and expenses by country.

The following overview presents income from premiums written, claims incurred, and changes in other technical provisions for the Solvency II group for the 2020 and 2019 financial years (in each case, net and according to IFRS). The breakdown into the various lines of business was undertaken in accordance with Solvency II rules; the presented data are based on the items required for Template S.05.01.02. Thus, in comparison to the above remarks on the basis of the consolidated financial statements pursuant to IFRS, the following table leaves out of consideration, in particular, premiums from the provision for premium refunds.

Technical income and expenses

	Income from pre	emiums written (net)	Claim	s incurred (net)	_	other technical provisions (net)
in € thousands	2020	2019	2020	2019	2020	2019
Medical expense insurance	-	-	-1	-	-	_
Income protection insurance	147,608	143,841	52,792	51,861	-122	-203
Workers' compensation insurance	-	-	-	-	-	-
Motor vehicle liability insurance	479,679	466,727	311,741	326,947	2,274	-1,040
Other motor insurance	371,193	358,050	221,749	242,369	1,520	-1,530
Marine, aviation and transport insurance	23,937	23,777	14,783	15,689	688	671
Fire and other damage to property insurance	560,211	511,930	257,822	223,649	1,612	-287
General liability insurance	224,206	219,965	88,132	53,126	620	-211
Credit and suretyship insurance	4,979	2,225	5,237	321	-37	-4
Legal expenses insurance	132,938	126,020	70,708	63,087	-174	-150
Assistance	15,347	12,320	2,428	2,867	-4	-18
Miscellaneous financial loss	11,593	9,436	32,472	4,488	184	172
Accepted non-proportional reinsurance	-28,557	-26,477	-23,544	-417	-994	109
Health	-148	-137	-100	-42	-	-
Casualty	-2,636	-2,768	-13,156	2,450	-188	-
Marine, aviation, transport	-243	-173	-3,063	-780	-459	-
Property	-25,530	-23,399	-7,225	-2,045	-347	109
Non-life insurance and reinsurance obligations	1,943,135	1,847,812	1,034,319	983,987	5,566	-2,490
Health insurance	457,140	440,371	186,864	168,357	-208,768	-218,836
Insurance with profit participation	1,639,068	1,582,727	2,069,730	2,075,946	-304,341	-359,236
Index-linked and unit-linked insurance	304,363	306,169	158,846	162,213	-104,988	-404,666
Other life insurance	-	-	-	-	-	-
Annuities stemming from non-life insurance contracts and relating to health insurance obligations	-	-	19,764	7,450	-	_
Annuities stemming from non-life insurance contracts and relating to insurance obligations other than health insurance obligations	-	-	10,205	-3,901	-	-
Health reinsurance	-	-	-	-	-	-
Life reinsurance	4,539	5,310	9,437	7,899	4,400	1,751
Life insurance obligations	2,405,109	2,334,576	2,454,844	2,417,964	-613,697	-980,987
Total	4,348,244	4,182,388			-608,131	-983,477

For further information about premiums, claims and expenses by line of business, please see Template S.05.01.02 in the Annex.

A.3 Investment performance

Capital markets

In the reporting period, the capital markets were characterised by high volatility as a result of the coronavirus pandemic. The large international equity markets experienced a severe slump through mid-March. The markets then recovered and trended more calmly thereafter.

Net financial income

In the 2020 financial year, the W&W Group's net financial income fell from €2,353,484 thousand to €1,812,538 thousand. This was attributable to market upheavals as a result of the coronavirus pandemic during the 2020 financial year, as well as to the relatively high net measurement gain in the previous year. The net expense for property, plant and equipment held for own use came in at €47,064 thousand (previous year: €48,564 thousand). Thus, net financial income, including property, plant and equipment held for own use, stood at €1,765,474 thousand (previous year: €2,304,920 thousand).

The following overview shows an allocation of IFRS net financial income, including property, plant and equipment held for own use, to the balance sheet items pursuant to the solvency overview for the 2020 and 2019 financial years.

Net financial income	, including prope	erty, plant and eq	uipment held for own use

	Net financial income, including property, plant and equipment held for own use		Proportion of net find including prope equipment he	erty, plant and
	2020	2019	2020	2019
	in € thousands	in € tho∪sands	in %	in %
Property, plant and equipment held for own use	-47,064	-48,564	-2.7	-2.1
Investments	1,761,941	1,843,568	99.8	80.0
Property (other than for own use)	113,001	135,583	6.4	5.9
Holdings in related undertakings, including participations	46,184	66,331	2.6	2.9
Equities	25,808	255,480	1.5	11.1
Equities – listed	38,239	108,886	2.2	4.7
Equities – unlisted	-12,431	146,594	-0.7	6.4
Bonds	1,086,848	1,377,060	61.6	59.7
Government bonds	278,431	302,589	15.8	13.1
Corporate bonds	788,357	1,020,776	44.7	44.3
Structured notes	20,060	53,695	1.1	2.3
Collateralised securities	-	-	-	-
Collective investment undertakings	6,067	105,655	0.3	4.6
Derivatives	485,577	-96,110	27.5	-4.2
Deposits other than cash equivalents	-1,544	-431	-0.1	-0.0
Other investments	-	-	-	-
Loans and mortgages	494,037	632,602	28.0	27.4
Loans on policies	2,671	3,275	0.2	0.1
Loans and mortgages to individuals	491,366	629,327	27.8	27.3
Other loans and mortgages	-	-	-	-
Deposits to cedants	857	1,193	0.0	0.1
Cash and cash equivalents	-3,135	-3,456	-0.2	-0.1
Other income/expenses	-441,162	-120,423	-25.0	-5.2
Total	1,765,474	2,304,920	100.0	100.0

The result from assets held for index-linked and unit-linked contracts is included in the item "Other income/expenses". It consisted of current net income of €12,731 thousand and the net measurement expense of €51,404 thousand.

The largest proportion of net financial income, including property, plant and equipment held for own use, was again attributable to bonds, although net income from bonds fell by €290,212 thousand to €1,086,848 thousand, primarily as a result of capital market trends.

The sharpest adverse development was posted in other income/expenses, where the net expense increased by €320,739 thousand to €441,162 thousand. The measurement result for assets held for index-linked and unit-linked contracts fell by €437,864 thousand to -€51,504 thousand. The high results of the previous year could not be reached. However, the losses recorded in the initial months were able to be largely recouped over the course of the year.

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2020, total comprehensive income stood at €322,793 thousand (previous year: €658,443 thousand). It consists of consolidated net profit and other comprehensive income (OCI).

As at 31 December 2020, OCI stood at €112,042 thousand (previous year: €409,384 thousand). The decline in this result was predominantly an expression of the sensitivity of investments to changes in interest rates. This resulted in considerably lower unrealised measurement gains. Therefore, after additions to the provision for deferred premium refunds and to deferred taxes, unrealised net income from these investments amounted to €235,868 thousand (previous year: €580,580 thousand). At the same time, lower interest rates had the opposite effect, including in the form of actuarial losses from defined benefit plans for pension schemes. The interest rate used for measuring pension commitments fell from 0.8% to 0.4% in the 2020 financial year. As a result, -€104,894 thousand (previous year: -€174,162 thousand) was recognised in other comprehensive income.

Securitisations

In the case of a securitisation, the seller assigns certain asset positions (receivables) to an SPV, which obtains refinancing by issuing securities on the capital market. As at 31 December 2020, the direct portfolio of the insurance undertakings belonging to the Solvency II group contained such securities with a Solvency II carrying amount of €26,707 thousand (previous year: €27,016 thousand). These securities mature in 2023. Special market-induced risks are not apparent here. In view of the total volume of the capital investment of the Solvency II group, these items are of minor significance.

A.4 Change in other results

General administrative expenses fell to €1,013,997 thousand (previous year: €1,080,451 thousand). Despite collectively bargained salary increases, personnel expenses fell by nearly 2% due to, among other things, the immediate measures introduced as a result of the coronavirus. Materials costs fell even more substantially, by nearly 11%, as a result of lower advertising, travel and consulting costs, for instance. On the one hand, this was attributable to cost-cutting occasioned by the coronavirus. On the other, rigorous cost management was successfully continued in 2020 as well.

Net other operating income rose to €45,836 thousand (previous year: net operating expense of €28,520 thousand). This was mainly attributable to a one-off effect in the previous year. The deconsolidation of Wüstenrot Bank AG Pfandbriefbank at that time resulted in a shifting of individual results. This led to income of €48,431 thousand being added to net income from disposals (net financial income), whereas a charge of €38,598 thousand was made to the net other operating expense for 2019. In addition, the figure for the current year includes badwill from the sale of Aachener Bausparkasse AG, as well as, working in the opposite direction in this context, created restructuring provisions.

The tax expense for the reporting year amounted to €96,122 thousand (previous year: €103,950 thousand).

Material leasing agreements

W&W Group as lessee

The W&W Group leases properties, vehicles and EDP equipment for own use, as well as investment properties.

Most of the properties for own use have indefinite terms. Renewal options exist in some cases. Price adjustment clauses are likewise agreed to, which are based on the consumer price index. There are often no purchase options. EDP equipment and vehicles have fixed terms of up to three years. Investment properties have terms of up to 99 years.

Recognised under "Property for own use" are, in particular, the properties located at Friedrich-Scholl-Platz 1 in Karlsruhe, Germany, and at Presselstraße 10 in Stuttgart, Germany, which were sold in the 2011 and 2018 financial year, respectively, and then leased back for continued own use (known as sale and leaseback transactions).

The lease for the property at Friedrich-Scholl-Platz 1 in Karlsruhe has a term of 15 years and cannot be terminated. Also agreed upon was a one-time lease renewal option for a fixed term of five years. If the lessee intends to exercise the option, it must give the lessor notice thereof 16 months prior to expiry of the lease term. Moreover, the lease contains a

general prospective price adjustment clause, which is based on how the consumer price index changes. In addition, neither a repurchase option nor contingent lease payments or restrictions were agreed to. Most of the property is used within the Group. A portion has been subleased outside the Group. Future minimum payments of €5,162 thousand (previous year: €6,194 thousand) are expected from this sublease.

The lease for the property on Presselstraße has a term of five years and cannot be terminated. Also agreed upon was a one-time lease renewal option for a fixed term of five years. If the lessee intends to exercise the option, it must give the lessor notice thereof six months prior to expiry of the lease term. Furthermore, the lease provides for annual rent increases of 3% from 1 January 2020. In addition, neither a repurchase option nor contingent lease payments or restrictions were agreed to. The property is used within the Group.

Payment outflows under leases in the amount of €21,127 thousand (previous year: €18,784 thousand) were recognised in the W&W Group.

W&W Group as lessor

We are the lessor under operating leases for investment property. Many of the leases entered into have open-ended terms. Some, however, have fixed terms. With regard to commercial properties, price adjustment clauses are regularly agreed to, which are based on the consumer price index. With regard to residential properties, such agreements have been entered into for properties that have been acquired since 2012 and for those that have undergone high-quality renovations. Rental income in the W&W Group amounted to €114,974 thousand (previous year: €124,771 thousand). Variable rent payments recognised as income amounted to €1,352 thousand (previous year: €1,377 thousand).

A finance lease under which we are the lessor is in place for the portion of the property at Friedrich-Scholl-Platz 1 in Karlsruhe, which has been subleased outside the Group.

A.5 Other information

The W&W Group assumes that basic macroeconomic conditions will recover in the 2021 financial year, and it expects to post consolidated net profit for the 2021 financial year within the medium- to long-term target corridor of €220 to 250 million. However, because significant economic and political uncertainties persist, it is possible that consolidated net profit will come in outside of this target corridor. Under these basic conditions, it is currently not possible to make a well-founded forecast of consolidated net profit. In any event, the W&W Group is adhering to its medium- to long-term target corridor.

Following the solid first quarter, the W&W Group is confident of posting consolidated net profit for 2021 as a whole in the upper end of the strategic target corridor of €220 to 250 million, which has long been the objective. Because of the continued uncertainties about the further course of the coronavirus pandemic, a more specific forecast is not possible at this time.

Other than the facts and circumstances presented in the foregoing sections, there is no other material information.

W&W AG Solvency II group

B System of governance

B.1 General information about the system of governance

Governance system

Executive Board

The Executive Board of W&W AG, which is the parent company of the W&W Group, runs the W&W Group in its own responsibility. As at 31 December 2020, the Executive Board had four members. This number of Executive Board members was set by the Supervisory Board. The minimum number of Executive Board members is met.

The Supervisory Board has stipulated a diversity plan for the Executive Board. In this regard, it has resolved to have women make up at least 15% of the members of the Executive Board and set a target deadline for this of 30 June 2022. As a result, the Supervisory Board is seeking to place at least one woman on the Executive Board.

In addition, attention must be paid to compliance with the age limit of 65 provided for as a target requirement in the Executive Board bylaws. The age limit is being complied with.

As at 31 December 2020, the responsibilities on the Executive Board were allocated as follows:

Name	Position	Responsibilities	Substitute
Jürgen A. Junker (Executive Board Chairman)	Chief Executive Officer (CEO)	Group Legal, Group Audit, Communication, Group Development (strategy, M&A, strategic brand management and corporate identity, customer data) and Company Organisation, Group Board Sales	Alexander Mayer
Alexander Mayer	Chief Financial Officer (CFO)	Group Accounting, Financial Management, Retained Organisation, Reinsurance*	Jürgen A. Junker
Jürgen Steffan	Chief Risk Officer (CRO) / Spokesman for Human Resources	Risk and Compliance (money laundering/securities compliance), Group Controlling, Cost Controlling, Group Personnel, Group Board Risk	Jens Wieland, other than Group Personnel: Jürgen A. Junker
Jens Wieland	Chief Information Officer (CIO)	Enterprise IT Management, Customer Data Protection and Operational Security, Production and Services	Jürgen Steffan

The Executive Board is responsible for managing the business with the aim of creating sustainable value in the interest of W&W AG and the W&W Group, and it sets the corporate policy and the principles of the business policy for W&W AG and the W&W Group. The main tasks have to do with strategic alignment and control of the W&W Group, including maintaining and monitoring an efficient risk management system. The Executive Board is also responsible for ensuring a suitable and effective internal auditing and control system. It sets the business strategy and a consistent, appropriate risk strategy at the Group level, and it ensures that the W&W Group has an organisational and operational structure that is suitable and transparent. The Executive Board of W&W AG represents the company in transactions with third parties.

The Executive Board is accountable in its entirety. A resolution must be adopted by the Executive Board

- on all matters for which adoption of a resolution by the Executive Board is mandated by law, the Articles of Association, or the Executive Board bylaws that the Supervisory Board adopts for it,
- for setting and, if necessary, modifying the business and risk strategy and other fundamental issues of Group planning, as well as the annual and multi-year planning of the W&W Group,
- · on matters that are not assigned to a specific Executive Board member by the business allocation plan and
- on all other matters that are presented to the Executive Board by the Executive Board Chairman or a member for adoption of a resolution.

The Executive Board is part of the governance system of the W&W Group. The key governance bodies of the W&W Group are the Management Board, the division boards and the Group boards. The Management Board of W&W AG is composed of the members of the Executive Board, along with the heads of the Housing, Insurance and brandpool divisions. The Management Board is the central steering body of the W&W Group. The Management Board concerns itself with, among other things, Group governance and the definition and development of the business strategy for the W&W Group. In addition, it facilitates the exchange of information between the Executive Board and the division heads with regard to the integration of the divisions into the Group strategy. Strategic issues that concern the Group as a whole are discussed by the Management Board. Decision-making paths are pooled and accelerated. The Management Board meets at least twice per month. Those meetings are simultaneously considered to be meetings of the W&W AG Executive Board.

The division boards – i.e. the Housing division board and the Insurance division board – coordinate and decide on division-specific issues. They meet at least twice per month, and those meetings are simultaneously considered to be meetings of the executive boards of the individual companies. The Group boards coordinate cross-division initiatives in the areas of sales, risk and investments.

The Chairman of the Executive Board is in charge of the collaboration between the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board. He is in contact with the Chairman of the Supervisory Board and discusses with him the strategy, business performance and risk management of W&W AG and the W&W Group. He promptly notifies the Chairman of the Supervisory Board about important events that are of major significance for the assessment of the position and performance of the W&W Group, as well as for its management. The Executive Board coordinates with the Supervisory Board on the strategic alignment of W&W AG and the W&W Group. In addition, the Executive Board reports to the Supervisory Board routinely and in a comprehensive manner – if necessary, also on an ad hoc basis – about all issues of relevance to W&W AG and the W&W Group concerning strategy, planning, business performance, risk position, risk management and compliance. Details are addressed in the Executive Board bylaws.

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board of W&W AG, which is the parent company of the W&W Group, advises the Executive Board in running W&W AG and the W&W Group and monitors its management. This also applies with respect to compliance with the relevant insurance and banking supervisory regulations.

The Supervisory Board exercises its activities in accordance with laws, the Articles of Association, the Supervisory Board bylaws and any resolutions of the Supervisory Board. It dedicates sufficient time to the discussion of strategies, risks and remuneration schemes for the Executive Board and employees.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Supervisory Board of W&W AG is composed of 16 members, of whom eight are shareholder representatives and eight are employee representatives. W&W AG is required by law to have women make up at least 30% of the Supervisory Board. It currently is composed of nine men and seven women. Accordingly, women make up 44% of the Supervisory Board.

In view of the Housing, Insurance and brandpool divisions and the common Group perspective, the candidates nominated by the Supervisory Board for election to the body are evaluated in terms of their expertise, experience and professional knowledge, particularly in the sectors of insurance, banking and home loan and savings banking, as well as their individual abilities. Other criteria for Supervisory Board nominees who are proposed to the Annual General Meeting include whether the candidates are independent, have sufficient time to carry out their duties and, at the time of their election, meet the age limit of 70 provided for as a target requirement.

In the estimation of the Supervisory Board, all shareholder representatives on the Supervisory Board are independent. Going forward as well, an appropriate number of independent members will belong to the Supervisory Board. In terms of shareholder representatives, the Supervisory Board considers at least four independent members to be appropriate.

On account of the company-specific situation, the Supervisory Board does not consider it necessary to strive for a certain minimum number of members who represent, in particular, the quality of "internationality", since the main focus of the W&W Group's business operations is the national insurance and home loan and savings bank area. Beyond the aspect of "internationality", however, the inclusion of and collaboration between Supervisory Board members with different backgrounds and ways of thinking fundamentally enriches the body and promotes the discussion culture. This ultimately leads to control and advisory activities that are more efficient and more effective.

The Supervisory Board does not consider it necessary to specify a regular limit to the length of service on the Supervisory Board, and this is required to be explained in the annual statement of compliance. It is difficult to recruit qualified Supervisory Board members who meet the requirements of supervisory law, including with respect to whether candidates are fit and proper and do not exceed the maximum number of mandates. The increased requirements of supervisory law have to do with, inter alia, the fact that because of its position in the W&W financial conglomerate, W&W AG is subject to both banking supervision and insurance supervision.

The Executive Board requires the approval of the Supervisory Board for measures requiring approval by virtue of law or the Articles of Association, as well as for measures defined in the bylaws.

The Supervisory Board has adopted bylaws for itself, which addresses the details about the organisation of the Supervisory Board that are necessary for business development. The appropriate interaction of the Supervisory Board with committees, senior managers and key positions is assured through existing reporting obligations, meaning that a regular and sufficient exchange of information takes place.

If a conflict arises with the requirements of supervisory law, companies law or the law of corporate groups, compliance with the requirements at the Group level is assured and enforced by the Supervisory Board of W&W AG.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Supervisory Board of W&W AG had the following four standing committees:

- Risk and Audit Committee
- Nomination Committee
- Remuneration Control and Personnel Committee
- **Conciliation Committee**

Composition	Key responsibilities
8 members Chair: Corinna Linner	Conducting a preliminary review of the annual and consolidated financial statements, the management reports, the proposal for the appropriation of profit, the corporate governance statement, including the remuneration report and the separate non-financial Group report.
Three additional shareholder representatives: Prof. Dr Nadine Gatzert Dr Reiner Hagemann (financial expert) Jutta Stöcker	Handling accounting issues, including monitoring the accounting process, the effectiveness of the internal control system, the risk management system and the internal audit system, as well as compliance issues. Handling issues concerning current and future overall risk tolerance and business and risk strategies at the company and Group level and support in monitoring the implementation of these strategies.
Four employee representatives: Ute Hobinka Bernd Mader Andreas Rothbauer Susanne Ulshöfer	Making recommendations concerning the election of the statutory auditor by the Supervisory Board. Deciding on the agreement with the auditor (in particular, the audit mandate, the specification of the main audit areas and the fee agreement), as well as on termination or continuation of the audit mandate. Adopting suitable measures in order to ascertain and monitor the independence of the auditor and the additional services provided by the auditor for W&W AG.
	Assisting the Supervisory Board in monitoring the swift rectification by the Executive Board of the deficiencies identified by the auditor.

Nomination Committee

6 members

Composition Key responsibilities

Chair: Chairman of the Supervisory Board (Hans Dietmar Sauer)

Two additional shareholder representatives:

Peter Buschbeck Dr Reiner Hagemann

Three employee representatives: Jochen Höpken Christoph Seeger Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board (Frank Weber)

Regularly deliberating on the long-term succession planning for the Executive Board.

Assisting the Supervisory Board in identifying candidates to fill Executive Board vacancies and preparing proposals for the election of the members of the Supervisory Board, whereby only the shareholder representatives provide support in preparing such proposals.

Assisting the Supervisory Board in deciding on a target to encourage the representation of women on the Supervisory Board and a policy on how to meet that target.

Assisting the Supervisory Board in periodically assessing the structure, size, composition and performance of the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board and in periodically assessing the knowledge, skills and experience of the individual members of the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board, as well as each of the bodies as a whole.

Reviewing the policy of the Executive Board for the selection and appointment of senior management and making recommendations on this matter to the Executive Board.

Remuneration Control and Personnel Committee

Composition Key responsibilities

4 members

Chair: Chairman of the Supervisory Board (Hans Dietmar Sauer)

One additional shareholder representative: Hans-Ulrich Schulz

Two employee representatives: Christoph Seeger Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board (Frank Weber)

Preparing the personnel decisions of the Supervisory Board, in particular the appointment and dismissal of members of the Executive Board and the appointment of the Chairman of the Executive Board, as well as resolutions of the Supervisory Board concerning the remuneration of the Executive Board.

Deciding on the conclusion, amendment and termination of the employment and pension agreements of Executive Board members (this does not apply to the setting of remuneration and decisions pursuant to Section 87 (2) sentences 1 and 2 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG), which are decided on by the Supervisory Board following preparation by the Remuneration Control and Personnel Committee).

Monitoring the adequate structure of the remuneration schemes for the Executive Board and employees and, in particular, the adequate structure of remuneration for the heads of the risk control function and the compliance function and for those employees who have a material impact on the company's overall risk profile and that of the W&W Group.

Assisting the Supervisory Board in monitoring the adequate structure of remuneration schemes for the employees of the company and assessing the impact of the remuneration schemes on the management of risk, capital and liquidity, as well as assisting the Supervisory Board in monitoring the proper inclusion of the internal control function and all other material functions in the structure of the remuneration schemes.

Conciliation Committee

Composition Key responsibilities

Chair: Chairman of the Supervisory Board

(Hans Dietmar Sauer)

4 members

Marika Lulav

One additional shareholder representative:

Two employee representatives: Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board (Frank Weber)

Making personnel proposals to the Supervisory Board where the required majority is lacking for the appointment and dismissal of Executive Board members.

Key functions

The Solvency II group has established the following four key functions:

- Independent risk controlling function
- Compliance function
- Internal audit
- Actuarial function

The individual Executive Board members ensure regular communication with key function holders.

The following presents the required powers, resources and operational independence of key function holders, as well as the way in which they report to and advise the Administrative, Management and Supervisory Body (AMSB) of the insurance or reinsurance undertaking. Detailed descriptions about how the functions were implemented in the Group can be found in Sections B.3 to B.6.

Independent risk controlling function

The Risk and Compliance department at W&W AG (Risk section) is responsible for risk management at the Group level and at the level of W&W AG. The head of the Risk section acts as the responsible key function holder pursuant to Section 26 of the German Act on the Supervision of Insurance Undertakings (VAG). For the purpose of carrying out his or her tasks, the holder of the independent risk controlling function has a complete, unrestricted right to information, as well as a reporting line to the responsible Executive Board member. The Risk section has a total of 15 full-time equivalent (FTE) positions. The Executive Board ensures that the independent risk controlling function is furnished with the staff and resources whose quality and quantity is appropriate in light of the nature and scope of its tasks.

In order to prevent conflicts of interest, the independent risk controlling function is strictly separated from risk-taking units. The independent risk controlling function is integrated in the decision-making process both on the organisational level, through inclusion in the executive structure, and on the process level as part of operational execution of the risk management system, risk reporting, and the implementation and enhancement of the risk management system.

In making decisions, the Executive Board of W&W AG is advised by the Group Board Risk on issues with relevance to risk. The key function holder is a member of the Group Board Risk and to that extent is integrated organisationally into the decision-making process on issues with relevance to risk. The flow of information about the risk situation is assured, in particular, through the annual updating of the risk strategy and related guidelines, the setting of limits, internal risk reporting, risk-bearing capacity calculations, the report on the own-risk and solvency assessment, and the results of the risk inventory.

The Supervisory Board and the Risk and Audit Committee are informed by the Executive Board about the risk situation, in particular, through the presentation of the risk strategy, the internal capital investment policy, the internal risk report, the report on the own-risk and solvency assessment and ad hoc notifications about the risk situation.

Further remarks about the independent risk controlling function are made in Section B.3 "Risk management system, including own-risk and solvency assessment", under "Responsibilities in the risk management system/risk governance".

Compliance function

The compliance function of the Solvency II group, which is based in the Risk and Compliance department, is a part of the internal control system. In this regard, the Solvency II group follows the three-lines-of-defence concept. The business units that are responsible for decentralised risk governance constitute the first line of defence. The second line of defence comprises the independent risk controlling function/risk management function, the compliance function and the actuarial function. Internal audit represents the third line of defence.

As the key function holder, the compliance officer, who is also the head of the Risk and Compliance department, is assisted by the established compliance function in the performance of his or her tasks. The key tasks include complying with the relevant requirements, advising management on compliance with the requirements, monitoring the relevant requirements and identifying and evaluating compliance risks. For the purposes of the objective, fair and independent performance of his or her tasks, the compliance officer has an unrestricted right to information. In addition, he or she is to be granted access to all physical spaces and all IT systems. In the event of material violations of internal or external

rules or requirements, particularly cases of fraud, he or she is to be notified about all indications and findings by the decentralised compliance contact persons, sales compliance officer and, if applicable, compliance units without delay and of their own accord. This regularly takes place in the context of the central Group Compliance Committee or ad hoc.

The Executive Board ensures that the central compliance function is furnished with the staff and resources whose quality and quantity is appropriate in light of the nature, scale and complexity of its tasks. As at the reporting date, the central compliance function had its own FTE positions with the necessary professional qualifications for the purpose of performing the Group-wide compliance tasks. Additional FTE positions in decentralised units are entrusted with compliance tasks. In compliance matters, the compliance officer may avail himself or herself of the resources of all organisational units involved in the compliance function. If the matter being investigated by the compliance officer requires the involvement of external third parties, he or she may engage them on behalf of the company concerned. The employees of the central compliance function work exclusively for compliance.

With regard to his or her employment contract, the compliance officer is tied directly to W&W AG and in organisational terms reports directly to the Executive Board. He or she has no authority to give instructions to the monitored units but is equally not subject to any instructions from them. If the compliance officer is prevented from carrying out an activity properly, he or she notifies the member of the Executive Board or Supervisory Board of the Solvency II group responsible for compliance.

The compliance officer reports quarterly and annually to the responsible member of the Executive Board of the Solvency II group, as well as annually to the Supervisory Board through corresponding compliance reports. In addition, the compliance officer reports to the Group Board Risk about incidents and developments concerning the issue. Furthermore, the compliance officer or the compliance function takes on a training and advisory function for the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board, particularly on key issues.

Further remarks about the independent compliance function are made in Section B.3 "Compliance".

Internal audit

Internal audit for W&W AG is handled by the Group Audit department. The Group Audit department provides audit services for W&W AG and the undertakings of the W&W Group in Germany. The head of the department is the audit function holder. He or she reports directly to the CEO of W&W AG.

As the third line of defence and central function of internal company monitoring, the Audit department is required to audit and evaluate, in a risk-oriented and process-independent manner, the effectiveness and appropriateness of risk management and the internal control system, the regularity of essentially all of the undertaking's processes. In doing so, attention is also paid to aspects of security and profitability. As the Group Audit department, it also ensures compliance with audit requirements. For this purpose, it possesses the necessary audit and information rights, as well as authority to give area-specific instructions.

The powers of internal audit are addressed in the audit rules of procedure enacted Group-wide for all managements. In particular, it sets down an unrestricted information and audit right with respect to all undertakings of the Group. Accordingly, all organisational units must notify internal audit without delay about any material deficiencies, material financial damages, or specific suspicions of irregularities. The rules of procedure also specify that employees of the Audit department may be entrusted solely with audit tasks. The Audit department does not have the authority to give instructions to the audited units, other than immediate measures that may be necessary in the interest of the W&W Group undertakings.

As at the reporting date, the Group Audit department had 33.6 FTE positions with the requisite professional qualifications. In addition, the Group Audit department can, where necessary, also bring in external know-how, while respecting the independence requirements. At least once a year, the advanced training needs of employees are specified in the department in order to ensure in that way that expertise is kept up to date.

Internal audit promptly prepares a written report about every audit, which is addressed to the responsible management. The audit reports describe all identified deficiencies, together with the measures to be taken and the dates for completing them.

In addition, internal audit notifies the responsible member of the W&W AG Executive Board once a month about any audit measures that are due in the area of responsibility. Furthermore, overdue measures are also reported monthly to the CEO of the W&W Group.

Moreover, the Audit department reports quarterly on audit activities and compliance with the audit plan, as well as about any postponed or rescheduled audits that relate to the entire W&W Group and thus also to W&W AG.

This is supplemented by annual reporting on audit activities in the past year, material or serious deficiencies that were identified, and the status of the implementation of measures to eliminate these deficiencies, as well as about compliance with and changes to audit planning. In addition, internal audit gives its opinion on whether the Audit department is furnished with the staff and resources whose quality and quantity are appropriate in light of the nature and scope of its tasks.

Quarterly and annual reporting is also addressed to the parent undertaking's Supervisory Board. In addition, the head of internal audit reports at meetings of the Supervisory Board's Audit Committee. Moreover, the chairman of the supervisory body or of the Audit Committee is entitled, with the involvement of management, to obtain information directly from the head of internal audit.

Actuarial function

The actuarial function for the W&W Group is based in the Actuarial Function department. The key function holder is supported in his or her tasks by other holders of actuarial functions at the individual companies and the employees who report to them.

- The responsible holder of the actuarial functions at W&W AG and Württembergische Versicherung AG is the head of the Actuarial Services & Property and Casualty Reinsurance department.
- The responsible holder of the actuarial function at Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG and at the W&W Group reports directly to the Executive Board of the company. He or she is head of the Actuarial Function (Life) section.
- The responsible holder of the actuarial function at Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG reports directly to the Executive Board of the company. He or she is head of the Actuarial Function (Health) section.

The actuarial function is dependent on being provided with the information necessary to fulfil its duties. In this sense, the actuarial function is to be provided with all required information and documents upon request.

The Executive Board ensures that the actuarial function is furnished with the staff and resources whose quality and quantity is appropriate in light of the nature and scope of its tasks. The actuarial function of the W&W Group is supported by the actuarial functions of the individual undertakings. This applies, in particular, to the key function holders of the life and health insurance company of the W&W Group and the employees who report to it.

In order to ensure the independence of the actuarial function, the Group takes care that tasks with the potential for conflicts of interest are split among different persons and kept separate.

The actuarial function prepares a report for the Executive Board once a year that contains important information for calculating technical provisions, as well as comments about underwriting and acceptance policies and the appropriateness of reinsurance arrangements.

The actuarial functions of the Group and all individual undertakings in the Group meet as a committee at least once a year to exchange information and compare work status. This essentially ensures that a uniform Group approach is taken in the structuring of the actuarial function.

Material changes to the governance system

As a result of integration of the Organisation and IT Management unit into the Group Development and Company Organisation section, the Executive Board's business allocation plan was modified effective 1 January 2020. In connection with the retirement of Dr Michael Gutjahr and the appointment of Alexander Mayer, member of the Executive Board of Württembergische Versicherung AG and Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG, as his successor on the Executive Board of W&W AG, the Supervisory Board enacted a further modification of the Executive Board's business allocation plan effective 1 September 2020.

The statement of compliance with the German Corporate Governance Code was updated effective December 2020. In this regard, explanations were provided for the derogations from the German Corporate Governance Code in the version of 7 February 2017 to 19 March 2020 concerning

- No. 3.8 para. 3 on the setting of a deductible for Supervisory Board members as part of D&O insurance,
- No. 5.3.3 on the formation of a Nomination Committee composed exclusively of shareholder representatives,
- No. 5.4.1 para. 2 on the setting of a regular limit to Supervisory Board members' term of office, and
- No. 7.1.2 sentence 2 on the discussion of interim financial information with the Supervisory Board or its Audit Committee.

In addition, explanations were provided for the derogations from the German Corporate Governance Code in the version starting March 2020 concerning

- Recommendation B.3 on the first-time appointment of Executive Board members for a period of not more than three
- Recommendation D.3 sentence 1 on the establishment of an Audit Committee that addresses the review of the accounting,
- Recommendation D.5 on the formation of a Nomination Committee composed exclusively of shareholder represent-
- Recommendation G.10 sentence 1 on variable remuneration of Executive Board members being granted partly in
- Recommendation G.11 sentence 1 on maximum amounts for individual remuneration components,
- Recommendation G.11 sentence 2 on retaining variable remuneration, if justified, and
- Recommendation G.15 on taking remuneration as a Supervisory Board member into account with regard to remuneration as Executive Board member.

Material transactions during the reporting period

There were no material changes to the shareholder structure of W&W AG. In addition, there were no material transactions during the reporting period with shareholders, with persons who exercise a significant influence on the undertaking or with members of the Executive Board or Supervisory Board.

Remuneration policies and practice

Remuneration policies

The remuneration policies of the insurance undertakings covered by Solvency II are in conformity with the business and risk strategy of the W&W Group. The key document of the W&W Group's strategic alignment is the Group business strategy. It contains targets and planning for material business activities and forms the framework for the Group risk strategy. In the strategy process, particular attention is paid to the consistency between the Group business strategy and the business strategies of the individual companies of the W&W Group. The consistency between the business strategy of the Group and the associated individual undertakings is assured by a strategy process that is coordinated in terms of time and substance.

The remuneration policies and remuneration practice pursue the same objectives as the business and risk strategies and are likewise focused on a sustainable development of the respective undertakings. The remuneration policies of the W&W Group are based on the following principles: The remuneration schemes are consistent with the respective statutory requirements, particularly Article 275 of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35 and the German Corporate Governance Code.

Pursuant to the risk strategy of W&W Group, the remuneration schemes are designed in conformity with the business and risk objectives in such a way that the focus is on long-term financial performance and the prosperity of W&W Group. Harmful incentives and the rewarding of poor performance are to be avoided. The remuneration schemes support the achievement of the strategic targets and are in line with them. This means that targets agreements are derived from the strategic targets. The target flowchart Supervisory Board/Executive Board/employee is designed to ensure this at all times. The total remuneration of management and employees is competitive, i.e. it is structured in such a way that competent, qualified employees can be recruited, retained and motivated as best as possible. This structure of total remuneration thus ensures, on the one hand, that the variable portion can represent an incentive for the purposes of personnel management and, on the other, that employees are not tempted to enter into or settle unreasonably risky transactions. The targets set forth in the targets agreements are primarily focused on sustainability. In the W&W Group, the remuneration schemes and the respective company targets are known, documented and viewable in the staff portal. The structure of the remuneration schemes is reviewed annually for its suitability and modified if necessary.

Remuneration practice

The members of the Supervisory Board are paid exclusively fixed remuneration for their work on the Supervisory Board and the committees, as well as an attendance fee. The amount is set by the Annual General Meeting.

The remuneration of the Executive Board consists of a non-performance-related component (80%) and a performancerelated component (20%). The conservative structure of the total remuneration of Executive Board members in the ratio of 4:1 between fixed and variable remuneration components was chosen because this avoids incentivising individuals to take unreasonably high risks. The portion of fixed remuneration is so high that the company can conduct a flexible remuneration policy in setting variable remuneration, up to the complete forfeiting of variable remuneration in the event of negative contributions to results. Because of the remaining fixed remuneration, the Executive Board members are always in a position to maintain their appropriate standard of living. The non-performance-related component consists of a fixed salary (with pension entitlement) and an allowance. The performance-related component consists of a targets bonus.

Performance-related remuneration is paid out over time in some cases, namely as follows: 40% is paid out in the following year immediately after the degree of target achievement is determined, and the other 60% is deferred for a period of three years and is subject to forfeiture clauses. The deferred amount is paid out only if W&W Group has average IFRS net income of at least €100 million over the relevant three years and does not record a loss in any of the three years. If average consolidated net income falls below the threshold of €100 million, or if the Group records a loss in one or more years, the deferred amount is definitively and completely forfeited for the relevant financial year.

In setting the pay of Executive Board members, the Supervisory Board makes sure that total pay bears an appropriate relationship to the condition of the W&W Group, as well as to the roles and expected performance of an Executive Board member.

Remuneration comparisons are performed in order to determine the appropriate remuneration of an Executive Board member. A comparison with domestic companies in the same industry and with a similar size and complexity shows that total pay is in line with the market.

The remuneration of senior executives on the first executive level of in-house staff below management consists of fixed salary and a performance-related targets bonus in the ratio of 82.5% fixed to 17.5% variable. The remuneration of senior executives below the first executive level of in-house staff is normally consists of fixed salary and a performance-related targets bonus in the ratio of 87.5% fixed to 12.5% variable. For salaried employees in the mobile sales force, remuneration is normally split into a ratio of 2/3 fixed to 1/3 variable or 70% fixed to 30% variable.

It was decided to structure total remuneration in fixed and variable components in order to avoid incentives to take unreasonably high risks. At the same time, the ratio ensures that employees are not significantly dependent on variable remuneration. As the area of responsibility grows, the portion of variable remuneration rises to 17.5% for in-house staff and 33% for employees in the mobile sales force. Fixed remuneration is set by considering the individual's position, tasks and performance, as well as market comparisons and the company's position. This means that total remuneration is competitive and offers a sufficient incentive for the purposes of personnel management.

Employees of the insurance undertakings are remunerated on the basis of the collective bargaining agreement for the private insurance industry. Almost no employees covered by the collective bargaining agreement receive individual variable remuneration.

However, in addition to the fixed pay specified in the collective bargaining agreement, they are entitled as a general rule to a variable portion amounting to 50% of one month's gross salary in accordance with a Group works agreement, provided they belong to the category of entitled persons. The variable portion of employees whose employment contracts do not provide for one is based solely on this Group works agreement. The amount of the bonus depends on the degree to which consolidated net income meets the target. This applies uniformly to employees at Group undertakings. The target figure for consolidated income pursuant to corporate planning as derived from medium-term planning is thus at the same time the target figure for the employee bonus and in this way ensures that the targets of employees are in line with corporate planning.

Some of the employees on the in-house staff and on the mobile sales force who are not remunerated under the collective bargaining agreement are paid individual variable remuneration on the basis of targets agreements, in addition to the aforementioned remuneration components under the collective bargaining agreement. The arrangement is addressed in the works agreement "Introduction and structuring of variable remuneration on the basis of targets agreements". As a general rule, the portion of variable remuneration is less than 20%. In the case of employees on the mobile sales force, the portion of variable remuneration is between 30% and 33% as a general rule.

Variable remuneration below the level of the Executive Board is paid out in full in the second quarter of the following year after determination of the degree of target achievement.

The remuneration practice for key function holders does not deviate from the described remuneration practice.

Individual and collective performance criteria

The performance-related bonus of Executive Board members is linked to a targets agreement system. The amount of the bonus paid to a member of the Executive Board for a concluded financial year depends on the degree to which the relevant company targets, and individual targets were achieved. Company targets correspond to the annual plan adopted by the Supervisory Board of W&W AG. They consist of key performance indicators, such as net income for the year posted by the Group and the individual company, general administrative expenses, Group customers, and employee satisfaction. Individual targets relate to the organisational unit, as well as to individual contributions to results, and they are agreed upon between the individual Executive Board member and the Supervisory Board. Targets are increasingly focused on sustainability. The company targets derived from the business strategy - such as achieving a sustainable return (net income for the year posted by the Group as calculated in accordance with IFRS and by the company as calculated in accordance with the HGB), posting a cost level and cost ratios that are competitive (cost efficiency/general administrative expenses) and boosting employee satisfaction and customer loyalty (market performance) - ensure that the company can continue as a going concern. Profitable growth, while at the same time creating leaner, efficient structures and processes, makes it possible to ensure sustainable earning power. A target for net income for the year after taxes (HGB) is specified for each undertaking/division in order to sustainably generate current and future own fund requirements from profits (internal financing). The sustainability of the targets is additionally supported through predominantly multi-year measurement bases.

The entitlement to payment of the portion of variable remuneration dependent on financial performance (company targets) is excluded if and to the extent that payment in a financial year is prevented by virtue of compelling supervisory reasons at Wüstenrot & Württembergische AG, Württembergische Versicherung AG, Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG or Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG.

The overall concept permits performance-related measurement of the variable remuneration component that is focused on operational targets and thus remuneration that is reasonably in line with performance. The weighting of the measurement parameters for performance-related remuneration is aligned towards stronger consideration being given to components with a multiple-year incentivising effect on sustainability.

The variable remuneration paid to senior executives is likewise tied to a targets agreement system. The company targets are the same as those for the Executive Board/managers. At least 50% of variable remuneration is set on the basis of sustainable criteria.

For senior executives, 40% of the amount of variable remuneration depends on the meeting of annually specified company targets. The remarks about Executive Board members apply with respect to the company targets.

Sixty percent of variable remuneration depends on the achievement of quantitative and qualitative targets agreed upon for the individual or the organisational unit each year. In this regard, individual targets are set that take into consideraNo shares or share options are granted as variable remuneration for the Executive Board or senior executives.

The structure of the individual and collective contributions to results by key function holders does not depart from the described model.

Supplementary pension or early retirement schemes

Supplementary pension or early retirement schemes have not been agreed upon either with members of the Executive Board or with members of the Supervisory Board.

The pension granted to Executive Board members consists of a defined-benefit pension commitment in the form of a fixed amount or of a defined-contribution pension commitment. The pension is normally paid when the member reaches the age of 65 or in the case of disability. Pensions include a widow/widower pension in the amount of 60% of the pension drawn and an orphan's pension of normally 20%.

Supplementary pension or early retirement schemes have also not been agreed upon with key function holders.

The employer-financed occupational pension for employees below the level of the Executive Board consists of definedbenefit pension commitments, which are calculated as a percentage of pensionable income prior to the start of retirement, or of defined-contribution pension commitments, where the contributions are calculated as a percentage of current pensionable income. The pension is normally paid when the employee reaches the age of 65 or in the case of occupational disability. Pensions include a widow/widower pension in the amount of 60% of the pension drawn and an orphan's pension in the range of 15%-20% of the pension drawn for half-orphans and 20%-30% for full orphans.

Additional Group-level information

The implementation of risk management and internal control systems, as well as the reporting system, in a way that is uniform throughout the Group is assured through corresponding organisational and operational arrangements.

- The Group Board Risk is the central body for coordinating risk management Group-wide. For further details, please see Section B.3.
- The internal control system is uniform throughout the Group, and it is coordinated by the Group department Customer Data Protection and Operational Security. For further details, please see Section B.4.
- Transactions within the Group are eliminated as part of consolidation. For further information, please see Chapter D.

With respect to the legal structure and the governance and organisational structure at the Group level, please see the foregoing sections, particularly A.1 and B.1. Please also see the presentation in Section A.1 for a description of the subsidiaries and important related undertakings belonging to the Group.

The organisational and operational structure established in accordance with the principle of proportionality enables the requirements for the risk management and internal controls systems, as well for as the reporting system, to be implemented in a manner that is appropriate to Group needs (see "Risk management framework" in Section B.3).

B.2 Fit and proper requirements

For the purpose of satisfying the fit and proper requirements for persons who effectively run the undertaking or have other key functions, the Solvency II group differentiates between the following groups of persons:

- Managers and Supervisory Board,
- Responsible key function holders

Requirements concerning skills, knowledge and expertise

Executive Board

The Executive Board must have a sufficient amount of theoretical and practical knowledge about the insurance business, as well as management experience. These conditions are normally assumed to be met if the member can demonstrate that he or she worked for three years in an executive position at an insurer of comparable size and type of business. In appointing the Executive Board of W&W AG, it is assured that its members as a whole can demonstrate at professional qualifications, at a minimum, in the following areas:

- Insurance and financial markets,
- Business strategy and business model,
- Governance system,
- Financial analysis and actuarial analysis,
- Regulatory framework and regulatory requirements,

Supervisory Board

The members of the Supervisory Board must be capable in professional terms of appropriately controlling and monitoring the managers and actively assisting in the development of the undertaking. In addition, the Supervisory Board member must be able to understand the business engaged in by the undertaking and evaluate the risks associated with it. The Supervisory Board member must be familiar with the statutory arrangements essential to the undertaking. Although as a general rule, special knowledge is not required, the Supervisory Board member must be capable of recognising his or her need for consultation, if appropriate.

Key function holders

Based on their professional qualifications, knowledge and experience, the responsible persons must at all times be capable of exercising their position in the key function. The requirements for the fitness of responsible key function holders ensue from the descriptions of their respective area of competence within the governance system as a result of national and European standards.

Depending on the key function to be filled (independent risk controlling function, compliance function, internal audit or actuarial function), the holder must demonstrate the corresponding specialised knowledge needed to fulfil the function.

Fit and proper evaluation

Executive Board

The Supervisory Board is responsible for compliance with the fit and proper requirements for the Executive Board.

A job profile exists for each Executive Board position and defines its requirements. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board performs the candidate search based on this profile. Therefore, it is reviewed internally whether the candidate satisfies the supervisory requirements (particularly with respect to whether he or she is fit and proper). For this purpose, the Group Legal department first requests a CV from the candidate, as well as a form provided by the supervisory authority concerning the candidate's personal aptitude, whether he or she has sufficient time to carry out his or her duties, and about other mandates. Based on these documents, as supplemented by the job profile, the Group Legal department reviews whether the candidate is professionally suited to the envisaged Executive Board mandate and has the time required to carry out his or her duties and whether the maximum number of mandates specified by supervisory law is complied with. In this regard, the candidate must also declare that he or she will promptly report to the supervisory authority in writing if changes subsequently occur. If the Group Legal department is of the opinion that the supervisory requirements are met, it sends a positive response to the Supervisory Board chairman, who then initiates the necessary resolution by the body. After initial treatment by the responsible committees, the Supervisory Board reviews on the basis of the job profile and the submitted documents whether the candidate is suitable for the Executive Board position to be filled. In addition, the candidate is interviewed by responsible committees and the Supervisory Board, which gives the bodies the opportunity to make a comprehensive assessment of his or her professional qualification and aptitude. After the responsible committees and the Supervisory Board determine that the candidate is fit and proper, and after carrying out the notification procedure required by supervisory law, the Executive Board member is appointed by the Supervisory Board.

After initial treatment by the Nomination Committee, the Supervisory Board continually reviews the professional qualification of Executive Board members.

In addition, the Executive Board members are asked once a year whether there have been material changes to their aptitude compared with the documents at the time of appointment or reappointment. Considered material are all circumstances that may have an influence on the evaluation of personal aptitude. After initial treatment by the Nomination Committee, the Supervisory Board examines once a year whether the Executive Board members are fit and proper.

The Executive Board is notified by the staff departments on a continual basis about current legal developments and changing requirements with respect to duties in the undertaking and receives advanced training about them.

Supervisory Board

The Annual General Meeting of W&W AG elects the shareholder representatives on the Supervisory Board, in observance of the requirements of supervisory law and stock corporation law.

The Supervisory Board maintains a list of suitable potential candidates for the shareholder representatives on the Supervisory Board. These candidates have already been internally screened in advance for their basic suitability for a Supervisory Board mandate. In the case of a new election or court appointment of a shareholder representative to the Supervisory Board, the Group Legal department, at the proposal of the Supervisory Board chairman, will review whether the candidate satisfies the supervisory requirements (particularly with respect to whether he or she is fit and proper). The review takes place on the basis of the CV, the job profile for Supervisory Board members, and the form concerning the candidate's personal aptitude, whether he or she has sufficient time to carry out his or her duties, and about other mandates. In addition, the review also uses the candidate's self-assessment on the topics of capital investment, actuarial practice and accounting in order to ensure that appropriate diversity of qualifications, knowledge and relevant experience are assured on the Supervisory Board. This ensures that the undertaking is professionally monitored. Then, after initial treatment by the Nomination Committee, the Supervisory Board examines whether the candidate is fit and proper based on the submitted documents (CV, self-assessment, and personal declaration concerning aptitude and other mandates, as well as information from the central commercial register) and the job profile. In the event of a positive evaluation of these criteria, and based on a recommendation by the Nomination Committee, the Supervisory Board submits a corresponding nomination to the Annual General Meeting or an application for court appointment.

The employees elect the employee representatives on the Supervisory Board in accordance with the rules of co-determination law.

Following appointment, new Supervisory Board members (shareholder representatives and employee representatives on the Supervisory Board) are notified to the supervisory authority, together with submission of the required documents (CV, self-assessment, information about aptitude, official certificate of good conduct, information from the central commercial register).

After initial treatment by the Nomination Committee, the Supervisory Board routinely reviews the knowledge, skills and experience of the Supervisory Board members and the body as a whole. For this purpose, the Supervisory Board members evaluate, inter alia, their strengths in the fields of capital investment, actuarial practice and accounting by means of a self-assessment. After initial treatment by the Nomination Committee, this forms the basis for a development plan that the Supervisory Board prepares each year. The plan identifies areas where the Supervisory Board as a whole or its individual members wish to acquire more in-depth knowledge. The self-assessment and the development plan are forwarded to the supervisory authority. Where a need exists, training is provided on the topics concerned.

In addition, the Supervisory Board members are asked once a year whether there have been material changes to their aptitude compared with the documents at the time of appointment or reappointment. Considered material are all circumstances that may have an influence on the evaluation of personal aptitude. After initial treatment by the Nomination Committee, the Supervisory Board examines once a year whether the Supervisory Board members are fit and

The Supervisory Board regularly reviews the efficiency of its work.

Key function holders

W&W AG has established processes to ensure that the fit and proper requirements are satisfied at the time of initial evaluation, as well as in connection with the ongoing exercise of the key function.

As part of the selection procedure, the candidates must submit various documents that can be used to evaluate whether they are fit and proper (inter alia, CV, certificate of good conduct, information from the central commercial register, information concerning aptitude). Based on these documents, the Group Legal department reviews whether the candidate is fit and proper. If necessary, additional records may be examined, such as certificates concerning professional education and previous jobs and records concerning advanced training. The review compares the candidate's specific experience and qualifications with the requirements of the respective key position. If the requirements are met, and after the notification procedure required by supervisory law has been carried out by the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin), the Executive Board appoints the person responsible for the key function.

Also, during the ongoing performance of tasks, it is evaluated and documented whether the responsible person is fit and proper for a key function. Key function holders confirm once a year that they continue to satisfy the requirements with respect to their qualification, aptitude and integrity. If special indications become apparent during the year that a responsible person no longer satisfies the fit and proper requirements for a key function, an unscheduled review takes place. This may be the case, e.g. if there are reasons to assume that the person concerned cannot fulfil his or her duties properly.

B.3 Risk management system, including own-risk and solvency assessment

Risk management system

The risk management and controlling system comprises the totality of all organisational regulations and measures that have been established to identify risks at an early stage and to handle the risks associated with entrepreneurial activity. Risk controlling is a part of risk management and includes the assessment, evaluation, monitoring and reporting of the risks encountered by the entities assuming them. It also monitors risk governance measures.

In accordance with the principle of proportionality, the scale and intensity of risk management activities are determined according to the risk level of the business engaged in.

The principles and configuration elements of the risk management system as well as our general treatment of material risks are described below.

Risk management framework

The principles and design elements of the risk management system are set down in writing in various internal documents, which in their entirety constitute our risk management framework.

The integrated risk strategy establishes the strategic framework of the risk management system of the W&W Group. The risk management system is an integral component of a proper and effective business organisation. As part of this framework, definitions are established for risk appetite, which derived from the business strategy and the risk profile, for the overall risk objectives and for the application of consistent standards, methods, procedures and tools. The integrated risk strategy is in line with the business strategy and on the principles for long-term protection of the company as a going concern. It takes into account the nature, scale, complexity and risk content of the business conducted by the W&W Group.

The basic conditions specified in the integrated risk strategy contribute to securing the long-term entrepreneurial capacity to act and to promoting the Group-wide risk culture. The aim is to maintain an appropriate balance between taking advantage of business opportunities and incurring risks, while ensuring the effectiveness of the Group-wide risk management system. The risk strategy is adopted by the Executive Board and discussed by the Supervisory Board at least once a year.

As the key guideline for risk management, the Group risk policy defines the organisational framework for risk management and is a prerequisite for an effective risk management system within the W&W Group. This framework ensures that the standard of quality is comparable across all business areas and that risk management is highly consistent. As a key component of the common risk culture, the Group risk policy and the processes and systems defined in it promote the requisite risk awareness at the level of the W&W Group and its individual undertakings. The central elements of the Group-wide risk culture are:

- Leadership culture with a role model function ("tone from the top"),
- Open communication and critical dialogue,
- Responsibility of employees, and
- Appropriate incentive structures.

The Executive Board and senior managers shape the risk culture of the W&W Group decisively through their management style and handling of risks.

In addition, the W&W Group and its individual undertakings also have topic-specific risk management policies in place concerning investment risk, asset/liability management (ALM), liquidity risk, operational risk and underwriting risk, as well other rules. The policies and other rules in risk management are subject to a standardised process of review and updating.

The subsidiaries of W&W AG are integrated into the scope of risk consolidation and the Group-wide risk management system in accordance with statutory and regulatory provisions. The scale and intensity of risk management activities vary depending on the risk content of the business conducted and on its nature, scale and complexity. The implementation of a risk classification procedure (risk classes 1 to 5) enables a risk-oriented structure of the risk management system in accordance with the principle of proportionality. The following companies are currently assigned to risk class 1 or 2:

Risk class 1:

- · Wüstenrot & Württembergische AG,
- Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG,
- Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG,
- · Württembergische Versicherung AG,

Risk class 2:

- Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG,
- Allgemeine Rentenanstalt Pensionskasse AG,
- W&W Asset Management GmbH,
- W&W Informatik GmbH,
- W&W Service GmbH.
- · Wüstenrot Haus- und Städtebau GmbH,

The inclusion of companies in risk classes 3 to 5 in the management system of the W&W Group is undertaken pursuant to the proportionality principle and is ensured directly by the risk controlling of the respective parent undertaking.

Effective 1 April 2020, control of Wüstenrot stavební spořitelna a.s. and Wüstenrot hypoteční banka a.s. was transferred to MONETA Money Bank a.s. as new owner of the companies after the supervisory authorities in the Czech Republic had given their approval.

In June 2020, the takeover of Aachener Bausparkasse AG was finalised with its merger into Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG. Aachener Bausparkasse AG has been included in the Group-wide risk management system since the transfer of control to Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG.

Responsibilities in the risk management system/risk governance

Our risk governance aims at managing our risks throughout the Group and at the level of the individual undertaking. At the same time, it is intended to ensure that our overall risk profile corresponds to the objectives of the risk strategy.

The tasks and responsibilities of all persons and committees involved in risk management issues are defined. Within the organisational and operational structure, the individual areas of responsibility for all of the following bodies, committees and functions are defined, as well as their interfaces and reporting lines among one another, thus ensuring the regular and timely flow of information across all levels of the W&W AG and its subsidiaries.

The Executive Board of W&W AG bears overall responsibility for the proper business organisation at the level of the W&W Group. It is also the ultimate decision-making body on risk issues. This includes ensuring that the risk management system established Group-wide is effectively and appropriately implemented, maintained and enhanced. This also includes developing, promoting and integrating an appropriate risk culture. The Chief Risk Officer (CRO) is responsible for risk management on the Executive Board of W&W AG.

In its role as the control body overseeing the Executive Board, the Supervisory Board of W&W AG also monitors the appropriateness and effectiveness of the risk management system, as well as implementation of the risk strategy, including risk appetite, at the level of the W&W Group. It meets at least four times a year, and receives information about the current risk situation at regular meetings as well as in connection with ad hoc risk reporting. The Risk and Audit Committee meets at least twice a year and assures itself that the organisation of risk management is appropriate in the respective areas of responsibility. It reports to the Supervisory Board on this. Additional teleconferences or meetings are held where necessary.

Compliance with internal governance rules is ensured, inter alia, by means of the internal governance body structure. The Group Board Risk is a key element of this structure. As the central body for the coordination of risk management, the Group Board Risk supports the Executive Board of W&W AG and the Management Board in risk issues. The permanent members of the Group Board Risk are the CRO of W&W AG and the CROs of the Housing and Insurance divisions. Other members of this body are the (independent) risk controlling function of W&W AG, which also handles the responsibilities on behalf of the Solvency II group, the two (independent) risk controlling functions of the Housing and Insurance divisions and select observers. The body meets once a month and, where necessary, on an ad hoc basis. The Group Board Risk monitors the risk profile of W&W AG and the W&W Group, as well as their appropriate capitalisation and liquidity. Moreover, it advises on Group-wide risk organisation standards and on the deployment of risk management methods and tools that are uniform throughout the Group, and it proposes these to the respective executive boards for approval.

Moreover, the Group Board Risk acts as the interface between the risk boards of the Insurance and Housing divisions. In the sense of Group-wide corporate governance, the Group Board risk is superior to the division risk boards. The risks associated with the brandpool division are taken into account in Group-wide risk management in accordance with the principle of proportionality.

As specified internally at W&W, the duties assigned under Solvency II to the administrative, management or supervisory body are performed by the Executive Board, by the Supervisory Board with the Risk and Audit Committee, and by the Group Board Risk in accordance with their respective responsibilities. The Executive Board of W&W AG has overall responsibility for proper implementation of the requirements.

Group-wide committees have been set up to handle certain (risk) topics in detail:

- A Group Liquidity Committee has been established for Group-wide liquidity management. It consists of representatives of the individual undertakings.
 - It is responsible for managing and monitoring liquidity Group-wide.
- Another central body, the Group Compliance Committee, serves as the link between the Legal, Compliance, Customer Data Protection and Operational Security, Audit and Risk Management departments.
 - The compliance officer regularly reports directly to the Executive Board of W&W AG and to the Group Board Risk about compliance-related matters and risks.
- The Group Credit Committee works Group-wide for the purpose of efficiently processing proposals for loan decisions in the institutional area.
- Group-wide information security management is the responsibility of the Group Security Committee.

Key and control functions have been implemented in the business organisation, structured in the form of three lines of defence:

- The business units that are responsible for decentralised risk governance constitute the first line of defence. Within the scope of their competencies, these units deliberately decide to assume or avoid risks. In this context, they must observe centrally determined standards, risk limits and risk lines as well as the adopted risk strategies. Compliance with these competencies and standards is monitored by means of internal controls.
- The second line of defence comprises the independent risk controlling function/risk management function, the compliance function and the actuarial function:
 - The (independent) risk controlling function or risk management function handles in particular the operational implementation of risk management and reports to management on the overall risk profile, among other matters. The Risk and Compliance department at W&W AG (Risk section) is responsible for risk management at the level of the W&W Group and W&W AG.
 - The compliance function is responsible for adequate legal monitoring and for the effectiveness of the compliance with internal and external regulations. The compliance function is supported in the operational performance of its tasks by the Risk and Compliance department (Compliance section) at W&W AG.
- The actuarial function ensures correct calculation of the technical provisions, among other duties, and assists the relevant (independent) risk controlling function or risk management function in risk assessment. For the Solvency II group, the actuarial function is carried out at the level of W&W AG by the head of the Risk Management Life and Health Insurance and Actuarial Management section of Württembergische Versicherung AG.
- Internal audit represents the third line of defence. It independently audits the appropriateness and effectiveness of the internal control system as well as the effectiveness of corporate processes, including the first two lines of defence. The internal audit tasks are performed by the Group Audit department at W&W AG. The head of this unit acts as the responsible function holder.

Persons or business lines charged with exercising this function must be able to perform their tasks objectively, fairly and independently. For this reason, they are set up as strictly separate from risk-taking units (functional separation to avoid conflicts of interest). This principle is already observed at the Executive Board level by means of stringent bylaws and assignment of responsibilities.

The Risk and Compliance department at W&W AG provides advice and support to the Group Board Risk in determining risk management standards that are uniform throughout the Group. The department is also responsible for preparing and processing risk management information.

Independent risk controlling function

The Risk section in the Risk and Compliance department performs the tasks of the independent risk controlling function for the W&W Group. The head of the section acts as the key function holder pursuant to Section 26 of the German Act on the Supervision of Insurance Undertakings (VAG). In addition, the individual undertakings engaged in operational business have their own (independent) risk controlling functions, which work closely with the independent risk controlling function of the W&W Group.

The independent risk controlling function holder of the W&W Group takes part in the meetings of the Group Board Risk and is thus involved organisationally in decision-making on risk-relevant issues. Proposed decisions with relevance to risk are furnished with a notation for initial treatment by the Group Board Risk or with a notation for coordination by the independent risk controlling function. In addition, he or she also takes part in meetings of the Risk Board in the Housing (Wüstenrot) and Insurance (Württembergische) divisions. The independent risk controlling function is also represented by its employees on the committees that report to the Group Board Risk (Group Credit Committee, Group Liquidity Committee, Group Compliance Committee and Group Security Committee).

In addition to the aforementioned organisational matters, the independent risk controlling function provides continuous input for decision-making on risk-relevant matters through the risk management control loop. This covers, in particular, the regular treatment of risk strategy tasks and the assignment of them where warranted by events, including:

- developing the risk strategy,
- performing risk limit planning,
- participating in strategic asset allocation and new product processes,
- carrying out special projects on risk topics.

Risk management process

In the W&W Group, and its operational subsidiaries, an iterative risk management process has been established for risk-oriented corporate governance, which can be broken down into the sub-processes of risk identification, risk assessment, risk taking and risk governance, risk monitoring and risk reporting. The risk strategy requirements for all subprocesses of the risk management process are described in the following sections.

Risk identification

In connection with the risk inventory process, the corporate and working environment is constantly monitored throughout the Group for potential risks, and identified risks must be reported without delay. This makes a decisive contribution to promoting an appropriate risk culture. A uniform, Group-wide new-product process has been implemented for the purposes of identifying risks associated with the introduction of new products and sales channels and with the cultivation of new markets. This process incorporates the risk controlling units at the level of the Group and the individual undertakings.

Risks are systematically identified in the course of the annual risk inventory and during reviews of the risk situation throughout the year, as warranted by events. Here, assumed or potential risks are continually recorded, updated and documented. On the basis of an initial assessment for the respective individual undertaking, defined threshold values are used to differentiate risks into material and immaterial risks. Also evaluated is the extent to which individual risks can take on a material character through interaction or accumulation (risk concentrations).

Risks that are classified as material are actively managed in the four steps of the risk management process described in more detail in the following. For risks that are classified as immaterial, the responsible business units monitor them during the year, using (early-warning) risk indicators in order to determine whether they have changed, and evaluate them in full at least once a year.

Risk assessment

This process step includes all methods, processes and systems that serve to adequately assess identified risks. Risks are largely assessed by means of a stochastic procedure using the value-at-risk standard. If this procedure cannot be used for certain risk areas, analytical computational procedures or regulatory standard procedures are applied, as well as expert estimates.

Material risks are assessed quarterly on a regular schedule. Depending on the type of risk, different risk measurement procedures are used to evaluate them in quantitative terms:

- Under Solvency II, the standard formula is used to calculate the supervisory capital requirement for market risk, counterparty default risk, underwriting risk and operational risk. In the process, risks from credit institutions are measured pursuant to the own fund requirements specified by banking regulations.
- In addition, the risk capital requirements for market price risk, business risk (particularly pool risks in the area of home loan savings business), counterparty credit risk, underwriting risk and operational risk are quantified with a proprietary economic model based in large part on a stochastic risk simulation, using value at risk (VaR) with a confidence level of 99.5% and a one-year time horizon.
- Sensitivity and scenario analyses are also conducted for specific risk areas and across risk areas. Analyses of key performance indicators augment the set of tools for assessing risks.

Risk taking and risk governance

We define risk governance as the operational implementation of risk strategies in the risk-bearing business units. The decision to assume risk is made within the scope of business strategy and risk strategy requirements by the decisionmaking body in each individual undertaking. Based on the risk strategy, the respective specialist sections manage their own risk positions. Thresholds, signal systems, and limit and line systems are used to support risk governance. If the specified thresholds are exceeded, predefined actions or escalation processes are initiated.

As a rule, the entity that assumed the risks is responsible for governing and controlling them. In performing this task, it decides about products and transactions. It must continuously check whether the assumed risks are in conformity with the risk profile specified by the risk strategy of the W&W Group or the respective individual undertaking and whether risk-bearing capacity as well as the risk limits and risk lines are observed. Risk-taking and risk-monitoring tasks are strictly separated in terms of function.

The sufficiency of risk capitalisation is evaluated on several dimensions, which as a rule are equally weighted but highlight different objectives and aspects:

- The economic perspective assesses risk coverage capacity, i.e. permanent assurance of the undertaking's substance in order to protect first-rate creditors against losses from an economic standpoint.
- The normative perspective looks at compliance with the regulatory minimum requirements for risk capitalisation in order to be able to continue business operations as planned.

While the economic and financial risk-bearing capacity concept has been developed and parameterised internally, the regulatory procedure follows the externally specified methodology.

Risk monitoring

In order to identify risks early on, risk indicators are employed to monitor changes in the risk situation. Such indicators include financial and risk indicators (e.g. risk-bearing capacity ratios, limit utilisations), supervisory indicators (e.g. capital ratios) and market indicators (e.g. equity prices, credit spreads).

Material, quantifiable risks are controlled by means of limits and lines. Limits are set at most in the amount that permits compliance with the respective minimum ratios for economic risk-bearing capacity even where the limits are maxed out. Business is transacted solely within the scope of these limits and lines. A corresponding limit and line system has been established, which limits, in particular, risk concentrations.

The monitoring of risks, which is independent of the assumption of risks, primarily takes place at the level of the individual undertaking.

Where material risks exist that affect more than just the individual undertaking, they are also monitored at the Group

level. Monitoring activities are used to develop recommendations for action, which lead to corrective intervention being taken early on with respect to the objectives set forth in the business and risk strategy and are subject to corresponding measures controlling.

Risk reporting

The Executive Board has written rules specifying, in particular, the content to be reported, the report recipients, and the schedule for internal risk reporting, as well as rules on ad hoc reporting. This ensures regular, timely reporting about the risk position of the W&W Group and the individual undertakings.

In this regard, the flow of information concerning the risk situation is accomplished through internal risk reporting, risk inventory and calculation of risk-bearing capacity. The results of the W&W Group and its individual undertakings are transmitted to the responsible risk controlling function, which then aggregates them and analyses them for their impact on the individual undertakings and the W&W Group.

The key element of the risk reporting system is the quarterly overall risk report, which is sent to the Group Board Risk, the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board. Presented in this report are, in particular, the amount of available own funds, regulatory and economic capital adequacy, compliance with limits and lines, the results of stress testing and the risk governance measures that have already been taken and that still need to be taken. Also reported on in this connection are significant trends in early-warning risk indicators. This overall risk report is presented to the Group Board Risk and discussed with respect to risk assessment. On this basis, action recommendations and measures are established where necessary for the W&W Group, which are then implemented and tracked by the responsible risk management units.

Depending on how critical it is, information that is considered material from the standpoint of risk is forwarded immediately to the Group Board Risk, the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board. Processes and reporting procedures have been put in place for internal ad hoc risk reporting at the Group and the level of the individual undertaking. Quantitative criteria are used as thresholds, which as a rule are in line with internal and supervisory parameters. In addition, pertinent ad hoc risk reporting takes place when qualitatively material events occur.

Furthermore, the general public is informed about the risk situation in the W&W Group, inter alia, by means of the risk report in the Annual Report and the Solvency and Financial Condition Report. The reports are made available for download on the company website by all interested readers.

Own-risk and solvency assessment

The own-risk and solvency assessment is performed at least once a year. A scheduled own-risk and solvency assessment (ORSA) process is undertaken as at 31 December. If risk-bearing capacity changes substantially, an ORSA process is also considered during the year. The ORSA process culminates in the ORSA report, which is approved by the Executive Board and then submitted to the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin) within 14 days. An ORSA report for the W&W Group and a separate ORSA report for each of the relevant insurance undertakings are prepared.

All requirements concerning responsibilities and the performance of this process are the subject of the ORSA policy. It defines the individual process steps and their delimitation, the organisational and operational structure, and the roles and responsibilities of the included units on the Group level and the level of the individual undertaking. In addition, it sets minimum standards for data and documentation requirements.

The ORSA policy is subject to a standardised process for reviewing and updating the risk management policies. It is reviewed and, if necessary, modified at least once a year as well as in the event of material changes to the risk profile. Following discussion in the Group Board Risk, the modified ORSA policy is enacted by the Executive Board and published on the W&W intranet.

Content of the ORSA

To ensure that the ORSA meets the internal and regulatory objectives, it links the processes concerning business and risk strategy, corporate planning (including capital planning), corporate governance and risk management. Content of the ORSA process covers, inter alia:

- Assessment of the risk management system with respect to the required modifications to the organisation and oper-
- Assessment of the methods applied for risk measurement, stress tests, forecasts and own fund planning, as well as for calculating technical provisions,
- Assessment of the material drivers, risk-bearing capacity and the meeting of the supervisory Solvency Capital Requirement,
- Assessment of the risk governance measures with respect to compliance with the risk appetite specified by the Executive Board,
- Assessment of the ORSA process with respect to required changes or enhancements.

Calculation methods for determining risk capital requirements and risk-adequate capitalisation (capital adequacy)

The assessment of risk-adequate capitalisation focuses on several perspectives as part of the ORSA.

Supervisory capital adequacy measures compliance with the regulatory minimum requirements for risk capitalisation in order to be able to continue business operations as planned. The statutory Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) and Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR), as well as own funds (ASM), are calculated using the supervisory standard approach prescribed by EIOPA. Here, capital adequacy is assessed by comparing the capital-solvency margin relation resulting from ASM and SCR or MCR with supervisory and internally specified minimum ratios.

Economic capital adequacy assesses risk coverage capacity, i.e. permanent assurance of the undertaking's substance in order to protect first-rate creditors against losses from an economic standpoint. Here, the risk capital requirements are calculated using a stochastic risk simulation. If this is not possible, risk capital requirements are assessed deterministically or qualitatively using value at risk (VaR) with a confidence level of 99.5% and a one-year time horizon. With respect to economic capital adequacy, the aim is to achieve an economic risk-bearing capacity ratio (ratio of capital available for risk coverage to risk capital requirements) of more than 145%.

Stress tests and scenario analyses are performed to estimate possible ranges of risk trends as at the reporting date under changed assumptions and basic conditions.

Integration in the organisational structure

The ORSA process is integrated in the existing organisational structure across various levels:

- The Executive Board of W&W AG has overall responsibility for establishing and implementing the ORSA for the W&W Group. It confirms the proper performance, and it assures itself of the accuracy and completeness of the results. The CRO is responsible for planning, coordinating and carrying out the ORSA process. He or she is entitled to make changes to the ORSA process and decides whether to carry out an ad hoc ORSA. In addition, he or she reports to the Group Executive Board on the meetings of the Group Board Risk.
- In accordance with current statutory rules and internal company provisions, the responsibility of the Supervisory Board (or its sub-committees) of W&W AG as governance body also extends to the ORSA process. The Supervisory Board is notified by the Executive Board about the course of the process and its material results. Note is taken of the ORSA report.
- The Group Board Risk assists the Executive Board on ORSA questions and prepares decisions. It monitors the operational ORSA process, analyses results, and recommends or arranges for measures concerning process management. The Group Board Risk also acts as an escalation centre.
- The independent risk controlling function coordinates the carrying out and documentation of the ORSA process.
- In addition, all key functions and each responsible specialist section are involved in the ORSA process on specific topics. For instance, the underwriting function makes contributions to the ORSA report concerning technical provisions and about reinsurance and the underwriting policy. The compliance function assesses compliance risks. Group controlling is responsible for capital planning.

Integration in the operational structure and decision-making processes

The ORSA links the processes concerning business and risk strategy, corporate planning (including capital planning), corporate governance and risk management.

- The strategic requirements concerning corporate and risk governance are set in the business strategy process and, derived from this, in the risk strategy process. Findings made as part of the ORSA are taken into account when reviewing the business and risk strategy, particularly as concerns capital adequacy and the assessment of the risk
- The business strategy and risk strategy requirements are operationalised and reviewed through the planning process, whose main elements are multi-year financial planning focusing on the income statement and balance sheet, as well as own funds planning. For its part, the planning process is tied to the concurrent planning of risk limits. The consistency of the results is assured through the mutual exchange of information as part of the ongoing processes.
- The operational implementation of the plan targets is monitored through ongoing controlling processes. In this regard, by means of the governance cockpit as well as twice a year on the basis extrapolations to year-end, it is reviewed whether the planned development is being achieved. In the case of deviations, governance measures are considered and, where necessary, initiated.
- An iterative risk management process has been established for risk-oriented corporate governance, which includes, in particular, the monitoring of the risk profile and quarterly reporting. The ORSA process draws on the results of the risk management process and reviews the appropriateness of the risk management system.

B.4 Internal control system

General remarks about the internal control system (ICS)

The W&W Group specifies a uniform procedure for the internal control system for the undertakings that are relevant from the standpoint of risk. This procedure was approved by the Management Board of the W&W Group for the undertakings represented on it. The undertakings not represented on the Management Board have made the Group-wide ICS procedure binding on them through corresponding approvals.

The executive board of each undertaking is responsible for compliance with the requirements. The respective specialist sections at the undertakings are responsible for operational implementation of the requirements.

The required processes for the material components of the internal control system have been established in the W&W Group and implemented in any appropriate manner.

Elements of the internal control system

Risk identification

As part of the ICS procedure at each undertaking, the risks identified and monitored by the persons in charge of the process are given consideration either when warranted by events or as part of a review that takes place annually. The risk strategy of W&W AG and the Group risk policy of the W&W Group form the overarching framework for risk identification in the W&W Group.

Risk assessment

The risks identified by the persons in charge of the process at each undertaking are assessed using the risk relevance matrix applicable to their undertaking. The criteria for assessing the ICS relevance of risks are a risk's probability of occurrence and impact.

In order to minimise ICS-relevant risks, the specialist section defines appropriate controls, performs control activities and documents the controls, including the control result, in a uniform manner that is comprehensible to a third party.

If deficiencies are discovered when performing control activities, the person performing the control documents them and, in coordination with the person in charge of the process, remedies them. The control documentation records the measures being used to remedy the deficiency, how long it will take to do so, and how any resulting increased risk potential is being handled until the deficiency is remedied.

If the deficiency cannot be remedied by the specialist section on its own or poses a threat to existence, it is considered to be material. In such case, the escalation process described below is to be initiated.

Effectiveness testing

The effectiveness of the control activities is reviewed by the specialist section by means of effectiveness testing, which is to be performed on an annual basis. In doing so, it analyses whether the control was performed as specified and is effective. Effectiveness is assessed on the basis of the documented control activities.

If deficiencies are discovered when performing testing activities, the person performing the effectiveness test documents them and, in coordination with the person in charge of the process, remedies them. The testing documentation records the measures being used to remedy the deficiency, how long it will take to do so and how any resulting increased risk potential is being handled until the deficiency is remedied.

If the deficiency cannot be remedied by the specialist section on its own or poses a threat to existence, it is considered to be material. In such case, the escalation process described below is to be initiated.

Test of design

In the annual test of design, the specialist department at each undertaking reviews, assesses and, using specified forms, explicitly confirms that the ICS procedure in effect was complied with by the respective area of responsibility during the past year. In addition, each specialist section reviews the risks, controls, effectiveness tests and role assignments in the ICS procedure for whether they are up to date, modifies them if necessary, and suitably documents them. In the event of a negative assessment, the central ICS office in the W&W Group decides on a case-by-case basis on how to proceed, taking risk aspects into account.

Escalation process

If a material deficiency is discovered by the specialist section at the respective undertaking in connection with control or testing activities, it is escalated and documented by the specialist section. In addition, the central ICS office in the W&W Group is promptly notified. Until the deficiency is remedied by the specialist section, the ICS office reports regularly to the Group Board Risk, internal audit and the compliance function of the W&W Group.

Audit function

As part of ongoing audit work, the Audit department audits the proper implementation of the ICS procedures by the individual specialist sections at each undertaking. It also analyses any identified deficiencies and takes the findings into consideration, if necessary, with regard to further audit planning.

Compliance

The compliance function is a material element of the compliance management system in the Solvency II group. It is part of the internal control system. In this regard, the Solvency II group follows the three-lines-of-defence concept.

Accordingly, employees and senior managers in the first line of defence are responsible for identifying, analysing and controlling risks in day-to-day operational business. The compliance function of the Solvency II group acts as the second line of defence. The compliance officer bears operational responsibility for the compliance function. The compliance management system and the tasks, responsibilities and material processes of the compliance function are addressed in the compliance policy, as is the monitoring of compliance with statutory, supervisory and internal requirements. The compliance policy is reviewed on a regular basis, but at least once a year, for whether it is up to date. If necessary, it is enhanced and, if the case of material changes, then approved by the Executive Board. The compliance management system is enhanced on a regular basis and adjusted to meet changing basic conditions. In addition, as the third line of defence, the Group Audit department regularly monitors the compliance management system.

Because of the high number of legal provisions on both the national and European level, the compliance function is compelled to document and analyses new developments and changes in a systematic manner. The Solvency II group has established a so-called "compliance control loop" in order, on the one hand, to observe corresponding legal obligations and, on the other, to avoid unlawful conduct. In addition, the monitoring approach was continually enhanced during the reporting year. A web-based workflow procedure is deployed to ensure appropriate processing and documentation. In this regard, the compliance function is required to monitor compliance with the material obligations relevant to the Solvency II group and changes to the legal environment and to work toward their compliance. In addition, new and changing legal obligations and internal change projects are identified and continuously monitored in accordance with defined criteria. The compliance function is also tasked with identifying the specialist sections responsible for complying with and implementing legal provisions. Finally, as part of the compliance control loop, the compliance function also handles the assessment of the appropriateness and effectiveness of the measures necessary for compliance with material legal provisions and amendments to legal provisions or internal change projects.

The compliance function is authorised to specify control and monitoring actions that may result from the analysis of implementation results or ad hoc. In addition, the compliance function prepares a monitoring plan oriented toward risks and performs the planned monitoring actions accordingly.

In addition to the compliance officer himself or herself, a neutral attorney (ombudsman) is available to all members of the undertaking should they learn of possible legal violations or any actions that may be damaging to the undertaking. In this regard, the compliance function is responsible for disseminating information in the Solvency II group.

B.5 Internal audit function

Internal audit for the W&W Group is handled by the Group Audit department. The Group Audit department provides audit services for the parent undertaking W&W AG and the undertakings of the W&W Group in Germany or assists local audits at the subsidiaries. It reports directly to the CEO of W&W AG. The head of the Group Audit department is appointed as the audit key function holder for W&W AG and the W&W Group. He or she does not perform any other activities with relevance to supervision.

The Group Audit department and its employees do not handle any non-audit tasks whatsoever, thus assuring the independence of the Audit department. The objectivity of the auditors is assured through extensive quality management within the Audit department, as well as through a waiting period when employees switch from operational areas to the Group Audit department.

The tasks and powers of the Group Audit department are set down in audit rules of procedure, which are applicable throughout the Group. Accordingly, as the central function of internal corporate monitoring for all undertakings of the W&W Group and thus also for the company, the Group Audit department must systematically and methodically review and assess, in particular,

- the appropriateness and effectiveness of the risk management system,
- the appropriateness, functioning, effectiveness and efficiency of essentially all processes,
- the appropriateness, functioning and effectiveness of the ICS established by the specialist sections at the order of management,
- the regularity, functioning and security of IT systems and the finance and accounting system, and
- the compliance with statutory, supervisory and company requirements,

taking into account the nature, scale, complexity and risk content of the business activities. In addition, it must monitor the timely remedying of any identified deficiencies. Furthermore, it assures compliance with audit requirements, particularly at the decentralised audit units of the domestic subsidiaries. For this purpose, it possesses the necessary audit and information rights, as well as authority to give technical instructions.

These rules of procedure set down an unrestricted information and audit right with respect to all undertakings of the Group. Accordingly, all organisational units must notify internal audit without delay about any material deficiencies, material financial damages, or specific suspicions of irregularities. The Audit department does not have the authority to give instructions to the audited units, other than immediate measures that may be necessary in the interest of the W&W Group undertakings.

The audit activities are based on an audit manual that defines all material business activities of the individual undertakings of the W&W Group. The audit manual is reviewed at least once a year for whether it is complete and up to date. Audit planning is performed on the basis of a documented risk assessment of the structures, processes and systems to be audited. Statutory requirements, requirements of the management, and risk appraisals by third parties (e.g. risk management) are taken into consideration. Audit issues and the audit schedule are set down in a multi-year plan. The multi-year plan is updated annually and forms the starting point for audit planning for the next financial year. In connection with annual planning, it is ensured that the necessary unscheduled audits (ad hoc audits) can be carried out on short notice.

A report is prepared for each audit and submitted to the responsible management. Measures to remedy identified deficiencies (including responsibilities and implementation dates) are agreed upon from the audits. Implementation of the measures is monitored by internal audit on an ongoing basis. The Group Audit department reports monthly to the Executive Board member responsible for the mandate concerned about uncompleted measures that are due. Moreover, pastdue measures are reported monthly to the company's outsourcing officer and to the CEO of the W&W Group.

In addition, the Group Audit department reports quarterly to the Executive Board of W&W AG and to other key function holders about audit activities in the entire W&W Group during the past quarter, the implementation of the audit plan, and any changes to the audit plan. This is supplemented by annual reporting on audit activities in the past year, material or serious deficiencies that were identified, and the status of the implementation of measures to eliminate these deficiencies, as well as about compliance with and changes to audit planning. In addition, internal audit gives its opinion in the annual report on whether the Audit department is furnished with the staff and resources whose quality and quantity are appropriate in light of the nature and scope of its duties.

Quarterly and annual reporting is also addressed to the Supervisory Board of W&W AG. In addition, the head of internal audit reports at meetings of the Supervisory Board and the Audit Committee. Moreover, the chairman of the supervisory body or of the Audit Committee is entitled, with the involvement of management, to obtain information directly from the head of internal audit

B.6 Actuarial function

In the W&W Group, a policy has been drafted for the actuarial functions that fall under Solvency II that addresses, inter alia, the basic conditions for the organisational and operational structure, as well as the material tasks of the actuarial functions.

The responsible actuarial function holder in the W&W Group heads the Actuarial Function section and, in addition, is the responsible actuarial function holder at Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG. He or she is supported in his or her tasks by other holders of actuarial functions at the individual companies and the employees who report to them.

The actuarial functions of the Group and all individual undertakings in the Group meet as a committee at least once a year to exchange information and compare work status. This essentially ensures that a uniform Group approach is taken in the structuring of the actuarial function.

The organisational integration of the actuarial functions is described in Section B.1 in connection with key functions.

B.7 Outsourcing

The following business policy principles apply to outsourcings:

- The basic decision to outsource is made on the basis of financial considerations by the Executive Board as part of the development of the business strategy.
- Outsourcing in the sense of a centralisation of functions in the W&W Group is undertaken, in particular, where pooling can result in measurable advantages in terms of experience and efficiency.

- Outsourcings are essentially undertaken within the Group.
- · In areas in which the W&W Group is unable to reach market benchmarks over the long term, external outsourcing is

Policies and the outsourcing requirements are addressed in a binding fashion with the W&W standard for outsourcing. This ensures compliance with the statutory, regulatory and in-house requirements to be taken into consideration. At the same time, the clear definition of the process and the responsibilities facilitates efficient outsourcing management. The standard addresses, inter alia, the following:

- Responsibility for the outsourcing process, with the sub-processes analysis and assessment, implementation, governance and monitoring, rests with the central outsourcing officer.
- As part of the outsourcing process, service providers are selected (due diligence).
- The outsourcing specialist section prepares a cost-benefit analysis of the outsourcing, as well as a risk analysis, which identifies, analyses and assesses the risks of the planned outsourcing. The scope and degree of the risks and the classification into important or unimportant activities determines the type of integration of the outsourcing in risk management and the ICS.
- A risk-oriented decision is made to implement an outsourcing either by the Executive Board or by the member with the appropriate remit.
- Contracts are concluded between W&W and the service provider, which contain binding agreements between the contracting partners.
- Depending on the outsourcing, technical contact persons are designated in W&W. They are responsible for appropriate, risk-oriented monitoring and governance, and they ensure that when the outsourcing ends, smooth continuation of business is guaranteed.
- The Audit department and the central outsourcing officer ensure appropriate, process-independent monitoring of the outsourcing, such as the effectiveness and appropriateness of risk management and the ICS, the regularity of the outsourced activities, and the ongoing implementation of the outsourcing rules.

Important activities have been outsourced to the following service providers:

- Asset Management GmbH, financial services institution with registered office in Ludwigsburg,
- Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG, financial services institution with registered office in Ludwigsburg,
- · Württembergische Versicherung AG, insurance company with registered office in Stuttgart,
- W&W AG, insurance company with registered office in Stuttgart,
- Württembergische Life Insurance AG, insurance company with registered office in Stuttgart,
- Württembergische Rechtsschutz Schaden-Service-GmbH, company with registered office in Stuttgart,
- W&W Informatik GmbH, company with registered office in Ludwigsburg,

B.8 Other information

A process for reviewing the governance system has been developed by the key and other functions in coordination with internal audit. This review takes place at least once a year. In 2020 internal audit coordinated the review of the governance system with respect to the transparency of the organisational structure, the appropriateness of the operational structure, contingency plans and company policies. The report on the result of this review, which includes proposals for enhancement of the governance system, was submitted to the Executive Board for final assessment. After discussion, the Executive Board adopted a resolution that the governance system of the W&W Group is appropriately designed in light of the nature, scale and complexity of the risks inherent in the business.

In addition, all necessary information about the governance system and the business organisation has been presented in Sections B.1 to B.7.

W&W AG Solvency II group

C Risk profile

To present the risks of the W&W Group transparently, we uniformly group similar risks throughout the Group into socalled risk areas. The risk areas are further subdivided by risk type for optimal risk governance. The depiction of the risk areas with the associated risk types is called a risk landscape and is shown in the following overview:



Two perspectives are used to assess risks:

- Regulatory perspective with the indicator Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) from the standard formula of the European Insurance and Occupational Pensions Authority (EIOPA) for managing and assessing the Solvency Capital Requirement mandated by supervisory law and for reporting it to the public and the supervisory authorities. In Chapter E, the Solvency Capital Requirement is differentiated for the risk areas market price risks (market risk), counterparty credit risks (counterparty default risk), underwriting risks and operational risks.
- Economic perspective with the indicator risk capital requirements from the own-risk and solvency assessment (ORSA) for managing and assessing economic risk-bearing capacity. In this Chapter C, unless noted otherwise, the figures are based on economic risk-bearing capacity.

The risk profile of the W&W Group assessed in accordance with the methods relating to economic risk-bearing capacity was as follows as at 31 December 2020:

Risk profile		
	Portion of economi r	
in %	31.12.2020	31.12.2019
Market price risks	51.6	45.6
Underwriting risks	19.6	21.8
Counterparty credit risks	18.1	20.7
Operational risks	8.9	9.7
Business risks (in particular, pool risks in the area of home loan savings business)	1.8	2.0
Liquidity risks	-	0.2

Other business risks are deducted from the capital available for risk coverage.

Stress scenarios are regularly calculated as a complement to the stochastic risk assessment. In the process, in stress tests both specific to the risk area and applying to all risk areas as well as in inverse stress tests, the change effects of individual, isolated risk factors as well as combined risk factors are considered.

In the 2020 financial year, there was no change to the basic calculation logic in the economic risk-bearing capacity model of the W&W Group.

Off-balance-sheet items (e.g. contingent liabilities) are presented as supplementary disclosures in the annual report. In the context of the level of own funds from the standpoint of Solvency II, they are considered immaterial and are therefore not listed further at this juncture.

Prudent person principle

The assets of the W&W Group are invested in accordance with the prudent person principle. This means that the W&W Group invests only in assets and instruments whose risks can be properly identified, measured, monitored, managed, controlled and reported, and can be properly taken into account in assessing overall solvency needs.

Qualified assets are invested with the required expertise and caution. Compliance with the general regulatory investment principles and the internal investment policy is ensured through qualified asset management, suitable internal investment principles and control procedures, a strategic and tactical investment policy, and other organisational measures. These include, in particular, monitoring the risks associated with the asset and liability items in the balance sheet and the relationship of the two sides to each other, as well as verifying the elasticity of the investment portfolio when compared with certain capital market scenarios and investment conditions.

This ensures that the W&W Group can at all times respond appropriately to changing basic conditions, particularly changes on the financial and real estate markets, liquidity needs from underwritten loss events or other changed market situations.

All assets are invested in a manner that corresponds to the general investment principles of security, liquidity and profitability.

General investment principles	Description
Principle of security	Only a secure investment guarantees that concluded insurance contracts can be performed. This applies to each individual investment, as well as to the entire portfolio. Security first means securing the nominal value. Whether this can be achieved must be reviewed prior to the acquisition and repeatedly during the term of the investment.
Principle of liquidity	Due and owing payment obligations must be able to be satisfied without delay. The overall portfolio of investments must therefore be composed in such a way that liquid assets or those that can be liquidated without difficulty are always available in the amount needed for operations. This must be reviewed as part of the undertaking's financial and liquidity planning.
Principle of profitability	Investments must be profitable. They must generate a sustainable income, taking into account security and liquidity needs and the situation on the capital markets. This applies to each individual investment, as well as to the entire directly and indirectly held portfolio.

Based on the risk strategy, the undertakings belonging to the W&W Group have enacted internal policies for investments in accordance with the prudent person principle.

As part of strategic asset allocation (SAA), the investment objectives of the companies in the Insurance division and W&W AG are set at least once a year, taking into account the nature of the insurance business conducted and the corporate structure for the following year. On the markets side, primary consideration is given to the aspects of profitability and security. Simulations to optimise the entire investment portfolio are run on the basis of qualitative (recommendations) and quantitative (portfolio simulations) results. Prior to being enacted, the SAA is submitted to an intensive review process in the design phase in the independent risk controlling function, which covers compliance with the requirements concerning the prudent person principle and risk-bearing capacity. In addition, it is compared with the current planning/projection for net investment income. Findings gained from the review process are used to set limits in connection with the annual limit process.

The final SAA includes target ratios for the individual asset classes, as well as ranges. The ranges are defined in accordance with risk-oriented aspects. Asset classes that are categorised as especially risky are also subject to limiting on the aggregated level.

The statements concerning the prudent person principle for investment apply to the risk areas C.2 market price risk, C.3 counterparty credit risk and C.4 liquidity risk.

The individual risk areas are described in the following sections.

Risk exposure

Underwriting risk means potential losses that arise in connection with previously calculated premiums from the uncertainty concerning future trends in claims and costs from concluded insurance contracts. Thus, it covers all specific risks of the insurance business, including premium and reserve risks, cancellation risks and disaster risks in property and casualty insurance, as well as biometric risks, cancellation risks, cost risks, revision risks and disaster risks in life and health insurance. Due to external events (e.g. natural disasters), risks associated with individual contracts may add up to accumulation risks.

The W&W Group conducts primary insurance business in life and health insurance and in property and casualty insurance for retail and corporate customers in its business-strategic core market of Germany. In doing so, it also relies on digital sales channels (e.g. the digital brand "Adam Riese"). The discontinuation of new underwriting by the UK subsidiary of Württembergische Versicherung AG at end of 2007 and the sale of the Czech insurance companies in January 2016 have greatly reduced the international risk exposure of the W&W Group. In accordance with internal provisions, the companies of the W&W Group enter into insurance transactions only where the risks associated with them do not endanger the company as a going concern. This is supported by means of optimisation of cost and claims management. Incidental risks that cannot be influenced are limited with suitable and adequate protective instruments (e.g. reinsurance). Despite the discontinuation of new underwriting by its UK subsidiary, Württembergische Versicherung AG is liable in this respect for business underwritten up to and including 2007.

Since industrial risks are underwritten only to a limited and clearly defined extent, risk concentrations are unlikely at the level of individual policyholders. Owing to the planned expansion of corporate customer business through integrated insurance programmes for German policyholders with primary domicile or primary risk in Germany, Württembergische Versicherung AG has begun underwriting facultative indirect business and foreign market pools. Württembergische Versicherung AG does not conduct other active reinsurance business.

With the exception of German market pools, W&W AG still does not underwrite any reinsurance outside the Group.

Premium risks mainly result from natural disasters, accumulation risks and catastrophes. In the property insurance business line, the reserve risk is of minor relevance, because claims can usually be settled quickly. In (motor vehicle) liability insurance and casualty insurance, however, the reserve risk can be substantial due to the sometimes long settlement duration (e.g. for personal injuries) and exogenous factors (e.g. discounting rate).

In life and health insurance, biometric risks and cancellation risks are especially relevant. Biometric risks result from the deviation of expected biometric trends from actual biometric trends. They are affected by exogenous influences, such as life expectancy, mortality, probability of invalidity and medical advances. Risks arise both from short-term fluctuations and from longer-term change trends. The ability to manage underwriting risks depends highly on the type of risk involved. The technical life and health underwriting risks can be forecast relatively reliably using current mortality and disability tables, and they are limited through a conservative, needs-based cost calculation.

Cancellation risk means the detrimental change in the value of insurance liabilities as a result of changes in the amount or volatility of the cancellation, termination, renewal and redemption rates of insurance contracts. Scenarios are run to analyse a direct permanent increase of the cancellation rates, a permanent decline in cancellation rates and mass can-

An economic model is used for measuring underwriting risks that is based on the value-at-risk approach. In property and casualty insurance, the calculation is performed with Monte Carlo simulations. In order to estimate disasters, use is made of simulation results provided by reinsurance companies and brokers that specialise in this area. These results are incorporated in the stochastic model. Risk measurement for life and health insurance is oriented on the Solvency II standard formula.

The W&W Group is not exposed to any underwriting risks from off-balance-sheet items or from the transfer of risk to special purpose vehicles within the meaning of Article 211 of the Solvency II framework directive.

The potential loss from underwriting risks is limited by means of defined risk limits. This is the maximum amount that the underwriting risk is permitted to reach. The limit utilisation is monitored continually.

The principles and objectives of the underwriting policy and the definition of permissible transactions and the associated responsibilities are documented in strategies and underwriting guidelines and are reviewed at least once a year. The pricing and underwriting policy is risk- and income-oriented. It is supported with suitable incentive systems for the mobile sales force. Risks are underwritten according to defined guidelines and under consideration of business-linespecific maximum underwriting amounts. Natural disaster risk is countered with risk-oriented prices, contract terms and conditions adapted to critical disaster zones and risk exclusions.

In addition to risk balancing through a mix of business lines and products, gross underwriting risk is limited by efficient claims management and a conservative loss reserve policy.

As a rule, underwriting trends are continually analysed and monitored by way of stringent controlling of premiums, costs, claims and benefits. The operational run-off risks of the UK subsidiary are handled by QIC Global Services Limited via a service contract under close supervision and governance by Württembergische Versicherung AG. Settlement risks are monitored through direct management and collaboration on site in London in the case of material business transactions, as well as through external run-off reviews and continual checking of loss reserves.

In 2020 underwriting risks were consistently in line with the risk strategy. The risk limit at the level of the W&W Group was complied with at all times.

Coronavirus pandemic

At the time that the authorities ordered the closure of businesses due to the coronavirus pandemic, Württembergische Versicherung AG had business closure insurance policies in its portfolio. Since the coronavirus pathogen was not defined in the policies, the company believes that they do not cover a closure of entire types of businesses that is ordered by the authorities in order to disrupt chains of infection. Württembergische Versicherung AG has joined in the industrywide ex gratia arrangement and is examining any ex gratia claims on a case-by-case basis. Provisions were created for this. For further details about the impact of the coronavirus pandemic, please see the 2020 Annual Report of Wüstenrot & Württembergische AG - Notes to the consolidated financial statements, in the section "Coronavirus pandemic" on pages 116 to 117.

Because of the coronavirus pandemic and the associated uncertainties about further developments and the ultimate loss/benefits volume, it is expected that the W&W Group will be exposed in some cases to increased risks in the area of underwriting risk in 2021 as well.

Risk concentrations

The focus of the insurance business of the W&W Group is the German state of Baden-Württemberg, meaning that this gives rise to a regional risk concentration. By focusing on retail and commercial customers and avoiding high-volume individual risks through clear acceptance and underwriting policies, no additional material risk concentrations are expected in insurance business, including in the future.

However, in the case of accumulation events and in the area of natural disasters, like storms, hail or flooding, risk concentrations may arise due to regionally higher market shares. These cannot be entirely ruled out, but they are reduced through corresponding reinsurance arrangements to an acceptable degree in terms of risk-bearing capacity.

Risk mitigation techniques

Adequate reinsurance protection for individual risks and for accumulation risks across business lines reduces underwriting risks in property and casualty insurance. The reinsurance programme is adjusted on a yearly basis under consideration of risk-bearing capacity. Great emphasis is placed on the solvency of the reinsurers.

In life and health insurance, extreme risks are limited the reinsurance programme of Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG.

The sustained effectiveness of the risk mitigation techniques for underwriting risk is monitored, in particular, through corresponding contract drafting, the specification of and compliance with certain criteria when selecting contract partners or risk mitigation techniques, as well as through internal controls.

The reinsurance contracts are reviewed annually and clearly defined the scope of the risk transfer. The ratings of reinsurers are continually monitored by the specialist department responsible for ceded reinsurance. In the event that the rating of a reinsurance partner is downgraded, the continuation of this business relationship is reviewed.

Internal controls ensure the effective operational implementation of the adopted risk mitigation techniques.

Risk sensitivity

Alongside calculation of the Solvency II standard formula, consideration is given to the effects of possible scenarios on own funds and the Solvency Capital Requirement. Assumed for this purpose for non-life insurance is the occurrence of an earthquake event in southern Germany with a magnitude of about 6. For life insurance, the occurrence of a combined longevity and disability shock is assumed. For policyholders with annuity insurance policies, mortality is assumed to decline by 20%. At the same time, the probability of disability is assumed to rise by 20%, and the probability of reactivation to fall by 20%.

The following table shows own funds, the Solvency Capital Requirement, and the solvency ratio as at the reporting date and according to scenario occurrence:

ensitivity of underwriting risk			
	Solvency II	Stress test non-life	Stress test life
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Eligible own funds	6,841,710	6,475,972	7,120,913
Solvency Capital Requirement	2,938,371	2,968,753	4,152,305
Solvency ratio (%)	232.8	218.1	171.5

The considered scenario for non-life leads to a reduction of own funds by €365,738 thousand, an increase of the Solvency Capital Requirement by €30,382 thousand, and a reduction of the solvency ratio by 14.7 percentage points.

For life, the considered scenario leads to an increase of own funds by €279,203 thousand and of the Solvency Capital Requirement by €1,213,934 thousand and a reduction of the solvency ratio by 61.3 percentage points.

The Solvency Capital Requirement would also be covered after occurrence of the considered scenarios.

The risk governance tools presented in this section under "Risk exposure" and "Risk mitigation techniques" are used to govern underwriting risk and the sensitivities associated with it.

C.2 Market price risk

Risk exposure

Market price risk means potential losses resulting from the uncertainty concerning future trends (size, volatility and structure) in market risk factors. Such market risk factors include interest rates, equity prices, currency exchange rates, commodities prices, real estate prices and corporate assets, as well as risk premiums (credit spreads) for a given credit

Changes in market price risks depend primarily on the outside capital markets. Because of its investment structure, the main risk drivers for the W&W Group are trends in interest rates and credit spreads and on the equity markets.

An economic model is used to measure market price risks, which is based on the value-at-risk approach (confidence level of 99.5%, risk horizon of one year). Sensitivity and scenario analyses are employed as an early-warning function and additional estimation of possible imminent risks.

The risk profile of the risk area "market price risks" of the W&W Group was as follows as at 31 December 2020:

Exposure to market price risks			
Po		ortion of economic risk capital requirements	
in %	31.12.2020	31.12.2019	
Credit spread risk	23.0	16.8	
Equity risk	12.2	12.5	
Interest rate risk	8.8	9.9	
Participation risk	5.7	4.6	
Real estate risk	1.9	1.7	

Credit spread risk means the risk that the value of receivables will change because of a change to the applicable credit spread for the respective issuer or counterparty - despite an unchanged credit rating over time. The credit spread refers to the risk premium in the form of higher interest on a security subject to credit risk in relation to a comparable security without risk. Thus, a clear distinction is made between credit spread risks, migration risks and default risks. Accordingly, only credit spread changes that do not result from a change (migration, including default) of the rating are monitored for securities. Owing to the structure of our investment portfolio - investment predominantly in fixed-income securities - credit spread risk is the most important of the market price risks. In interaction with risk controlling methods for counterparty credit risk, credit spread risks are subject to stringent governance (e.g. risk lines).

In the W&W Group, Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG and Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG, in particular, are exposed to interest rate risks in the form of interest rate change risks and interest guarantee risks. In addition, W&W AG and, to a lesser extent, Württembergische Versicherung AG are also exposed to interest rate risks.

Current interest rates pose a risk to earnings, as new investments and reinvestments can be made only at lower interest rates, while previously assured interest rates and interest obligations (interest guarantee risk) still need to be fulfilled for customers. They are also having an increasing negative impact on valuation reserves. When interest rates drop, long-term obligations experience more severe changes in value than do interest-bearing investments due to the mismatch of maturities on the assets side and the liabilities side. The result is an interest rate change risk, which manifests itself in a falling available solvency margin.

Quickly rising interest rates can also pose risks for the balance sheet and precipitate a decline in income components. In such a scenario, valuation reserves may evaporate, hidden liabilities may arise, and write-downs may become necessary. This limits the leeway for satisfying the corresponding yield requirements on the liabilities side. In addition, customers might make increased use of their option rights.

This trend poses fundamental challenges not only for our risk management but also for our asset/liability management (ALM). Declining income components and higher risk capital requirements must be managed in close interaction. Current interest rates place greater demands on risk-minimising measures.

In the Life and Health Insurance segment (primarily, Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG), the following measures have long been taken in order to govern interest rate risks:

- Risk mitigation techniques (see the following pages),
- Duration extension for bond investments,
- Use of derivatives, forward purchases and forward sales in order to hedge interest rate risks,
- Examination and use of alternative investment strategies and instruments,
- Creation of reserves: additional interest reserve for the new portfolio and interest rate reinforcement for the old portfolio,
- Development of products with alternative guarantee forms.

Persistently low interest rates also pose great challenges for pension funds, including Allgemeine Rentenanstalt Pensionskasse AG, in terms of financing the build-up of the additional interest reserve/interest rate reinforcement under the ancillary condition of regulatory solvency. In the current environment of low interest rates, the financing of this build-up by the company is considered challenging. If the current phase of low interest rates becomes exacerbated or more prolonged, this will significantly aggravate the situation. The interest rate calculation basis is appropriate only in the short to medium term. Allgemeine Rentenanstalt Pensionskasse AG, working together with its sole shareholder Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG and in coordination with the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin), develops far-reaching proposed solutions, some of which have already been implemented. Pursuant to section 140 (1) of the German Act on the Supervision of Insurance Undertakings (VAG), Allgemeine Rentenanstalt Pensionskasse AG withdrew EUR 7.0 million from the provision for premium refunds in 2020, which was recognised as income. The funds are being used to build up the additional interest rate reserve and for interest rate reinforcement. Because of the willingness of Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG to support Allgemeine Rentenanstalt Pensionskasse AG, the capital reserve was increased by EUR 30.0 million in the 2020 financial year. Other measures are being reviewed and implemented.

The interest rate risk was lowered in the technical provisions for Property/Casualty. This was achieved by lowering both the interest rate factor associated with reserving for long-term losses in the motor liability segment and the actuarial interest rate used to calculate the provisions for future annuity benefits in the motor liability insurance, casualty insurance, and liability insurance business lines.

In the Housing segment (mainly Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG), the following risk governance measures were continued:

- Risk mitigation techniques (see the following pages),
- Structural reallocations in the securities portfolio,
- Use of interest-rate-based hedging instruments (e.g. swaps),
- Active duration management of investments,
- Diversification in proprietary business in order to improve the yield profile,
- (Re-)investment prohibitions and
- Interest rate management.

Of the companies of the W&W Group, significant equity portfolios are held by Württembergische Versicherung AG, Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG and W&W AG. For Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG, the conditions were created in the reporting year for investing in equities pursuant to the German Home Loan and Savings Bank Act (BausparkG). Accordingly, sudden and severe price slumps on equity markets could impair the risk-bearing capacity of the Group companies that invest in equities by forcing write-downs.

Within the W&W Group, significant long-term equity investments are held by W&W AG, Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG and Württembergische Versicherung AG as individual companies. As part of strategic SAA allocation, the focus is increasingly on alternative investments, including private equity participations and participations in private debt funds. Alternative investments are accounted for in the economic risk-bearing capacity model mainly together with equity price risks. As a result of the high proportion of participations in the capital investment portfolio, W&W AG is subject to very material participation risks due to its business model. When participation risks materialise, valuation losses can result in the writing down of participations, the non-payment of dividends or the need to make contributions to earnings.

We influence the business and risk policy of our participations, inter alia, through our representation in supervisory bodies, depending on the size and significance of the participations. Participations are subject to stringent controlling. Among other things, this comprises the annual planning of dividends, medium-term economic planning, projections during the year and monthly target/actual comparisons for material long-term equity investments. Additionally, separate processes for risk governance and risk controlling are in place for private equities and alternative investments. In this way, impending participation risks can be responded to at an early stage.

Within the W&W Group, Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG, W&W AG and Württembergische Versicherung AG hold property portfolios in the form of direct investments and via fund mandates and participations. Our diversified property portfolios are an integral part of our investment portfolio. Our property investments focus on direct investments in Germany with stable value development and high fungibility. In keeping with strategic asset allocation, Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG has made investments for the purpose of further diversification, in line with the internationalisation of the property portfolio. Real estate risks are to be minimised through an appropriate selection of properties. Real estate risk plays a minor role compared with the other types of market price risk. In view of recently rising property prices in various regions and segments, however, future price corrections cannot be ruled out, particularly in the event of a sharp downturn in the economy.

Foreign currency risks can result from open net FX positions in globally aligned investment funds, as well as from foreign currency bonds and equity instruments held by of our insurance companies (mainly Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG and Württembergische Versicherung AG). In accordance with our strategic orientation, our foreign currency exposure is concentrated in Danish krones and U.S. dollars. Within the scope of individual fund mandates, we also have minor exposure in other currencies. We hold the material foreign currency portfolios on the assets side for the purpose of currency-congruent coverage of underwriting liabilities. To limit foreign currency risks, we mainly invest in investment products in the euro zone. Most of our foreign currency exposure is hedged against exchange rate fluctuations. As part of active foreign currency management, the insurance companies systematically make use of income opportunities through open foreign currency positions.

The W&W Group is not exposed to material market price risks from off-balance-sheet items.

As part of asset liability management, asset and liability positions are managed and monitored in such a way that they correspond to the company's risk profile. We counter interest guarantee risks by managing durations and applying a dynamic product and pricing policy.

Prior to their introduction, new products (lending and deposit products) are submitted to a new-products process, especially in order to ensure proper handling by the accounting department and in the risk controlling systems.

Trends on the capital markets are continually monitored in order to be able to promptly adjust the positioning and hedging.

In 2020 the market price risks were consistently in conformity with the risk strategy and the strategic asset allocations. The risk limit at the level of the W&W Group was complied with at all times.

Coronavirus pandemic

In 2020 the development of the coronavirus pandemic caused increased volatility on the capital markets.

Current interest rates are being shaped by continued expansive monetary policies, which are also being driven by the coronavirus, and the risk aversion of investors. Credit spreads reflect the current uncertainties concerning imminent counterparty credit risks created by the economic downturn (defaults, downgrades).

In the area of equity investments, the losses suffered at the start of the coronavirus pandemic were able to be recouped in part. Nevertheless, there is also a risk here of new price corrections. With regard to participations in alternative investments, the measurement declines occasioned by the coronavirus were able to be largely offset. Nevertheless, it is not possible to rule out delayed effects in the form of measurement declines or smaller distributions.

In the property area, there was a significant rise in rent arrears, particularly with key commercial lessees in the retail, hotel and office sectors. However, the vast majority of rent payments were made on time. It cannot be ruled out that rent losses will increase if the coronavirus pandemic does not abate.

For further information about the impact of the coronavirus pandemic, please see the 2020 Annual Report of Wüstenrot & Württembergische AG - Notes to the consolidated financial statements, in the section "Coronavirus pandemic", pages 116 to 117.

Despite the fact that the capital markets have partially recovered from the previous extreme distortions during the coronavirus pandemic, it is expected that the W&W Group will be exposed to increased risks in the area of market price risk in 2021 as well.

Risk concentrations

As described above in this section under "Risk exposure", the W&W Group is heavily invested in fixed-income securities. These securities are concentrated among certain business partners. However, in accordance with the threshold values to be applied in the standard formula, it was not necessary to set aside capital for market risk concentrations in the standard formula as at 31 December 2020. In this regard, the standard formula assesses the extent to which risk exposures are concentrated among counterparties who belong to a common group of undertakings, and it imposes a capital requirement on them, depending on their volume and credit rating.

Based on the strategic asset allocation, positionings are intentionally taken in individual asset classes (inter alia, equities, participations, bonds). Concentrations are avoided, inter alia, by mixing asset classes, particularly though compliance with specific mixture ratios and broad diversification by industry, region and style of investment.

Risk mitigation techniques

Derivative financial instruments were used by individual undertakings in the W&W Group in 2020, in line with the strategic asset allocation. Interest rate risks are hedged through the use of derivatives (e.g. swaps), forward purchases and forward sales. Equity price risks are reduced through corresponding hedging strategies using derivatives. Substantial parts of the foreign currency exposure are hedged against exchange rate fluctuations.

At the level of the individual undertaking, the effectiveness of the risk mitigation techniques listed above is mainly assured through ongoing monitoring of the portfolio. In this regard, trends on the capital markets are continually monitored in order to be able to promptly adjust the positioning and hedging. Standardised reporting processes are in place for notifying all parties involved in the investment process in a timely and transparent manner about the current investment status.

In this connection, the described measures are constantly reviewed and adapted to changes and current conditions. This also applies, in particular, to the various internal directives in the investment area, which are reviewed at least once a year and supplemented by changes that result from supervisory requirements or company practice.

The framework for the use of derivatives is addressed in binding fashion in internal directives. Corresponding processes have been established to monitor the effectiveness of the use of derivatives. These consist of controlling the changes in the value of the instruments used and assessing effectiveness of the use of derivatives. A derivative is then considered to be free of material basis risks if the changes in value of the risk position covered by the hedging instrument reflect at least 90% of the changes in value of the risk exposure.

The appropriateness of the hedging level achieved through the derivative positions is monitored on the basis of its impact on risk-bearing capacity. Standardised framework agreements are used to avoid legal risks.

Internal controls ensure the effective operational implementation of the adopted risk mitigation techniques.

At least once a year, risk sensitivity is considered using risk-specific stress tests, particularly for interest rate risk, equity risk and credit spread risk, in order to derive risk governance measures. These are, for interest rate risk, a change in the interest rate curve by 50 basis points; for equity risk, a fall in equity prices by 36% (participations by 18%); and for credit spread risk, an increase in the credit spread by 50 basis points.

The following tables present the effects of the stress tests on own funds, the Solvency Capital Requirement and the solvency ratio:

ensitivity of interest rate risk			
	Solvency II	Stress test: Interest rate +50 basis points	Stress test: Interest rate -50 basis points
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Eligible own funds	6,841,710	6,978,675	6,776,092
Solvency Capital Requirement	2,938,371	2,893,792	3,145,381
Solvency ratio (%)	232.8	241.2	215.4

A lowering of the interest rate curve by 50 basis points would result in a reduction in own funds by €65,618 thousand, an increase in the Solvency Capital Requirement by €207,010 thousand and a reduction in the solvency ratio by 17.4 percentage points. The sensitivity to a raising of the interest rate curve by 50 basis points would be an increase in the solvency ratio by 8.3 percentage points. The risk governance tools presented in this section under "Risk exposure" and "Risk mitigation techniques" are used to govern interest rate risk and the sensitivities associated with it.

Sensitivity of equity risk		
	Solvency II	Stress test
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Eligible own funds	6,841,710	6,800,766
Solvency Capital Requirement	2,938,371	3,439,832
Solvency ratio (%)	232.8	197.7

A fall in equity prices by 36% would result in a reduction in own funds by €40,944 thousand, an increase in the Solvency Capital Requirement by €501,461 thousand and a reduction in the solvency ratio by 35.1 percentage points. The risk governance tools presented in this section under "Risk exposure" and "Risk mitigation techniques" are used to govern equity risk and the sensitivities associated with it.

Sensitivity of credit spread risk		
	Solvency II	Stress test
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Eligible own funds	6,841,710	6,911,216
Solvency Capital Requirement	2,938,371	4,165,356
Solvency ratio (%)	232.8	165.9

A rise in the credit spread by 50 basis points based on the interest-rate-sensitive investments of the W&W Group would result in an increase in own funds by €69,506 thousand, in the Solvency Capital Requirement by €1,226,985 thousand, and in the solvency ratio by 66.9 percentage points. The risk governance tools presented in this section under "Risk exposure" and "Risk mitigation techniques" are used to govern credit spread risk and the sensitivities associated with it.

The Solvency Capital Requirement would also be covered after occurrence of the considered scenarios.

C.3 Counterparty credit risk

Risk exposure

Counterparty credit risk means potential losses that may result if borrowers or debtors default or experience a deterioration in creditworthiness. Counterparty credit risks can arise from the default or changed rating of securities (counterparty credit risk associated with capital investments), from the default of business partners in customer lending business (counterparty credit risk associated with customer lending business) and from the default on receivables due from counterparties in reinsurance.

For internal governance, credit risks from capital investments and from customer lending are measured using a loan portfolio model. In this regard, in an economic view, risk capital requirements are calculated as value at risk with the prescribed confidence level of 99.5% on the basis of one-year migration or default probabilities. Other counterparty credit risks mainly consist of the risk of default by undertakings that reinsure underwriting risks. In methodological terms, the risk capital requirements resulting from this are calculated in line with the Solvency II standard model.

The risk profile of the risk area "counterparty credit risks" of the W&W Group, which is calculated in accordance with the methods relating to risk-bearing capacity measurement, was spread as follows as at 31 December 2020:

Exposure to counterparty credit risks			
	Portion of	Portion of economic risk capital requirements	
in %	31.12.2020 31.12.2019		
Counterparty credit risk associated with capital investments	15.5	14.7	
Counterparty credit risk in customer lending business.	2.2	5.5	
Other counterparty credit risk	0.4	0.5	

In line with our strategic orientation, the credit rating structure of the bond portfolio is conservative, with 94.5% (prior year: 96.9%) of investments in the investment grade range. The capital investment exposure generally has a good collateralisation structure. Most of the capital investments with financial institutions are secured by government liability

The W&W Group's most significant counterparty credit risks from customer lending exist at Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG. In customer lending business, the W&W Group largely focuses on construction financing loans for retail customers, which are secured with in-rem collateral. Our receivables portfolio mainly consists of loans, most of which are secured by mortgage deeds and are intrinsically diversified. Due to our strategic orientation, our loan portfolios are mainly subject to pool and structural risks.

W&W AG and Württembergische Versicherung AG may be exposed to bad-debt risks vis-à-vis other contracting partners, particularly in connection with reinsurance. Reinsurance activities are pooled in the reinsurance unit of Württembergische Versicherung AG. Bad-debt risks in reinsurance business (risk type "other counterparty credit risks") were determined on the basis of the capital to be provided in accordance with the economic risk-bearing capacity model, and they remain constant at a low level.

The W&W Group is not exposed to any counterparty credit risks from the transfer of risk to special purpose vehicles within the meaning of Article 211 of the Solvency II framework directive.

Counterparty credit risks are limited through the careful selection of issuers and reinsurance partners, as well as broadly diversified investments. Applicable capital investment rules are taken into consideration in the process. Contracting partners and securities are mainly limited to credit ratings in the investment grade range. In general, the capital investment exposure currently shows a good collateral structure. Other risk management methods used by the W&W Group include:

- Investment line system
 - Investments are made with issuers or issuer groups (borrower units) in accordance with specified directives and in observance of defined lines. Compliance is monitored by the independent risk controlling function through regular measurement of line utilisation. The lines are subject to continuous review.
- Rating verification
 - To assess counterparty and issuer risks and determine lines, the W&W Group draws on the evaluations of international rating agencies, which it verifies and supplements with its own creditworthiness analyses. The lines are subject to regular review.
- Monitoring
 - The investments of the W&W Group are carefully monitored and analysed in order to identify risks early on that may arise from trends on the capital markets. For this purpose, use is made of the economic expertise of W&W Asset Management GmbH. Furthermore, the indicators provided in the aforementioned instruments and procedures are included in the monitoring.
- Risk classification and scoring procedures Customer lending portfolios are managed through classification into risk classes using loss potentials. Loans are concluded after first checking the borrower's credit rating and taking into consideration internal value determination and processing guidelines.
- Risk provision Impending defaults relating to investments, customer lending, or reinsurance business are taken into account by means of appropriate impairment allowances.

In 2020 counterparty credit risks were consistently in line with the risk strategy. The risk limit at the level of the W&W Group was complied with at all times.

Coronavirus pandemic

Deteriorated creditworthiness was observed in 2020 due to the impact that the coronavirus pandemic had in the area of interest-bearing investments in some sectors. To date, there have been no payment defaults.

In customer lending business, approximately 3,800 customers of the W&W Group made use of the statutory moratorium in 2020 in order to defer principal and interest payments. Most customers resumed making the agreed payments when the statutory moratorium expired. The risk provision was adjusted to conform to the higher uncertainty, as well as to the increased likelihood of payment defaults in connection with the coronavirus pandemic. For further information about the impact of the coronavirus pandemic, please see the 2020 Annual Report of Wüstenrot & Württembergische AG – Notes to the consolidated financial statements, in the section "Coronavirus pandemic", pages 116 to 117.

Because of the coronavirus pandemic and the associated uncertainties about further developments, we expect that the W&W Group will be exposed to increased risks in the area of counterparty credit risk in 2021 as well.

Risk concentrations

Owing to regulatory requirements and internal rating requirements, the W&W Group is heavily invested, in sectoral terms, in government bonds and financial services companies and, in regional terms, in Europe, which is typical for the industry. Accordingly, in addition to the credit risk associated with the relevant counterparty, the W&W Group in particular bears the systemic risk of the financial sector and the specific counterparties belonging to it. Counterparty credit risks that result from portfolio concentrations are reduced through a targeted selection of counterparties and by the risk line system, but they cannot, of course, be completely ruled out.

The strategic alignment in customer lending business is concentrated on small retail lending business for residential construction, with a high proportion of employed borrowers. As a result, the extensive concentration on Germany means significant dependence on the national economic situation.

Risk mitigation techniques

In order to minimise the counterparty risk from trading business, master agreements are used for derivatives, which are based on standards customary on the market, such as the German Master Agreement for Financial Derivatives Transactions and associated collateral agreements. In addition, certain risk management methods are used to limit risk. These are presented in this section under "Risk exposure".

Risk sensitivity

As the risk-specific stress test, the scenario of a default by the largest counterparty outside the Group is considered at least once a year.

Sensitivity of counterparty credit risk		
	Solvency II	Stress test
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Eligible own funds	6,841,710	6,689,331
Solvency Capital Requirement	2,938,371	4,789,223
Solvency ratio (%)	232.8	139.7

A default by the largest counterparty outside the Group would result in a reduction in own funds by €152,379 thousand, an increase in the Solvency Capital Requirement by €1,850,852 thousand, and a reduction in the solvency ratio by 93.2 percentage points.

The Solvency Capital Requirement would also be covered after occurrence of the considered scenario.

The risk governance tools presented in this section under "Risk exposure" and "Risk mitigation techniques" are used to govern counterparty credit risk and the sensitivities associated with it.

C.4 Liquidity risk

Risk exposure

Liquidity risk means the risk that money can be borrowed only at higher market interest rates at the time it is needed (refinancing risk) or that it can be obtained only with discounts (market liquidity risk) in order to satisfy payment obligations at maturity (avoidance of illiquidity risk).

The W&W insurers have permanent liquidity inflows through premium payments by their customers, capital income and repayments. Therefore, given that the available investments can be liquidated, refinancing and market liquidity risks are of minor significance for these companies. For Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG, liquidity procurement is of fundamental importance. Its refinancing volume is secured through available offer volume for open-market operations/repos, issuing potential of German covered bonds, available money market and credit lines, issues of promissory notes and uncollateralised securities, and funding from new deposit business. Also, it does not appear from the current situation on the capital markets that there are any acute, substantive market liquidity risks for the investments of the W&W Group.

The investment policy of the W&W Group is designed to ensure that investments that can be liquidated are available at all times in an amount necessary for operations. A sufficient amount of cash and cash equivalents and a corresponding portfolio of liquid investments are kept on hand to cover liquidity needs. Based on this, liquidity management aims to be able to meet financial obligations at any and all times. A Group Liquidity Committee has been established for the Group-wide controlling of liquidity risks.

As part of monthly liquidity planning, potential liquidity needs are calculated also under stressed conditions.

Other risk management methods used by the W&W Group include:

 Liquidity classes In order to monitor the liquidity of investments, they are grouped into liquidity classes so as to control concentrations in illiquid asset classes.

- Regulatory indicators, portfolio parameters Key influence factors are reviewed and analysed in order to comply with the indicators specified by the regulatory authorities. Other portfolio parameters are analyses, e.g. by haircut category and rating class.
- Liquidity ranges
 - To manage liquidity fluctuations, ranges have been specified for the amount of working liquidity, and monthly liquidity balances are to move within those ranges. Thus, liquidity aspects are taken into account for decisions on capital investments. For instance, if the floor is reached, planned investments are postponed or liquidity is generated by selling corresponding capital investments.
- Contingency measures Contingency measures have been defined for extraordinary liquidity situations as part of Group-wide liquidity management at the W&W Group and Group-affiliated undertakings. If an undertaking is unable to cope with existing liquidity shortages on its own, internal Group refinancing options are available pursuant to contingency planning.

Through forward-looking planning and operational cash management, the established systems are designed to identify liquidity shortages early on, respond to expected liquidity shortages with suitable measures, and thus minimise liquidity risks.

Coronavirus pandemic

Following the decline in March/April occasioned by the coronavirus, market liquidity improved in June of the reporting year, supported by extensive monetary and fiscal policy measures. Only individual market segments were unable to return to the pre-crisis level. A reemergence of the coronavirus pandemic could lead to a renewed increase in market liquidity risk.

Risk concentrations

The W&W Group benefits from the diversification of its refinancing sources. Concentrations in illiquid asset classes are controlled by grouping investments into liquidity classes. The implemented liquidity management is designed so as to be able to meet financial obligations at all times, and as a result, the W&W Group is not exposed to any appreciable risk concentrations

Risk mitigation techniques

With regard to liquidity risks, no techniques are currently carried out to transfer risk to another party. However, risks are limited through appropriate risk management methods. These are described in the section "Risk exposure".

Risk sensitivity

Liquidity risk is not part of the standard formula. Nevertheless, in the risk area "liquidity risks", stress scenarios are regularly considered, and based on them, the impact of changed cash inflows and outflows, possible discounts to asset sale potential, and emergency liquidity, among other things, are analysed in order to ensure sufficient liquidity in these scenarios as well.

Expected profits included in future premiums

As a rule, premiums are calculated in such a way that expected benefits and costs can be covered. In addition, a profit for the undertaking is factored in. For future premiums on existing insurance contracts, this is the expected profits included in future premiums (EPIFP). If the future premiums do not materialise because the contract ended prematurely for statutory or contractual reasons, the insurance undertaking loses these profits. The expected profits included in future premiums in connection with the measurement of the technical provisions of the W&W Group under Solvency II amounts to €1,287,408 thousand.

C.5 Operational risk

Risk exposure

We define operational risk as losses that may be incurred as a result of the unsuitability or failure of internal processes, people and systems or externally driven events. This also includes legal and tax risks.

The types of operational risk include:

Legal risk

Risk of loss due to claims that are not legally enforceable (actions as claimant or respondent). This includes the risk of suffering losses due to a change in the legal situation (changed case law or statutes) for transactions concluded in the past.

Compliance risk

The risk of loss as a result of infringements of or failure to comply with laws, legal provisions, regulatory requirements, or ethical/moral standards, as well as internal rules and regulations. Compliance risks also include conduct risk in customer business, which may arise as a result of inappropriate or wilful misconduct when providing financial services.

Personnel risk

Risk of loss from insufficient quantitative (number) or qualitative (qualification) staffing - caused by a sudden absence (full/partial) or by insufficient personnel management/development with an effect on employee motivation, health and loyalty.

Process risk

Risk of loss as a result of partial or full breakdown or the inappropriateness of internal processes or procedures (e.g. process errors). This also includes human error (processing errors).

Information risk

Information risks arise from the threat to the availability, confidentiality and/or integrity of data. They mainly result from processes, IT systems, physical information storage devices, technical equipment or buildings that are relevant to the storage and processing of data.

Model risk

Model risk means the possible loss that an undertaking may suffer as a consequence of decisions made essentially on the basis of the result of internal calculation models that are flawed in their development, execution or use.

Service provider risk

Service provider risk mainly refers to risks resulting from contractual relationships with third parties. This includes outsourcing risks, especially outsourcing outside the Group (third party).

Operational risks are assessed as part of the risk inventory with respect to their probability of occurrence and loss potential. In addition, in the W&W Group, claims databases are used to compile and evaluate operational loss events.

The W&W Group is not exposed to appreciable operational risks from off-balance sheet items.

In order to govern operational risks, key processes for business operations are systematically documented, regularly reviewed and updated in accordance with uniform standards in the internal control system of the W&W Group. By linking processes and risks and by identifying key controls, risks inherent in processes are managed.

Work procedures, conduct guidelines, company guidelines and comprehensive operational rules are in place to limit operational risks. Other risk management methods include:

- Information security risk management/IT risk management Extensive testing and backup procedures for application and computing systems form the basis for the effective management of information security risks with respect to the goals of protecting availability, confidentiality and integrity. In order to ensure continued business operations in the event of process or system outages, critical processes are identified Group-wide in an impact analysis. Cyber insurance has been obtained to further minimise the risk from cyber threats. The contingency plans associated with the processes are subject to regular functionality checks. Our business continuity management system is designed to ensure that critical business processes will remain intact and continue to function even in the event of a major disruption to business operations. In this regard, the W&W standard for emergency and crisis management governs the organisational and operational structure in a crisis situation, such as requirements for setting up a crisis team for processes and communication channels.
- Compliance management Compliance risks are categorised by means of a systematic procedure for identifying risks (differentiated according to existing and changed legal standards according to a risk-based perspective). For identified risks, their potential for damage is estimated and then evaluated based on occurrence probability. Through the definition of specific measures and the assessment of appropriateness and effectiveness, as well as, where necessary, additional monitoring procedures, the foundations are created for a continuous process to avoid and mitigate damage.
- The W&W Group has put measures in place to prevent the risk of fraud. These are designed, on the one hand, to ensure compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements concerning controls and technical security systems and, on the other, to make employees aware of the issue of fraud prevention. For instance, preventive threat analyses and implemented and documented process controls are used to counteract the risk of fraud.
- Outsourcing management Service provider risks are governed and monitored by centralised and decentralised outsourcing officers according to uniform methods and standards. These risks are regularly assessed and monitored through outsourcing management via the Retained Organisation, e.g. in the form of risk analyses.
- Personnel management The success of the W&W Group is largely dependent on qualified, committed employees. Through personnel development measures, we support our employees in fulfilling their responsibilities and duties. In order to manage turnover risk, we regularly analyse staff turnover within the W&W Group.
- Legal monitoring and cooperation Legal risks are countered through constant legal monitoring as well as observation and analysis of case law. In close collaboration with associations, various departments monitor relevant proposed legislation and developments in case law.
- Model governance.
 - We minimise model risk by means of careful model governance that applies to all risk types. Within the scope of the Model Change Policy, model development is subject to standardised, transparent documentation. The policy regulates processes in the event of changes in the economic risk-bearing capacity model at the level of the W&W Group, including the procedures, models and data provided for its calibration in the individual undertakings. The assumption of material model changes in the economic risk-bearing capacity model is subject to the approval of the Group Board Risk. Validation and back-testing procedures are used to reduce and monitor model risks.

In 2020 the assumed operational risks were consistently in line with the risk strategy. The risk limit at the level of the W&W Group was complied with at all times.

Operational risks are unavoidable when undertakings engage in general business activities.

Coronavirus pandemic

Critical operational risks were able to be avoided though timely action, particularly through rigorous emergency and IT management. During the coronavirus pandemic, the W&W Group established a crisis team to coordinate the necessary measures, which was headed by the Chief Risk Officer of W&W AG. Business continuity management for business-critical processes was activated in accordance with the organisational guidelines, and they are being strictly continued with respect to possible coronavirus restrictions. However, in the event of a new outbreak of the coronavirus pandemic in Germany, we cannot rule out the emergence of operational risks to business processes as a result of employee absences.

As at the reporting date, a total of 79 legal actions involving Württembergische Versicherung AG were pending regarding the question of coverage under business closure insurance policies. The judgments entered at the trial level as at the reporting date were in favour of Württembergische Versicherung AG. Appeals were lodged in some of the actions.

Because of the coronavirus pandemic and the associated uncertainties about further developments, we expect that W&W AG and the W&W Group will be exposed to increased risks in some cases in the area of operational risk in 2021 as well.

Risk concentrations

Risk concentrations may result within operational risk, in particular, through dependence on certain systems and technologies, on internal or outsourced processes, on specific expert know-how, increasing digitalisation or regulatory pressure. Through the risk management methods listed above under "Risk exposure", measures are implemented to avoid risk concentrations.

Risk mitigation techniques

With regard to operational risks, no techniques are currently carried out to transfer risk to another party. However, risks are limited through appropriate risk management methods. These are described in the section "Risk exposure".

Risk sensitivity

In the risk area "operational risk", a stress scenario is considered at least once a year on the basis of an individual risk included in the risk inventory with the highest maximum loss potential. The impact on the solvency ratio is immaterial.

C.6 Other material risks

This chapter presents the risk areas that – in addition to the supervisory requirements – are assessed as material.

Business risk

Risk exposure

Business risk means, on the one hand, potential losses that may be incurred from the strategic orientation and result in the insufficient or delayed achievement of targets. On the other, business risks may arise if the company's reputation changes for the worse, as well if the external business environment experiences changes, such as legal, political or social changes.

Business risks are inevitable in general business operations and in the event of changes in the industry environment.

Among business risks, the following types of risks are monitored:

Strategic risk

This risk results from the company's incorrect or insufficient strategic orientation, from the non-achievement of strategic goals or from the flawed implementation of strategic requirements. These risks particularly take the form of cost and income risks.

including a delayed or limited impact on results or cost savings, as well as additional time and effort for achieving strategic measures.

External risk

External risk means the risk of loss from potential changes in basic external conditions (e.g. political/legal, economic, technological). This also includes risks from changed customer behaviour in the home loan savings pool, which in home loan savings business may result from the exploitation of existing product options and elective opportunities, irrespective of trends in market interest rates.

Reputation risk

If the undertaking's reputation or brand were to suffer damage, there is a risk of losing business This could lower the enterprise value.

Business risks are assessed using scenario calculations or expert appraisals. Their results are taken into account in the risk-bearing capacity model by making an appropriate share of the risk cover potential available for it.

The W&W Group is not exposed to material business risks from off-balance-sheet items.

Tools for governing business risks include:

Strategy process

A rolling strategy process has been implemented in the W&W Group. The Group business strategy forms the brackets for both the division sub-strategies and the cross-division strategies, such as risk and IT strategies. The forwardlooking evaluation of the critical internal and external factors that influence the business model helps to assure that the strategic objectives are achieved.

In accordance with internal Group risk governance regulations, each of the individual W&W undertakings that are material in terms of risk aspects has its own documented risk strategy, which is aligned with the undertaking-specific business model and risk profile. The W&W Group strives to identify business risks at an early stage in order to be able to develop and introduce suitable risk governance measures.

"W&W Besser!" programme

The W&W Group strives for a high degree of stability and sustainable growth of its enterprise value. To achieve this, we are positioning ourselves as a company that makes it possible to obtain financial planning from a single source. We have set ourselves the objective of becoming better every day. Therefore, we modified the strategic implementation of "W&W Besser!" in 2020 to conform to changed basic conditions and focus on four approaches. Further details about "W&W Besser!" can be found in Section A.1 "Business".

Early risk identification

Risk indicators and early-warning risk indicators are used to optimally govern business risks, and they are analysed on a regular basis. In the risk management process, emerging risks are observed with the aim of identifying the strategic risks that result from them in a timely manner (early risk warning) and of taking them into consideration in setting the undertaking's business strategy.

Management of reputation risk and transparent communication The W&W Group's public image is permanently monitored, and an effort is made to maintain its reputation by means of a transparent communication policy when faced with critical situations. The operational W&W units identify and assess reputation risks within their business processes.

The permanent effectiveness of the risk management methods for business risk is monitored through specific processes and escalation procedures. Internal controls ensure that the corresponding processes are complied with.

Brexit

The future relationship between the EU and the UK has been laid out in a partnership agreement. On 30 December 2020, the agreement was ratified by the UK Parliament. It is being provisionally applied since 1 January 2021 with the approval of all 27 EU Member States. Approval by the European Parliament is still required in order for the agreement to come into force definitively. The W&W Group actively prepared for the implementation of the UK's exit from the EU, particularly with respect to the settlement of derivatives. The necessary legal conditions for business operations were created for the UK branch of Württembergische Versicherung AG.

Coronavirus pandemic

Because of the ongoing pandemic, there continue to be very high levels of uncertainty with respect to the forecast of further trends on the capital markets. Similarly, it cannot be ruled out that the coronavirus pandemic will have further effects on existing and new business and on expenses for insurance claims of the W&W Group. Countermeasures by

governments and central banks may in some cases afford relief. Accordingly, depending on how the coronavirus pandemic develops in future, it may also trigger a decline in results and put pressure on the financial position, net assets and risk position, particularly if the coronavirus pandemic persists for an extended period.

Risk concentrations

The material assets of W&W AG consist of participations in undertakings of the W&W Group with its divisions. Accordingly, risk concentrations may arise through the occurrence of risks that have an impact across all divisions. These may result, in particular, from external influences, such as the economic and market environment, regulation, or industry reputation.

Through the tools for risk governance listed above under "Risk exposure", measures are implemented in order to avoid risk concentrations as far as possible.

Risk mitigation techniques

With regard to business risks, no techniques are currently carried out to transfer risk to another party. However, risks are limited through suitable tools for risk governance. These are described in the section "Risk exposure".

Risk sensitivity

Business risks are not a part of the standard formula. Nevertheless, in the risk inventory, business risks are considered with respect to their probability of occurrence and loss potential in order to ensure sufficient capitalisation for these risks. Material, short-term effects on the solvency ratio are unlikely, even where in the longer term the strategic alignment of the W&W Group may have a significant impact on the development of the solvency ratio.

C.7 Other information

Sustainability risks may materialise from internal and external risk drivers or triggering events in the areas of the climate, the environment, social affairs, politics, corporate governance and compliance, which, in the individual risk areas, may have a negative impact on the net assets, financial position or financial performance of the W&W Group. Accordingly, sustainability risks are to be addressed in the organisation and actions of the W&W Group in such a way as to avoid manifestations that pose a threat to their existence. Sustainability risks are to be treated in a forward-looking manner. In this regard, the risk strategy of the W&W Group also specifies the framework with which sustainability risks are integrated into risk management.

Of special importance in this respect are reputational risks, sustainability risks in investments and physical risks in the area of underwriting risks. In order to limit, in particular, reputation risks that arise from sustainability aspects, the sustainability policy of the W&W Group specifies the principles for sustainable and responsible actions. Sustainability risks in the area of investments are limited by defining corresponding exclusion criteria. Physical risks in the area of underwriting risks are limited, inter alia, through underwriting policies and reinsurance arrangements.

Further information about the W&W Group's commitment to sustainability is contained in its annual sustainability report, which is published on the website of W&W AG at www.ww-ag.com/nachhaltigkeitsberichte (available in German only).

Risk concentrations at the Group level are discussed in Sections C.1 to C.6. Other than the facts and circumstances presented in the foregoing sections, there is no other material information.

W&W AG Solvency II group D Valuation for solvency purposes

	Solvency II	IFRS (carrying
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.202
Goodwill		
Deferred acquisition costs		109,40
Intangible assets	-	104,76
Deferred tax assets	146,961	454,67
Pension benefit surplus	-	
Property, plant and equipment held for own use	504,403	666,64
Investments (other than assets for index- or unit-linked contracts)	40,713,650	48,131,63
Property (other than for own use)	2,234,434	1,873,56
Holdings in related undertakings, including participations	2,173,964	670,120
Equities	383,360	2,115,500
Equities - listed	5,000	505,886
Equities – unlisted	378,360	1,609,614
Bonds	21,607,143	41,615,014
Government bonds	13,928,349	20,003,239
Corporate bonds	7,195,378	19,204,80
Structured notes	456,709	2,406,97
Collateralised securities	26,707	
Collective investment undertakings	14,002,541	1,272,48
Derivatives	38,039	284,148
Deposits other than cash equivalents	274,168	300,79
Other investments	-	
Assets for index- or unit-linked contracts	2,028,934	2,079,699
Loans and mortgages	1,650,525	22,993,314
Loans on policies	34,258	34,258
Loans and mortgages to individuals	1,354,398	22,930,36
Other loans and mortgages	261,869	28,689
Reinsurance recoverables from:	27,752	308,558
Non-life and health similar to non-life	158,118	177,44
Non-life excluding health	157,207	176,60
Health similar to non-life	912	84:
Life and health similar to life, excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked	-130,356	131,11
Health similar to life	-140,114	115,20
Life excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked	9,757	15,90
Life index-linked and unit-linked	-10	
Deposits to cedants	23,955	22,51
Insurance and intermediaries receivables	122,039	107,54
Reinsurance receivables	-	
Receivables (trade, not insurance)	165,122	208,31
Own shares (held directly)	3,103	1,11
Amounts due in respect of own fund items or initial fund called up but not yet paid in	_	
Cash and cash equivalents	192,063	1,232,51
Any other assets, not elsewhere shown	108,718	51,79
Any other assets, not elsewhere shown	,	

Group solvency overview: Liabilities

Excess of assets over liabilities	7,861,200	5,086,263
Total liabilities	37,826,024	71,386,218
Any other liabilities, not elsewhere shown	1,406	86,488
Subordinated liabilities in basic own funds	254,130	231,308
Subordinated liabilities not in basic own funds	40,823	111,854
Subordinated liabilities	294,953	343,162
Payables (trade, not insurance)	397,713	632,667
Reinsurance payables	-	-
Insurance and intermediaries payables	208,256	672,472
Financial liabilities other than debts owed to credit institutions	109,163	24,309,176
Debts owed to credit institutions	-	2,193,839
Derivatives	40,051	59,876
Deferred tax liabilities	966,083	447,567
Deposits from reinsurers	103,000	104,060
Pension benefit obligations	1,485,573	1,985,935
Provisions other than technical provisions	26,702	1,148,685
Contingent liabilities	-	-
Other technical provisions		5,897,507
Risk margin	122,319	
Best estimate	1,698,704	
Technical provisions calculated as a whole		
Technical provisions – index-linked and unit-linked	1,821,023	2,079,699
Risk margin	3,212	
Best estimate	29,672,951	
Technical provisions calculated as a whole	27,010,100	_0,020,207
Technical provisions – life (excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked)	29,676,163	26,625,207
Risk margin	901,117	
Best estimate	588,475	
Technical provisions calculated as a whole	1,407,072	2,000,024
Technical provisions – the (excooning index-triked and offic-triked)	1,489,592	2,366,824
Technical provisions – life (excluding index-linked and unit-linked)	31,165,755	28,992,031
Risk margin	-28,812 -23,908	
Technical provisions calculated as a whole Best estimate	20.012	
Technical provisions – health (similar to non-life)	-4,904	156,019
Risk margin	194,050	
Best estimate	1,017,197	
Technical provisions calculated as a whole		
Technical provisions – non-life (excluding health)	1,211,247	2,277,035
Technical provisions – non-life	1,206,343	2,433,054
n € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020

The Group solvency overview can also be found in the Annex in Template S.02.01.02. The Group solvency overview was prepared based on that for W&W AG and was audited pursuant to Section 25 (2) of the German Act on the Supervision of Insurance Undertakings (VAG). The calculation was performed using the consolidation method (method 1).

Solvency II scope of consolidation

The Solvency II scope of consolidation and the consolidation methods to be applied depend on the degree of control and type of undertaking.

Degree of control

The Solvency II group assumes that it has a dominant influence on the related undertaking if it directly or indirectly holds more than 50% of the shares of capital or voting rights. The Solvency II group assumes that it has a significant influence on the related undertaking if it directly or indirectly holds at least 20% and less than 50% of the shares of capital or voting rights.

In addition to the aforementioned quantitative parameters, consideration is also given to qualitative criteria, such as arrangements in company law, the articles of association or contracts.

Type of undertaking

The related undertakings and the associates are assigned to one of the following types of undertakings, irrespective of the corporate purpose specified in the articles of association:

- · (Re-) insurance undertakings,
- Ancillary services undertakings,
- Entities from other financial sectors,
- Other undertakings.

Solvency II consolidation methods

Depending on the degree of control and the type of undertaking, the following consolidation methods are used at the time of consideration:

Consolidation method		
Type of undertaking	Degree of control	Consolidation method
(Re-) insurance undertakings	dominant	Full consolidation
Ancillary services undertakings	dominant	Full consolidation
Entities from other financial sectors	dominant	Sectoral own funds
Entities from other financial sectors	significant	Sectoral own funds
Other undertakings	dominant	IFRS participation value
Other undertakings	significant	IFRS participation value

Full consolidation

The undertakings are taken into consideration in the Group solvency overview in accordance with the methods of capital consolidation. Transactions within the Group are eliminated as part of consolidation measures.

The following (re-) insurance undertakings are fully consolidated:

- Wüstenrot & Württembergische AG,
- Württembergische Versicherung AG,
- Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG,
- Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG.

The following ancillary services undertakings (see Article 1 No. 53 of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35) exceed the materiality thresholds defined in the Group and are therefore fully consolidated:

- City Immobilien GmbH & Co. KG der Württembergischen,
- · City Immobilien II GmbH & Co. KG der Württembergischen,
- Gerber GmbH & Co. KG,
- Wohnimmobilien GmbH & Co. KG der Württembergischen,
- W&W Informatik GmbH.

The other ancillary services undertakings are viewed as other undertakings and are taken into consideration in the Group solvency overview in accordance with the IFRS participation value.

Sectoral own funds

The undertakings are taken into consideration in the amount of pro-rata own funds, which were calculated in accordance with sectoral rules. The proportion result from the amount of the participation ratio.

IFRS participation value

As a rule, the undertakings are taken into consideration in the Group solvency overview in simplified fashion at their pro-rata IFRS participation value. Wüstenrot Haus- und Städtebau GmbH is taken into consideration at the IFRS equity, and Wüstenrot Immobilien GmbH at the HGB equity.

The following sections first present the bases applicable overall. Presented thereafter are the recognition and valuation methods for the material items of the Group solvency overview, as well as the differences between the Solvency II values and the IFRS values.

D.1 Assets

Recognition and valuation methods for investments and financial instruments

The assets of the Solvency II group in the area of investments and financial instruments are recognised and valued for Solvency II purposes based on the assumption of a going concern and in accordance with the principle of individual valuation.

Pursuant to Article 9(1) of Delegated Regulation 2015/35, assets and liabilities in the solvency overview are recognised in accordance with the rules of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted by the European Union, other than where Solvency II specifies different recognition rules in a given case. If the IFRS recognition rules are departed from for assets, this is noted, provided that material items of the solvency overview are involved.

The consolidated financial statements of W&W AG are prepared on the basis of Section 315a (1) HGB in conjunction with Article 4 of Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 19 July 2002 on the application of IFRS international accounting standards, as they are to be applied in the European Union. For the purpose of preparing the IFRS consolidated financial statements, the individual companies provide W&W AG with, inter alia, IFRS carrying amounts and IFRS disclosures in the form of reporting data.

The recognition of assets for the purposes of the solvency overview follows the approach for reporting data for the IFRS consolidated financial statements. The economic value of assets is determined in accordance with the fair value rules of IFRS 13 (Fair Value Measurement). They correspond to our understanding of economic value under Section 74 (2) of the German Act on the Supervision of Insurance Undertakings (VAG). Accordingly, economic value means the price that the Solvency II group would receive if it were to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants on the valuation date.

The valuation procedures and methods and the economic value are validated by the central service provider W&W Asset Management GmbH. In addition to performing a qualitative assessment of the measurement procedures and price control processes, the audit firm conducts extensive counter-pricing. The audit procedure did not reveal any irregularities.

The valuation methods used to determine the economic value of assets for Solvency II purposes are classified pursuant to Article 10 of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35 into Solvency II valuation levels. Because of the wording of Article 10, asset classification differs from the classification under the IFRS fair value hierarchy primarily in the regrouping of valuation methods for OTC derivatives in Level 2 of the IFRS fair value hierarchy into Level 3 alternative measurement methods of the Solvency II valuation hierarchy.

For OTC derivatives, the fair value determination is identical, irrespective of the difference in grouping between Solvency II and IFRS.

For interest-bearing financial instruments, economic values are determined for Solvency II purposes as the so-called "dirty value". For IFRS, by contrast, the "clean value" is relevant. The dirty value includes the clean value plus the prorated amount of deferred interest on the valuation date.

The following remarks can be drawn from the valuation methods and their classification in the relevant Solvency II valuation hierarchy (Levels 1 to 3) in connection with investments and financial instruments.

Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets

Pursuant to Article 10(2) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35, assets and liabilities are to be valued using quoted market prices in active markets for the same assets or liabilities. An active market exists if transactions involving the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and sufficient volume so that price information is perpetually available.

In the case of a quoted investment, fair value is determined by the price for the financial instrument identified on an active market. This is the exchange price on the closing date or, if the closing date is not a trading day, the exchange price on the last trading day preceding this date.

Level 2: Quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities

If valuation is not possible using quoted market prices in active markets, then pursuant to Article 10(3) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35, valuation is performed using market prices that are quoted in active markets for similar assets and liabilities. In the process, corresponding adjustments are made. These adjustments reflect the typical factors for the asset or the liability, as set forth below:

- the condition or location of the asset or liability,
- the extent to which inputs relate to items that are comparable to the asset or liability and
- the volume or level of activity in markets within which the inputs are observed.

In practice, fair value is determined on the basis of valuation procedures customary on the financial markets or on the basis of comparable prices for liquid bonds, individual prices from market data providers or credit institutions.

The valuation procedures used to determine fair value are appropriate and are based on market data from market data providers observable on the active market. Pursuant to IFRS 13, they include as many observable and verifiable inputs on the market as possible. The appropriateness of the valuation procedures is reviewed on a regular basis.

In the case of investments (bonds, loans and mortgages), the valuation models are based on the discounted cash flow method, under which fair value is determined on the basis of expected future cash flows. The valuation curves used for discounting appropriately take into account the risk factors inherent in the asset and the condition and location of the asset or liability. The inputs observable on liquid markets include, inter alia, currency-specific swap curves, issuer- or

rating-dependent credit spreads, and issuer-specific valuation curves of market data providers. This economic value is determined for IFRS accounting and Solvency II purposes in the identical manner, since the economic value represents the price that would be received if an asset were sold in an orderly transaction between market participants on the valuation date. In the case of interest-bearing positions, the prorated deferred interest amount on the measurement date is also relevant for Solvency II purposes.

Also, the certificate price of collective investment undertakings (with the exception of alternative investments and several real estate funds) is assigned to Valuation Level 2. This has to do with redemption prices calculated by capital management companies based on the rules of investment law, which consist of the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities included in the investment assets.

Level 3: Alternative valuation methods

If current, verifiable market data are not sufficiently available for determining fair value with valuation models, or if observable inputs are substantially modified, an allocation to Level 3 takes place directly (Article 10(5) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35). When doing so, the Solvency II group relies as little as possible on undertaking-specific inputs and makes maximum use of relevant market data. Alternative valuation methods are consistent with one or more of the following approaches (Article 10(7) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35):

- market approach,
- income approach (present value techniques, option pricing models, multi-period excess earnings method) or
- cost approach or current replacement cost approach.

Alternative valuation methods are applied in connection with the provisions mentioned here. The Solvency II group applies alternative valuation methods mainly for properties, related undertakings, unquoted equities and non-standardised derivatives (OTC derivatives), as well as for certain collective investment undertakings.

Alternative valuation methods		
	Solvency II	Proportion
	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
	in € thousands	in %
Total capital investments (including properties and derivatives)	45,076,581	-
thereof valued using alternative valuation methods	4,982,561	11.1

Input parameters not observable on the market

Input parameters not observable on the market are utilised as rarely as possible. They are used in the area of alternative valuation methods. The aim is to determine the price that the Solvency II group would receive if an asset were sold in an orderly transaction between market participants on the valuation date.

Constant market observation, regular enhancement, updating, and exchange of information with experts ensures that the inputs utilised have the highest possible objectivity and are in conformity with regulatory requirements and common practice. The estimates and assumptions utilised in this regard are based on past experience and expectations with respect to future events that appear reasonable under the given circumstances. In so doing, carrying amounts are determined carefully and, taking into account all relevant information, as reliably as possible.

In addition, as part of the audit of the solvency overview and the IFRS annual financial statements, the underlying valuation approaches are audited by the auditor.

The largest share of capital investments valued using alternative valuation methods is property (other than for own use), with a Solvency II value of €2,234,434 thousand. In this regard, the most significant influence on the valuation of properties in third-party use is exercised by the value that can be realised in the event of a future sale, which is calculated on the basis of so-called "exit factors". The exit factors identifiable on the property market are monitored and analysed on a continuous basis. In this regard, compared to the market, conservatively assigned exit factors are used, meaning that there is no risk of an overstated valuation.

The second largest share of capital investments valued using alternative valuation methods are collective investment undertakings at €1,090,052 thousand. These mainly have to do with commitments in the area of alternative investments in the form of an alternative investment fund (AIF). In view of the fact that the portfolio is so multifaceted, these are mostly valued by the respective managers at the net asset value in order to preserve an appropriate cost-benefit relationship, as well as from the standpoint of materiality. This has to do with the excess of assets over liabilities. This constitutes the IFRS fair value. This method is customary on the market and is subsumed under alternative valuation methods. The Solvency II group is in close contact with the managers. Potential uncertainties are closely limited through detailed reporting, intensive monitoring, and plausibility checks performed with the necessary specialist exper-

The amount of €504,403 thousand is attributable to property, plant and equipment held for own use. For properties for own use, external appraisers are engaged if the parameters relevant for the valuation have changed significantly. The valuation is performed on the basis of the capitalised earnings method pursuant to the German Ordinance on the Determination of Property Values (Immobilienwertermittlungsverordnung). When determining property values, the engaged appraisers determine fair value conservatively within the fluctuation range customary on the market in order to attenuate market excesses so that there is no risk of an excessive valuation. The determined values are reviewed and verified by experts within the Solvency II group. One exception to this is the W&W campus (future headquarters for W&W in-house staff), for which the auditor has agreed that there is no need for an external appraisal as long as the property is being used by Group companies. The properties are used by companies of the W&W Group and are therefore recognised as properties for own use. In exchange, W&W AG receives rent payments. Here, the market value corresponds to the capitalised project costs, as reduced by the annual building depreciation.

In the case of deposits and cash and cash equivalents (€466,186 thousand), valuation uncertainties can be ruled out because they are recognised at nominal value in view of their short term.

A volume of €372,120 thousand is attributable to equities – unlisted. This includes one equity position and other unlisted holdings. These holdings have to do almost exclusively with commitments in the area of alternative investments that do not have the attributes of an alternative investment fund (AIF). They are likewise valued to a considerable extent at the prorated net asset value and thus using an alternative valuation method. The processes correspond to the approach for collective investment undertakings. Unlisted equities are valued using the capitalised earnings method.

Of the capital investments valued using alternative valuation methods, the amount of €254,138 thousand is attributable to holdings in related undertakings, including participations.

In the area of derivatives valued using alternative valuation methods (-€2,012 thousand), specialists of the statutory auditor perform counter-pricing, which minimises valuation uncertainties.

Deferred tax assets

	Solvency II	IFRS (carrying amount)	Delta
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Deferred tax assets	146,961	454,673	-307,712

Solvency II

The method for calculating deferred tax assets essentially follows the rules in IAS 12. Deferred tax assets are created for Solvency II purposes because of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the solvency overview drawn up pursuant to Solvency II and the tax carrying amounts pursuant to local tax rules of each company. In order to increase meaningfulness and comparability, deferred taxes are for the first time shown netted in these financial statements.

IFRS

Valuation differences compared with the IFRS value result from the different reference values used to create deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets under Solvency II are created on the basis of different carrying amounts in the balance sheet drawn up for tax purposes and in the solvency overview. By contrast, deferred tax assets in the IFRS consolidated financial statements are created on the basis of different carrying amounts between the balance sheet drawn up for tax purposes and the IFRS consolidated balance sheet.

Property, plant and equipment held for own use

	Solvency II	IFRS (carrying amount)	Delta
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Property, plant and equipment held for own use	504,403	666,645	-162,242

Solvency II

The term "property, plant and equipment held for own use" is applied broadly and also includes properties that are used by other companies of the W&W Group. For the IFRS consolidated financial statements, the cost model under IAS 16 is used to value property, plant and equipment, meaning that a revaluation is undertaken for Solvency II purposes. Since for property, plant and equipment held for own use, there are no active markets in the sense of the valuation hierarchy depicted above, they are measured using alternative valuation methods, such as on the basis of appraisals. With respect to the W&W campus, please see the section "Recognition and valuation methods for capital investments and financial instruments".

Pursuant to IFRS 16, leased properties for own use are recognised as a right of use under "Property, plant and equipment held for own use". At the start of the lease, the lessee's balance sheet shows the right of use as an asset, along with a lease liability in the same amount. Measurement subsequently takes place at amortised cost.

IFRS

The Solvency II value does not include property, plant and equipment of the undertakings in the Housing division. Working in the opposite direction in the case of properties for own use are the differences between the valuation at the economic value and the cost model.

Investments (other than assets for index- or unit-linked contracts)

Property (other than for own use)

	Solvency II	IFRS (carrying amount)	Delta
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Property (other than for own use)	2,234,434	1,873,561	360,873

Solvency II

For the IFRS consolidated financial statements, the cost model under IAS 40 is used to value property (other than for own use), meaning that a revaluation is undertaken for Solvency II purposes.

The values of properties (other than for own use) are calculated for Solvency II purposes upon purchase on the basis of appraisals. If the value determined there can no longer be viewed as appropriate, an internal valuation model is applied (discounted cash flow method in accordance with the income approach), which is prepared twice a year on the valuation date. The considered cash flows include various property-specific parameters, which depict the income and expense perspective in a 10-year forecast. This mainly concerns rental income, as well as the expenses associated with preserving and increasing the value of the property. This is performed on the basis of the rules in IAS 40 for the fair value model. This has to do with an alternative valuation method, since for properties there are no active markets within the meaning of the valuation hierarchy presented above.

IFRS

The difference between the Solvency II value and the IFRS value essentially results from the differences between the valuation at the economic value and the cost model (silent reserves).

Holdings in related undertakings, including participations

	Solvency II	IFRS (carrying amount)	Delta
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Holdings in related undertakings, including participations	2,173,964	670,126	1,503,838

Solvency II

Recognised under this item under Solvency II are related undertakings that are not considered as part of full consolidation. This concerns holdings in subsidiaries and participations, as well as commitments in the area of alternative investments with a participation of at least 20%.

The major share of this item is attributable to holdings in entities from other financial sectors, which are recognised in the Group solvency overview at their prorated sectoral own funds.

The method for valuing the other related undertakings is based on the special valuation hierarchy for related undertakings described in Article 13 of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35. The possible alternatives are presented in the following.

Quoted market prices in active markets

Valuation is to be performed on the basis of quoted market prices in active markets, where available. If prices are not available on active markets, a different valuation method may be used.

Solvency II adjusted equity method

This involves the prorated Solvency II value of the related undertaking, i.e. the holding in it. This corresponds to the residual size of the assets and liabilities on the basis of the Solvency II recognition and valuation rules.

IFRS adjusted equity method

The IFRS equity value (in accordance with IAS 28) may be used only if it was also calculated for the purposes of the consolidated financial statements. In contrast to the carrying amount recognised under IFRS, any existing goodwill and other intangible assets are to be deducted from the value of the related undertaking.

Alternative valuation methods

This involves the valuation methods pursuant to Article 10(5) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35 (see explanations concerning Level 3, above). No active markets exist in the sense of the above-described valuation hierarchy. Since the Group's related undertakings are often not insurance undertakings, such that valuation in accordance with the aforementioned adjusted equity method would not be practical, it was not applied for certain undertakings. In view of the fact that the participation portfolio is so multifaceted, valuation is often performed at the prorated net asset value, i.e. the excess of assets over liabilities, in order to preserve an appropriate cost-benefit relationship, as well from the standpoint of materiality. This constitutes the IFRS fair value.

IFRS

The differences between the carrying amounts in the solvency overview and in the financial reporting are initially the result of the essentially different methods used to determine the value of the holdings in related undertakings.

However, key differences result from the fact that various undertakings and funds are fully consolidated in the IFRS consolidated financial statements, whereas in Solvency they are recognised under the item "Holdings in related undertakings, including participations".

Bonds

	Solvency II	IFRS (carrying	Delta
	Solvency II	amount)	Della
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Government bonds	13,928,349	20,003,239	-6,074,890
Corporate bonds	7,195,378	19,204,801	-12,009,423
Structured notes	456,709	2,406,974	-1,950,265
Collateralised securities	26,707	-	26,707
Bonds	21,607,143	41,615,014	-20,007,871

Solvency II

The fair values calculated for IFRS accounting correspond to the economic value under Solvency II and may thus be used for the solvency overview. They are calculated as follows:

Government and corporate bonds

Bonds for which a quoted price was available on an active market at the relevant time are valued at that price (Solvency II Valuation Level 1). If a price is not available on an active market, the economic value is calculated using Solvency II Valuation Level 2 on the basis of liquid input parameters (e.g. discounted cash flow method).

The fair value of unlisted bonds is calculated using mathematical valuation models customary on the market, using market data as input parameters (inter alia, risk-free interest rate, spreads, volatilities, exchange rates). The valuation models are based primarily on the discounted cash flow method (Solvency II Valuation Level 2). Discounting is in line with risk and maturity and is performed using currency-specific swap curves plus risk-dependent spreads.

Structured notes

No price was available on an active market during the period under review for the structured notes in the portfolio. Thus, the economic value was derived from comparable assets, taking into account a necessary adjustment of specific parameters (Solvency II Valuation Level 2).

The fair value of unlisted structured notes is calculated using mathematical valuation models customary on the market, using market data as input parameters (inter alia, risk-free interest rate, spreads, volatilities, exchange rates).

Collateralised securities

No price was available on an active market during the period under review for the collateralised securities in the portfolio. The economic value of the collateralised securities was derived from comparable assets, taking into account a necessary adjustment of specific parameters, or on the basis of mathematical valuation models customary on the market, using liquid input parameters (Solvency II Valuation Level 2).

The fair value of unlisted collateralised securities is calculated using mathematical valuation models customary on the market, using market data as input parameters (inter alia, risk-free interest rate, spreads, exchange rates).

In addition, for all bond types, please see the remarks in this Section under "Recognition and valuation methods for investments and financial instruments".

IFRS

In the IFRS consolidated balance sheet, the carrying amount pursuant to IFRS 9 is determined in accordance with the allocation of the bonds to one of the following categories of financial instruments:

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income or
- Financial assets at amortised cost.

The different valuations for IFRS purposes lead to deviations from the Solvency II values.

However, key differences between the Solvency II values and the IFRS values result mainly from the fact that various undertakings (primarily Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG) and funds are fully consolidated in the IFRS consolidated balance sheet but not in Solvency II.

Collective investment undertakings

	Solvency II	IFRS (carrying amount)	Delta
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Collective investment undertakings	14,002,541	1,272,487	12,730,054

Solvency II

Recognised under the item "Collective investment undertakings" are special and mutual investment funds. Also recognised under this item are commitments in the area of alternative investments with AIFM registration, insofar as the participation is less than 20%.

The Solvency II value corresponds to the redemption price of the fund units calculated and provided by the capital management companies on the closing date or, if the closing date is not a trading day, the redemption price on the last trading day preceding this date (Solvency II Valuation Level 2).

For some property funds, which closed because of lack of market activities, fair value is the forecast sales value of the funds. This has to do with an alternative valuation method, since for these property funds there are no active markets within the meaning of the valuation hierarchy presented above. They are carried over into the solvency overview for Solvency II purposes.

Participations in the area of alternative investments in the form of an alternative investment fund (AIF) are valued at the net asset value, which is to be classified as an alternative valuation method.

IFRS

Differences result from the fact that various undertakings and funds are fully consolidated in the IFRS consolidated financial statements, whereas in Solvency II they are recognised under the item "Holdings in related undertakings, including participations".

Assets for index- or unit-linked contracts

	Solvency II	IFRS (carrying amount)	Delta
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Assets for index- or unit-linked contracts	2,028,934	2,079,699	-50,765

Solvency II

Recognised under this item are assets held for index-linked and unit-linked contracts. The Solvency II value for unitlinked contracts corresponds to the redemption price of the fund units calculated and provided by the capital management company on the closing date or, if the closing date is not a trading day, the redemption price on the last trading day preceding this date (Solvency II Valuation Level 2). In addition, since 2016, Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG has offered insurance contracts with profit participation in the form of index participation. Index participation is depicted by means of OTC options. The Solvency II value of complex index options (derivatives) corresponds to the fair value of the options calculated and made available by the counterparties. This has to do with an alternative valuation method.

IFRS

The difference between the value under Solvency II and the value in IFRS financial reporting is due to the fact that as another financial sector entity, Allgemeine Rentenanstalt Pensionskasse AG is not fully consolidated.

Loans and mortgages

Loans and mortgages to individuals

	Solvency II	IFRS (carrying amount)	Delta
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Loans and mortgages to individuals	1,354,398	22,930,367	-21,575,969

Solvency II

For the IFRS consolidated financial statements, loans and mortgages to individuals are valued at cost, meaning that a revaluation is undertaken for Solvency II purposes.

For mortgage loans, the "dirty value" (present value, including prorated deferred interest on the valuation date) is recognised as the Solvency II value.

The Solvency II valuation method for mortgages is assigned to Level 2 analogous to the IFRS fair value hierarchy. The main factor for the valuation is the German covered bond curve observable on the market and in effect on the relevant cut-off date. It is correspondingly adjusted by the premium of an undertaking-specific spread pursuant to Article 10(3)(a) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35. In the process, the cash flows to be expected in the future are discounted using the interest rates applicable to the corresponding remaining maturity. The undertaking-specific spread is determined by taking into consideration cost components and the product calculation. Uncertainties exist with regard to future trends in these components and with respect to the risk provision in the future trend in default probability and amount.

This risk provision is determined in accordance with the default amount and probability for each contract. The future expected default amounts and probabilities are based on past experience. In addition, calculation of the risk provision also includes the basic economic conditions, with the current and foreseeable circumstances.

Optionalities, such as embedded special rights of termination and repayment, are taken into consideration on a blanket basis. The appropriateness of the applied methods and input factors is assured in that they are checked each year for maximum objectivity and whether they are up to date and then adjusted if necessary.

IFRS

The differences essentially result from the different carrying amounts at economic value instead of at cost.

However, the key difference is that the item "Loans and mortgages to individuals" under IFRS includes, in particular, loans under home loan savings contracts, as well as preliminary and interim financing loans made by Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG to customers. These values are not included in the Solvency II value due to the different scopes of consolidation.

D.2 Technical provisions

Composition of technical provisions

The following table lists the technical provisions - consisting of the two components "Best estimate" and "Risk margin" - of the Solvency II group by business line. The second column presents the corresponding IFRS provisions.

	Solvency II	IFRS (carrying amount)
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Non-life (excluding health)	1,211,247	2,277,035
Best estimate	1,017,197	-
Risk margin	194,050	-
Health (similar to non-life)	-4,904	156,019
Best estimate	-28,812	-
Risk margin	23,908	-
Health (similar to life)	1,489,592	2,366,824
Best estimate	588,475	-
Risk margin	901,117	-
Life (excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked)	29,676,163	26,625,207
Best estimate	29,672,951	-
Risk margin	3,212	-
Index-linked and unit-linked	1,821,024	2,079,699
Best estimate	1,698,704	-
Risk margin	122,319	-
Total technical provisions	34,193,122	33,504,78

The recognition of the indicated risk margin is materially influenced by the utilised transitional arrangement on provisions. Please see the following section for an explanation of the transitional arrangement on provisions. The utilised transitional arrangement on provisions is determined per business line, with the deduction initially being made from the risk margin of the respective business line. Portions of the deduction permitted by the transitional arrangement on provisions that exceed the risk margin are deducted from the best estimate of the respective business line.

Solvency II

Under Solvency II, the technical provisions of the Solvency II group are the sum of the best estimate and the risk mar-

The consolidated best estimate is calculated pursuant to Article 339 of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35. In this regard, the values for the technical provisions of the subsidiaries are used as the basis and adjusted for internal Group transactions.

The second-tier calculation bases for Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG were updated as scheduled in the reporting period. Other than that, there were no material changes at any of the subsidiaries to the assumptions on which calculation of the technical provisions was based.

In accordance with Article 340 of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35, the Group risk margin is the sum of the risk margins of the subsidiaries.

As at the reporting date, the reinsurance recoverables of the Solvency II group amounted to €27,752 thousand. They correspond to the reinsurers' portion of technical provisions.

Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG applies the volatility adjustment pursuant to Section 82 VAG and the transitional arrangement on provisions pursuant to Section 352 VAG. The provisions of the individual undertaking are included in the calculation of the technical provisions at the Group level, giving consideration, if necessary, to the volatility adjustment and the transitional arrangement on provisions. Because of the transitional arrangement on provisions approved by BaFin, Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG is temporarily permitted to claim a deduction in the case of technical provisions. This deduction corresponds to a portion of the difference between the technical provisions (after deduction of the reinsurance recoverables) that were calculated as at 1 January 2016 under Solvency II and the value of this item that was calculated under the HGB as at 31 December 2015. The maximum deductible portion falls at the start of each calendar year on a straight-line basis from 100% in 2016 to 0% on 1 January 2032.

In the course of the volatility adjustment, Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG applies a premium of seven basis points on the yield curve as at the reporting date.

The following table shows the effects that result from non-consideration of the volatility adjustment and non-consideration of the transitional arrangement on provisions.

	Solvency II	excluding consideration of the volatility adjustment	excluding consideration of the transitional arrangement on provisions	excluding consideration of the transitional arrangement on provisions and excluding consideration of the volatility adjustment
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Technical provisions	34,193,122	34,235,146	36,452,394	36,494,417
Basic own funds	5,028,302	5,118,637	3,585,411	3,682,626
Own funds eligible for the Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR)	6,841,710	6,932,045	5,398,818	5,496,034
Own funds eligible for the Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR)	5,028,302	5,118,637	3,585,411	3,682,626
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR)	2,938,371	3,109,878	2,919,434	3,088,428
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR)	1,129,606	1,214,485	1,050,178	1,133,665
Solvency ratio (in %)	232.8	222.9	184.9	178.0
Minimum solvency ratio (in %)	445.1	421.5	341.4	324.8

Neither the matching adjustment pursuant to Section 80 VAG nor the transitional arrangement on the term structure of interest rates pursuant to Section 351 VAG is used.

For further information about the impact of the volatility adjustment and the transitional arrangement on provisions, please see Template S.22.01.22 in the Annex.

Differences compared with IFRS

In conformity with IFRS 4, insurance-specific business transactions for which IFRS do not include any specific rules are recognised in accordance with the relevant rules of commercial law pursuant to Sections 341 et seq. HGB and the regulations based on them. All insurance contracts concluded by W&W Group undertakings transfer significant insurance risk, i.e. they are insurance contracts within the meaning of IFRS 4. Pursuant to IFRS 4.14 (a), liabilities may not be recognised for fluctuation reserves to be created in property and casualty insurance according to national rules, nor for reserves similar to fluctuation reserves.

The business lines for which reserves are measured under the HGB are more granular than the Solvency II business lines. Each of the individual business lines for which reserves are measured under the HGB is assigned to a specific Solvency II business line. This ensures the availability of the data needed for the calculations and the consistent applicability of the calculation results for risk management and reporting purposes.

The valuation differences between the technical provisions for solvency purposes and those under IFRS are the result of valuation differences in the technical provisions of the individual companies. Therefore, the following summarises only the material valuation differences. For other differences, please see Section D.2 of the respective Solvency and Financial Condition Reports of the individual undertakings as at the reporting date.

- Under Solvency II, the technical provisions for the business lines "Life excluding health and index-linked and unitlinked" and "Health (similar to life)" are calculated with the aid of cash flows from premiums and for benefits, using a risk-free yield curve. The expected profit participation is included, particularly for future years. Under the HGB, technical provisions are determined as at a cut-off date.
- In the business line "Non-life (excluding health)", the premium provisions under Solvency II are compared with the HGB provision for unearned premiums, and the Solvency II claims provision corresponds to the HGB provision for outstanding insurance claims. A key difference is that the HGB items are not discounted. In contrast to the provision for unearned premiums, future cash flows are also taken into consideration in the premium provisions. In contrast to the Solvency II premium provision, the provision for unearned premiums corresponds merely to the pro rata temporis unearned premiums. A key difference in the valuation of the claims provision is that the reserve policy under HGB takes the principle of prudence into account.
- Moreover, in the area of health insurance, valuation differences are attributable to the fact that business is sometimes categorised differently in the areas "Health (similar to life)" and "Health (similar to non-life)". For instance, only short-term obligations under Solvency II fall under the business line "Health (similar to non-life)".
- A provision corresponding to the risk margin is not found in the HGB. The risk of future fluctuations in the amounts required to satisfy obligations by a best estimate is implicitly taken into consideration under the HGB through prudent actuarial assumptions and prudent reserving.

In addition to those mentioned above, differences between the Solvency II values and the IFRS values also result from the fact that the technical provisions of Allgemeine Rentenanstalt Pensionskasse AG are not included in the Solvency II value for technical provisions.

Analysis of the total value of the Group's technical provisions

The following presents an analysis of the Solvency II provisions of the individual business lines. The technical provisions of the individual undertakings are used to calculate the technical provisions of the Solvency II group. For a description of the bases, methods and main assumptions used to derive them, please see Section D.2 of the respective Solvency and Financial Condition Reports of the individual undertakings as at the reporting date. In the Group solvency overview, the provisions of the individual undertakings are adjusted for internal Group transactions. This mainly relates to W&W AG, which offers reinsurance coverage to Württembergische Versicherung AG.

In addition, the provisions of W&W AG are further adjusted in the course of consolidation. W&W AG as an individual undertaking values its provisions with one-year contract limits, whereas Württembergische Versicherung AG does so on the basis of multi-year contract limits. Therefore, in order to be able to consolidate uniformly on the basis of the multiyear view, a corrective booking is made to the provisions of W&W AG in the amount of the value differences between the one-year and multi-year view. The corrective booking has only a minor impact on the amount of the technical provisions of the Solvency II group.

The technical provisions of the Solvency II group can be broken down as follows:

Non-life (excluding health)	
in € thousands	31.12.2020
Group provisions	1,211,247
Württembergische Versicherung AG	1,122,070
W&W AG	89,178

The business line "Non-life (excluding health)" contributes about 3.5% to the technical provisions of the Solvency II group after consolidation. Most of these provisions are attributable to Württembergische Versicherung AG. The remainder of the Group provisions in the business line "Non-life (excluding health)" result from the provisions of W&W AG.

Health (similar to non-life)	
in € thousands	31.12.2020
Group provisions	-4,904
W&W AG	7,018
Württembergische Versicherung AG	-11,922

The provisions in the business line "Health (similar to non-life)" are negative in some cases on the level of the individual undertakings. This relates in particular to the provisions of Württembergische Versicherung AG. The provisions result from claims provisions and premium provisions. The premium provisions consist of future premium payments, future claim payments and costs incurred in the future. In making the determination, the outstanding premium payments are taken into account with negative signs, thereby reducing the best estimate of the premium provisions.

Health (similar to life)	
in € thousands	31.12.2020
Group provisions	1,489,592
Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG	1,045,882
Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG	326,105
Württembergische Versicherung AG	84,073
W&W AG	33,533

The business line "Health (similar to life)" contributes 4.4% to the technical provisions of the Solvency II group after consolidation. Most of these provisions are created by Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG for occupational disability insurance, as well as by Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG. This is accompanied by the provisions of Württembergische Versicherung AG for annuities stemming from liability, casualty and motor vehicle contracts that are related to health insurance obligations.

Life (excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked)	
in € thousands	31.12.2020
Group provisions	29,676,163
Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG	29,601,196
Württembergische Versicherung AG	73,717
W&W AG	1,250

Of the technical provisions of the Solvency II group after consolidation, 86.8% are attributable to the business line "Life (excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked)". The majority of these provisions come from Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG. Some of the technical provisions of Württembergische Versicherung AG are attributable to the business line "Life (excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked)". This portion is created for annuities stemming from liability, casualty and motor vehicle contracts that are related to other insurance obligations (with the exception of health insurance obligations).

Index-linked and unit-linked	
in € thousands	31.12.2020
Group provisions	1,821,023
Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG	1,821,023

Approximately 5.3% of the technical provisions of the Solvency II group after consolidation are attributable to the business line "Index-linked and unit-linked". All of these provisions are attributable to Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG.

Uncertainty in the valuations

The calculation of the best estimate of the technical provisions depends on the choice of the model underlying the estimate method and the parameters chosen within the model. Both the methods and the choice of parameters are subjective to a certain degree. Based on the available data, two experienced actuaries may reach different decisions about which methods and parameters to use for the estimate and thus also reach different results. The uncertainty associated with the choice of the model is called "model error". The sources of a model error may be:

- Emergence of new classes of losses or obligations not previously known,
- Changes in the reserving for individual losses under the HGB,
- Changes in claims settlement,
- Case law (liability, indemnity totals, etc.)
- Latent losses,
- Medical progress,
- Changes in inflation rates
- Other social, economic, legal or political influences.

The parameters used in a model are estimated on the basis of past observations. These observations are to a certain extent random in their realisation. The resulting uncertainty about the parameters used in the model is called "parameter error".

The best estimate is a probability-weighted average of possible future realisations of a random event. Thus, as seen today, the actual realisation in the future is only a possibility and may deviate from the calculated best estimate. This uncertainty is called "process error" or "random error".

In order to quantify the degree of uncertainty associated with the calculation of technical provisions, various sensitivity analyses were performed. The uncertainty in the technical provisions of the Solvency II group is based on the uncertainties associated with the provisions of the individual companies. Because of the various divisions of the individual companies of the Solvency II group and the variety of methods associated with this for calculating technical provisions, uncertainties also arise from a variety of sources. For an analysis of the individual undertakings concerning their uncertainties, please see Section D.2 of the respective Solvency and Financial Condition Reports of the individual undertakings as at the reporting date.

D.3 Miscellaneous liabilities

Pension benefit obligations

	Solvency II	IFRS (carrying amount)	Delta
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Pension benefit obligations	1,485,573	1,985,935	-500,362

Solvency II

Recognised under this item is the pension provision. For the IFRS consolidated financial statements, the pension provision is valued in accordance with the rules in IAS 19 "Employee Benefits" and used accordingly for Solvency II purposes.

IFRS

Differences between the values under Solvency II and IFRS result from the fact that several companies (particularly Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG) are not fully consolidated in Solvency II.

Deferred tax liabilities

	Solvency II	IFRS (carrying amount)	Delta
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Deferred tax liabilities	966,083	447,567	518,516

Solvency II

The method for calculating deferred tax liabilities follows the rules in IAS 12. Deferred tax liabilities are created for Solvency II purposes because of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the solvency overview drawn up pursuant to Solvency II and the tax carrying amounts pursuant to local tax rules of each company. In order to increase meaningfulness and comparability, deferred taxes are for the first time shown netted in these financial statements.

IFRS

Valuation differences compared with IFRS financial reporting result from the different reference values used to create deferred tax liabilities. Deferred tax liabilities under Solvency II are created on the basis of different carrying amounts in the balance sheet drawn up for tax purposes and in the solvency overview. By contrast, deferred tax liabilities in the IFRS consolidated financial statements are created on the basis of different carrying amounts between the balance sheet drawn up for tax purposes and the IFRS consolidated balance sheet.

Leasing agreements

For an explanation of leasing information, please see Section A.4.

D.4 Alternative valuation methods

Alternative valuation methods are applied to the extent specified by supervisory law. Detailed information about them are reported to the supervisory authorities. Pursuant to statutory requirements, no further information about alternative valuation methods is necessary in this report.

D.5 Other information

The amount of the transitional measure used to calculate the technical provisions of Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG, (see Section D.2 "Technical provisions") is reduced annually on 1 January. As a result, the technical provisions increased on 1 January 2020 by €188,273 thousand. Basic own funds, own funds eligible for the Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) and own funds eligible for the Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) fell in the Solvency II group by €120,504 thousand. The effects of the annual deduction of the transitional measure on the Solvency Capital Requirement and the Minimum Capital Requirement are insignificant.

Other than the facts and circumstances presented in the foregoing sections, there is no other material information.

W&W AG Solvency II group

E. Capital management

E.1 Own funds

Overview

An overarching framework has been implemented for capital management in the W&W Group, the Solvency II group and W&W AG, which specifies the goals and principles for capital management and defines the capital management process. With the elimination of the financial holding group (pursuant to BaFin decision of 22 July 2020), supervisory requirements with respect to the financial holding group no longer need to be met in capital management.

Our capital management aims at

- ensuring adequate risk-bearing capacity, especially on the basis of the economic risk-bearing capacity model,
- fulfilling the regulatory Minimum Capital Requirement,
- optimising capital allocation within the Group,
- enabling an adequate return on the capital employed,
- ensuring capital flexibility and
- making use of strategic market opportunities.

The capital management process takes into consideration strategic targets from the business strategy process and, derived from it, from the risk strategy process. The strategy results in parameters for managing capital adequacy, particularly the setting of internal target ratios and the specification of basic conditions for capital adequacy. These parameters for capital management are implemented and reviewed through the planning and extrapolation process. As part of capital monitoring and reporting during the year, the compliance with capital targets is reviewed.

The capital management process thus ensures that potential capital needs of the W&W Group are identified early on. Capital needs are identified on the basis of internal target ratios. In this regard, the target ratios are defined as minimum ratios, whose achievement is aspired to. Internally, the W&W Group has set target solvency ratios for the large subsidiaries as well as for the Solvency II group and the financial conglomerate that are significantly above the current statutory requirements in order to ensure the continued high stability of the groups and of the individual companies. After a capital need is identified, measures are normally developed and implemented to cover the capital need. In doing so, various alternatives are examined, e.g. change of new business mix, risk reduction, reinvestment of results, capital measures like raising new subordinated capital, etc. When measures are established, the impact on solvency and economic risk-bearing capacity is examined. In the case of capital measures, the eligibility of own funds under applicable supervisory rules is in particular to be assured.

The own fund planning process is a key part of the capital management process in the W&W Group. The own fund planning of W&W AG, the W&W Group and the subsidiaries is based on income statement/balance sheet planning and is thus an integral part of the business planning process. As a rule, our business planning covers the following three financial years. In this regard, own fund planning takes place from a supervisory and from an economic perspective. As part of own fund planning, eligible own funds (broken down by quality class) are compared with the Solvency Capital Requirement over a five-year planning horizon. The Solvency Capital Requirement is calculated using the Solvency II standard approach. For economic risk-bearing capacity, economic risk capital requirements are determined on the basis of an economic risk-bearing capacity model and compared with the available economic capital.

As at 31 December 2020, the supervisory solvency ratio pursuant to Solvency II amounted to 232.8% (previous year: 238.4%). It consisted of eligible own funds of €6,841,710 thousand (previous year: €6,833,300 thousand) and the Solvency Capital Requirement of €2,938 371 thousand (previous year: €2,866,573 thousand). As a consequence of the higher Solvency Capital Requirement, the ratio deteriorated year over year.

As at 31 December 2020, the minimum solvency ratio pursuant to Solvency II amounted to 445.1% (previous year: 460.4%). It consisted of eligible own funds of €5,028,302 thousand (previous year: €4,883,263 thousand) and the Solvency Capital Requirement of €1,129,606 thousand (previous year: €1,060,748 thousand). As a consequence of the minimum Solvency Capital Requirement, the ratio deteriorated year over year.

In addition, the Solvency II group also discloses ratios that exclude the transitional measures and the volatility adjustment applied by Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG. These can be found, along with an explanation, in Section

Determination of eligible Group own funds

Eligible Group own funds under Solvency II are calculated in four steps:

- The starting point for the calculation is the excess of assets over liabilities in the consolidated Group solvency over-
- For the calculation of available own funds, certain other items are added to or subtracted from the excess of assets over liabilities for available own funds, such as subordinated liabilities.
- Eligible own fund items that are subject to limited transferability, as well as the minority holdings of the individual companies, are capped (under certain conditions).
- · Limitations are examined for whether own funds in "poor" quality levels may be eligible only up to the statutorily
- · Own funds of entities from other financial sectors belonging to the Solvency II group that are calculated according to sectoral rules are added on a pro rata basis.

Excess of assets over liabilities

The excess of assets over liabilities pursuant to Solvency II and IFRS equity consisted of the following as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

Excess of assets over liabilities					
	Solvency II	IFRS	Solvency II	IFRS	
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2019	31.12.2019	
Total assets	45,687,224	76,472,481	44,451,894	75,725,861	
Total liabilities	37,826,024	71,386,218	36,525,119	70,889,717	
Excess of assets over liabilities	7,861,200	5,086,263	7,926,775	4,836,144	
Subscribed capital	493,334		492,881		
Reserve capital (premium from the capital contribution)	994,742		995,195		
Interests of W&W shareholders in paid-in capital		1,486,463		1,486,514	
Interests of W&W shareholders in earned capital		3,556,194		3,313,465	
Non-controlling interests in equity		42,494		35,103	
Own shares	3,103	1,113	2,852	1,062	
Foreseeable dividends	60,927		60,937		
Surplus funds	1,340,582		1,279,941		
Reconciliation reserve	4,968,512		5,094,968		

The differences between Solvency II and IFRS result from revaluation effects as a consequence of the complete economic valuation in the Group solvency overview: under Solvency II compared with the IFRS consolidated financial statements. For an explanation of the value differences for key items, between Solvency II and the IFRS, please see Sections D.1 to D.3.

W&W AG is the ultimate parent undertaking. Thus, particularly the subscribed capital and the capital reserve of W&W AG are recognised within the excess of assets over liabilities.

Surplus funds are calculated as the expected present value of future payments from the provision for premium refunds under German commercial law, which was not specified as at the valuation date. Pursuant to Section 93 of the German Act on the Supervision of Insurance Undertakings (VAG), the funds are own funds in quality level 1. The rise in surplus funds was the result, in particular, of the change in the free provision for premium refunds under the HGB at Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG.

The reconciliation reserved amounted to €4,968,512 thousand (previous year: €5,094,968 thousand) and consisted of the following components:

- Reserves from valuation differences,
- Interests of W&W shareholders in earned capital,
- Non-controlling interests in equity and
- Non-consideration of the surplus funds.

The reserves from valuation differences arise from revaluation effects between Solvency II and IFRS. The amount of these reserves and thus also the amount of the reconciliation reserve depend on the capital market situation prevailing on the reporting date, particularly on the risk-free yield curve calculated by the European Insurance and Occupational Pensions Authority (EIOPA), and are thus subject to a certain degree of volatility. The degree of sensitivity compared with the yield curve depends on the maturity mismatches between interest-bearing assets and liabilities (duration gap). In order to further reduce this sensitivity and thus the volatility of the reconciliation reserve, an effort is made to extend maturities on the assets side through targeted investments and thus to reduce maturity mismatches.

The reserves from valuation differences include the transitional arrangement on provisions after taxes of Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG, which amounted to €1,570,872 thousand. For explanations, please see Section D.2. Also included are, inter alia, future shareholder returns and the going-concern reserve. The going-concern reserve is calculated as the portion of future cost surpluses that is "bequeathed" to new business. Because of minor valuation differences between Solvency II and IFRS, the reconciliation reserve declined.

Available own funds under Solvency II consisted of the following as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

Available own funds					
		Solvency II			
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2019			
Excess of assets over liabilities	7,861,200	7,926,775			
Less own interests	3,103	2,852			
Less foreseeable dividends	60,927	60,937			
Subordinated liabilities	254,130	254,486			
Basic own funds before deductions	8,051,300	8,117,471			
Ancillary own funds	-	-			
Available own funds	8,051,300	8,117,471			

Eligible subordinated liabilities at the Group level were issued by Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG. In 2014 Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG issued a subordinated loan in the nominal amount of €250,000 thousand, of which €20,000 thousand is held within the Group. This debt security matures in 30 years. In 2015 Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG issued a further subordinated bearer bond with a volume in the nominal amount of €250,000 thousand without a final maturity date, of which €247,000 thousand is held within the Group. Both subordinated loans fully meet the Solvency II criteria for classification in quality level 2. The subordinated debenture bond issued by Württembergische Versicherung AG with a nominal value of €30,000 thousand ceased in the previous year to be an item of available own funds due to final maturity on 9 July 2020.

The Solvency II group does not have any ancillary own funds. Principal loss absorbency under Article 71(1)(e) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35 does not take place.

At the time of publication, a proposal for the appropriation of profit was in place for the ultimate parent undertaking, W&W AG, calling for the unappropriated surplus of W&W AG generated in the 2020 financial year in the amount of €80,795 thousand to be utilised as follows: distribution of a dividend in the amount of €0.65 for each share entitled to receive dividends.

W&W AG distributed a dividend totalling €60,927 thousand for the 2020 financial year.

Restrictions on the fungibility and transferability of own funds from related undertakings

The determination of the effectively available own fund items that are calculated for the purpose of covering the Solvency Capital Requirement of the Solvency II group takes into consideration the fungibility and transferability of own funds from related undertakings pursuant to the Solvency II rules.

Own fund items are considered to be fungible if there are no legal or regulatory restrictions with respect to their ability to offset losses incurred at various locations in the Group.

The transferability of own funds is considered to be not limited if there are no significant impediments to the shifting of own fund items from one undertaking to another.

The insurance undertakings and the ancillary services undertakings of the Solvency II group (hereinafter, the "core group") are taken into consideration for the purposes of capping. The own funds of W&W AG as the ultimate parent undertaking of the Solvency II group are considered to be fully transferable. For the own fund items of entities from other financial sectors, an evaluation of availability is not necessary, since they are taken into consideration in accordance with the sector rules at the level of the Group.

Capping of own funds with restricted transferability

The following own fund items of the insurance undertakings and the ancillary services undertakings of the Solvency II group are classified as having restricted transferability:

- Surplus funds pursuant to Section 254 (2) No. 1 of the German Act on the Supervision of Insurance Undertakings
- Subordinated liabilities.
- Net deferred tax assets.

Own funds with restricted transferability are taken into consideration for the calculation of eligible own funds of the Solvency II group only up to the amount of the so-called "risk contribution" of the respective Solvency Capital Requirement of the individual undertakings toward the Group Solvency Capital Requirement. Amounts in excess of this are

As at 31 December 2020, a total of €1,091,127 thousand (previous year: €1,154,441 thousand) of own funds with restricted transferability was capped. The increase compared with the previous year was the result, in particular, of the rise in surplus funds.

Capping of minority interests

Following any capping of own funds classified as non-transferable, the own fund items of related undertakings that exceed the risk contribution are to be further reduced by the minority interests.

As at 31 December 2020, a total of €118,463 thousand (previous year: €129,730 thousand) of minority interests was capped. The decline compared with the previous year was largely the result of the increase in the capping of own funds with restricted transferability. The amount by which the minority interests is to be reduced was accordingly smaller.

Overview of capping

The following presents the capping of own funds with restricted transferability and minority interests as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

Own funds not eligible for the Solvency Capital Requirement			
	Solvency II		
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2019	
Capping of own funds with restricted transferability	1,091,127	1,154,441	
Surplus funds	836,997	963,014	
Subordinated liabilities	254,130	191,427	
Capping of minority interests	118,463	129,730	
Total capping	1,209,590	1,284,171	

The capping of surplus funds relates to two insurance undertakings:

- Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG (WL), Stuttgart,
- Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG (WK), Stuttgart.

The capping of subordinated liabilities and of minority interests relates nearly exclusively to Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG. As at 31 December 2020, there were no net deferred tax assets.

For the insurance undertaking in question, the capping of own funds with restricted transferability and of minority interests consisted of the following as at 31 December 2020:

	WL	WK
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Own funds with restricted transferability	1,519,719	74,993
Risk contribution	470,974	32,611
Capping of own funds with restricted transferability	1,048,745	42,382
Surplus funds	794,615	42,382
Subordinated liabilities	254,130	-
Capping of minority interests	118,446	-
Total capping	1,167,191	42,382

The capping of minority interests for ancillary services undertakings amounts to €18 thousand.

There are no other restrictions on the fungibility and transferability of own funds eligible for covering the Solvency Capital Requirement of the Solvency II group.

Limitation of own funds

The consideration of the prescribed limitations does not lead to any reduction in the Group own funds eligible for the Solvency Capital Requirement.

The consideration of the prescribed limitations also does not lead to any reduction in the Group own funds eligible for the Minimum Capital Requirement.

Own funds of entities from other financial sectors

Own funds of entities from other financial sectors belonging to the Solvency II group that are calculated according to sectoral rules amounted to €1,813,408 thousand (previous year: €1,950,037 thousand) as at 31 December 2020. This includes an Additional Tier 1 bond of Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG in the nominal amount of €30,000 thousand. It belongs to quality level 1 restricted.

Eligible own funds

The reconciliation of available own funds with eligible own funds is as follows:

		Solvency II
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2019
Available own funds	8,051,300	8,117,471
Capping of own funds with restricted transferability	-1,091,127	-1,154,441
Capping of minority interests	-118,463	-129,730
Less own funds of entities from other financial sectors	-1,813,408	-1,950,037
Eligible own funds of the core group	5,028,302	4,883,263
Own funds of entities from other financial sectors	1,813,408	1,950,037

The own funds eligible for the Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) are distributed as follows across the three quality levels under Solvency II:

Own funds eligible for the SCR by quality level					
	Total	Quality level 1	Quality level 1 restricted	Quality level 2	Quality level 3
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020
Eligible own funds of the core group	5,028,302	5,028,302			
Eligible own funds of entities from other financial sectors	1,813,407	1,680,055	30,000	103,352	-
Eligible own funds of the Solvency II group	6,841,709	6,708,357	30,000	103,352	-

By comparison, the own funds eligible for the Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) were distributed as at 31 December 2019 as follows across the three quality levels under Solvency II:

Own funds eligible for the SCR by quality level (previous year)						
	Total	Quality level 1	Quality level 1 restricted	Quality level 2	Quality level 3	
in € thousands	31.12.2019	31.12.2019	31.12.2019	31.12.2019	31.12.2019	
Eligible own funds of the core group	4,883,263	4,828,446	-	54,817	-	
Eligible own funds of entities from other financial sectors	1,950,037	1,770,070	30,000	149,967	_	
Eligible own funds of the Solvency II group	6,833,300	6,598,516	30,000	204,784	-	

In summary, the increase in eligible own funds was mainly the result of the higher risk contribution, which led to a lower capping of owns funds with limited transferability and minority interests.

The decline in own funds of entities from other financial sectors was primarily the result of the sale of the Czech participations Wüstenrot stabevní sporitelna a.s. and Wüstenrot hypotecní banka a.s.

The own funds eligible for the Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) were distributed as follows as at 31 December 2020:

Own funds eligible for the MCR by quality level					
	Total	Quality level 1	Quality level 1 restricted	Quality level 2	Total
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2019
Eligible own funds of the Solvency II group	5,028,302	5,028,302	-	-	4,883,263

As a rule, only own funds in quality levels 1 and 2 are eligible for the MCR. Own funds of entities from other financial sectors are not eligible at all for the MCR.

For further information about own funds, please see Template S.23.01.22 in the Annex.

E.2 Solvency Capital Requirement and Minimum Capital Requirement

The Solvency Capital Requirement and the Minimum Capital Requirement of the core group are calculated using the Solvency II standard approach. In this regard, method 1 (consolidation method) was used to calculate the Solvency Capital Requirement. The requirements as at 31 December 2020 were as follows:

Solvency Capital Requirement of the core g	roup			
	Sum of the individual undertakings	Consolidation/div ersification	Core group	Core group
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2020	31.12.2019
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR)	3,751,335	-1,908,754	1,842,580	1,647,476
Market risk	5,016,340	-1,834,486	3,181,854	3,038,347
Counterparty default risk	409,609	-268,308	141,302	140,248
Life underwriting risk	1,461,039	-1,203	1,459,837	1,212,722
Health underwriting risk	1,778,711	-102,684	1,676,028	1,523,337
Non-life underwriting risk	902,194	-9,344	892,850	864,806
Intangible asset risk	-	-	-	-
Diversification	-2,279,019	-165,020	-2,444,039	-2,228,569
Operational risk	235,394	-50,155	185,239	173,342
Loss-absorbing capacity of the technical provisions	-3,101,748	180,932	-2,920,816	-2,834,939
Loss-absorbing capacity of deferred taxes	-671,186	341,513	-329,673	-241,817

As was the case in the previous year, market risk constitutes the risk module of the core group with the highest Solvency Capital Requirement, which results, in particular, from the spread risk from capital investments. In this regard, the year-on-year rise in the market risk was mainly due to a rise in the spread and property risk coupled with a simultaneous decline in the interest rate and foreign currency risk.

The Solvency Capital Requirement for market risk is followed by the risk modules health underwriting risk, life underwriting risk and non-life underwriting risk. The rise in the total Solvency Capital Requirement was attributable, in particular, also to the increase in underwriting risk. Life underwriting risk rose by €247,115 thousand, which was particularly attributable to the increase in the cancellation risk. In addition, health underwriting risk rose by €152,691 thousand. The increase resulted, inter alia, from a higher risk potential from mass cancellation.

The increase in underwriting risk and market risk is attenuated through a higher diversification and a higher lossabsorbing capacity of technical provisions. On balance, the Solvency Capital Requirement of the core group rose by €195,104 thousand and now stands at €1,842,580 thousand.

As is mandated for all insurance undertakings, the final amount of the Solvency Capital Requirement is still subject to supervisory review.

The difference between the sum of the Solvency Capital Requirements of the individual undertakings (W&W AG, Württembergische Versicherung AG, Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG and Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG) and the Solvency Capital Requirement of the core group was due to consolidation and diversification effects. Important consolidation and diversification effects exist in the following areas:

Diversification:

Because of the differing manifestation of the risk positioning of the individual undertakings (e.g. various asset classes, different cash flow structure), there is a clear diversification effect at the Group level, particularly in market risk.

Consolidation effects:

- Market risk:
 - In calculating the Solvency Capital Requirement of W&W AG as an individual undertaking, its participation risks (e.g. Württembergische Versicherung AG, Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG, Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG and various entities from other financial sectors) are included in the calculation of market risk. However, the Solvency Capital Requirement of the core group is calculated on consolidated portfolios. For this reason, the Group value is lower than the total value from the individual undertakings.
- Counterparty default risk: Because of internal Group relationship, various circumstances are to be consolidated in this risk area. This relates, in particular, to the reinsurance relationship between Württembergische Versicherung AG and W&W AG and to the claims for satisfaction of pension obligations that the individual undertakings Württembergische Versicherung AG, Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG and Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG have against W&W AG.

In calculating the Solvency Capital Requirement in the area of counterparty default risk, the individual undertakings apply the simplifications provided for in of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35. The core group undertakings in the W&W AG Solvency II group do not use any undertaking-specific parameters, and no capital add-ons were specified.

As at 31 December 2020, the Solvency Capital Requirement of the Solvency II group consisted of the following:

Solvency Capital Requirement of the Solvency II group		
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2019
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) of the core group	1,842,580	1,647,476
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) of other financial sector (OFS) entities	941,369	1,084,510
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) of other entities	154,422	134,588
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) of the Solvency II group	2,938,371	2,866,573

The Solvency Capital Requirement of entities from other financial sectors is calculated using the sectoral requirements of the individual undertakings. It amounted to €941,369 thousand. Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG made the largest contribution to this. The main reason for the lowering of the Solvency Capital Requirement for these undertakings was the sale of the two Czech companies that took place in the reporting period.

The Solvency Capital Requirement of other entities amounted to €154,422 thousand. This includes, inter alia, immaterial ancillary services undertakings. By contrast, material ancillary services undertakings are included in the item "Solvency Capital Requirement of the core group". The increase in the Solvency Capital Requirement of other entities was mainly the result of a higher volume of participations in private equity funds.

For further information about the Solvency Capital Requirement, please see Template S.25.01.22 in the Annex.

Minimum Capital Requirement		
in € thousands	31.12.2020	31.12.2019
W&W AG	454,829	467,565
Württembergische Versicherung AG	226,691	226,139
Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG	431,489	357,918
Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG	16,598	9,125
Solvency Capital Requirement (MCR) of the Solvency II group	1,129,606	1,060,748

The Minimum Capital Requirement of the core group as at 31 December 2020 is the sum of the Minimum Capital Requirements of the individual undertakings W&W AG, Württembergische Versicherung AG, Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG and Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG. Thus, the Minimum Capital Requirement of the Solvency II group changes in accordance with the changes at the individual undertakings. In the reporting period, the Minimum Capital Requirement of the Solvency II group rose by 6.5% to €1,129,606 thousand. This was mainly the result of the increase in the Minimum Capital Requirement for Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG and for Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG.

Thus, with eligible MCR own funds as at 31 December 2020 of €5,028,302 thousand (see Section E.1), the minimum solvency ratio was 445.1%.

E.3 Use of the duration-based equity risk sub-module for calculating the Solvency Capital Requirement

Germany did not avail itself of the option to permit the use of a duration-based equity risk sub-module. Accordingly, the Solvency II group does not apply the duration-based equity risk sub-module for calculating the Solvency Capital Requirement.

E.4 Differences between the standard formula and any internal models used

The Solvency II group calculates the Solvency Capital Requirement using the Solvency II standard formula. It does not use an internal model or partial internal model.

E.5 Non-compliance with the Minimum Capital Requirement and noncompliance with the Solvency Capital Requirement

During the reporting period, the Solvency II group satisfied both the Minimum Capital Requirement and the Solvency Capital Requirement. Thus, no measures need to be initiated as a result of non-compliance with the Minimum Capital Requirement and the Solvency Capital Requirement.

E.6 Other information

Other than the facts and circumstances presented in the foregoing sections, there is no other material information.

W&W AG Solvency II group

Annex

Presented in the following are the templates to be attached pursuant to the Implementing Regulation. As mandated by statute, the information is provided in € thousands. As a result, where values are added together in the templates, the resulting values may show discrepancies due to rounding differences.

The following templates were not prepared and are therefore not being disclosed:

- Template S.05.02.01 (Premiums, claims and expenses by country) was not prepared because more that 90% of gross premiums written are attributable to Germany. The W&W Group is thus above the minimum threshold established in the supervisory requirements and is exempt from preparing the template.
- Templates S.25.02.22 (Solvency Capital Requirement for groups using the standard formula and partial internal model) and S.25.03.22 (Solvency Capital Requirement – for groups on full internal models) were not prepared because the Solvency II group uses the standard model.

S.32.01.22 | Undertakings in the scope of the group

Identification code of the undertaking	Type of code of the ID of the						
ondertaking	undertakin g	Legal name of the undertaking	Type of undertaking	Legal form	Category (mutual/non- mutual)	Supervisory authority	
C0020	C0030	C0040	C0050	C0060	C0070	C0080	
529900S1KHKOEQL5CK20	LEI	Wüstenrot Bausparkasse AG	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	Aktiengesells chaft	Non-mutual	Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistu ngsaufsicht	
529900DNVLRJM5QKRY82	LEI	Wüstenrot Grundstücksverwertungs- GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual		
529900CJRZC7LBQ9H951	LEI	Wüstenrot Immobilien GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual		
529900565ZW6QVDPSK87	LEI	W&W Asset Management GmbH	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	GmbH	Non-mutual	Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistu ngsaufsicht	
52990020NUD2MB9T1Q45	LEI	W&W Informatik GmbH	Ancillary services undertaking as defined in Article 1 (53) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35	GmbH	Non-mutual		
529900NNAODLWPJL8590	LEI	Wüstenrot Haus- und Städtebau GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual		
529900HL7QMBI1NA2Y03	LEI	GMA Gesellschaft für Markt- und Absatzforschung mbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual		
5299002T84M1G0AXDC55	LEI	Württembergische France Strasbourg S.à.r.l.	Other	SARL	Non-mutual		
635400EFNEEYYHBPZE70	LEI	W&W Asset Management Dublin DAC	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	Designated activity company	Non-mutual		
529900CUZTIJQGX2PW88	LEI	Württembergische KÖ 43 GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual		
52990080GSP6H1045T35	LEI	Württembergische Akademie GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual		
529900V55DM1855U2B36	LEI	Württembergische Vertriebspartner GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual		
529900DU31RELHZ50P77	LEI	Allgemeine Rentenanstalt Pensionskasse AG	Institution for occupational retirement provision	Aktiengesells chaft	Non-mutual	Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistu ngsaufsicht	
5299003RRH6Z1JD2XG72	LEI	3B Boden-Bauten-Beteiligungs-GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual		
5299009VLYX07V202D54	LEI	W&W Gesellschaft für Finanzbeteiligungen mbH	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	GmbH	Non-mutual		
5299000M2BK9M0UA4T79	LEI	Altmark Versicherungsmakler GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual		
529900CD8C2LS7GAUQ85	LEI	Württfeuer Beteiligungs-GmbH	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	GmbH	Non-mutual		
52990004XH8Y9Z1TPH87	LEI	Württembergische Immobilien AG	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	Aktiengesells chaft	Non-mutual		
529900L4XE3K2IIOKP13	LEI	Württembergische Rechtsschutz- Schaden-Service-GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual		
	529900DNVLRJM5QKRY82 529900CJRZC7LBQ9H951 529900565ZW6QVDPSK87 5299002ONUD2MB9T1Q45 529900NNAODLWPJL8590 529900HL7QMBI1NA2Y03 5299002T84M1GOAXDC55 635400EFNEEYYHBPZE70 529900CUZTIJQGX2PW88 529900SGSP6H1045T35 529900V55DM1855U2B36 529900V55DM1855U2B36 529900DU31RELHZ50P77 5299003RRH6Z1JD2XG72 5299009VLYXO7V202D54 5299000M2BK9M0UA4T79 529900CD8C2LS7GAUQ85 52990004XH8Y9Z1TPH87	529900DNVLRJM5QKRY82 LEI 529900CJRZC7LBQ9H951 LEI 529900565ZW6QVDPSK87 LEI 5299002ONUD2MB9T1Q45 LEI 529900NNAODLWPJL8590 LEI 529900HL7QMBI1NA2Y03 LEI 5299002T84M1GOAXDC55 LEI 635400EFNEEYYHBPZE70 LEI 529900CUZTIJQGX2PW88 LEI 5299008OGSP6H1045T35 LEI 529900V55DM1855U2B36 LEI 529900V55DM1855U2B36 LEI 529900DU31RELHZ50P77 LEI 529900DU31RELHZ50P77 LEI 5299003RRH6Z1JD2XG72 LEI 5299009VLYXO7V202D54 LEI 529900OM2BK9M0UA4T79 LEI 529900OM2BK9M0UA4T79 LEI 529900OM2BK9M0UA4T79 LEI 529900OM2BK9M0UA4T79 LEI	529900DNVLRJM5QKRY82 LEI Wüstenrot Grundstücksverwertungs- 6mbH 529900CJRZC7LBQ9H951 LEI Wüstenrot Immobilien GmbH 529900565ZW6QVDPSK87 LEI W&W Asset Management GmbH 5299002ONUD2MB9T1Q45 LEI Wästenrot Haus- und Städtebau GmbH 529900NNAODLWPJL8590 LEI Wüstenrot Haus- und Städtebau GmbH 529900HL7QMBI1NA2Y03 LEI Württembergische France Strasbourg S.à.r.l. 635400EFNEEYYHBPZE70 LEI Wäw Asset Management Dublin DAC 529900CUZTIJQGX2PW88 LEI Württembergische KÖ 43 GmbH 5299008OGSP6H1045T35 LEI Württembergische Vertriebspartner GmbH 529900DU31RELHZ50P77 LEI Allgemeine Rentenanstalt Pensionskasse AG 5299003RRH6Z1JD2XG72 LEI 3B Boden-Bauten-Beteiligungs-GmbH 5299000VLYXO7V202D54 LEI Wäw Gesellschaft für Finanzbeteiligungen mbH 529900CD8C2LS7GAUQ85 LEI Württembergische Immobilien AG	529900DNVLRJMSQKRY82 LEI Wüstenrot Grundstücksverwertungs- GmbH Other 529900CJRZC7LBQ9H951 LEI Wüstenrot Immobilien GmbH Other 529900565ZW6QVDPSK87 LEI W&W Asset Management GmbH Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution 5299002ONUD2MB9T1Q45 LEI W&W Informatik GmbH Ancillary services undertaking as defined in Article 1 (53) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35 529900NNAODLWPJL8590 LEI Wüstenrot Haus- und Städtebau GmbH Other 529900HL7GMBI1NA2Y03 LEI GMA Gesellschaft für Markt- und Absatzforschung mbH Other 5299002TB4M1GOAXDC55 LEI Württembergische France Strasbourg Other 534.6.1 Www. Asset Management Dublin DAC Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution 529900CUZTUJGGX2PW88 LEI Württembergische KÖ 43 GmbH Other 52990080GSP6H1045T35 LEI Württembergische Akademie GmbH Other 5299000DU31RELHZ50P77 LEI Allgemeine Rentenanstalt Institution for occupational retirement provision 5299009VtyXO7V202D54 LEI 3B Boden-Bauten-Beteiligungs-GmbH Other 5299009VtyXO7V202D54 LEI W&W Gesellschaft für Finanzbeteiligungen mbH Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution 5299000DU3RRH6Z1JDZXG72 LEI Altmark Versicherungsmakler GmbH Other 5299000DU3RBK9M0UA4T79 LEI Altmark Versicherungsmakler GmbH Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution 529900CBC2LS7GAUQ85 LEI Württembergische Immobilien AG Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution.	S29900DNVLRJMSQKRY82 LEI Wüstenrot Grundstücksverwertungs- GmbH Other GmbH S29900CJRZC7LBQ9H951 LEI Wüstenrot Immobilien GmbH Other GmbH S29900CJRZC7LBQ9H951 LEI Wäw Asset Management GmbH Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution Ancillary services undertaking as defined in Article 1 (53) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35 S299002DNUD2MB9T1Q45 LEI Wäwtenrot Haus- und Städtebau GmbH Other GmbH S29900NNAODLWFJLB590 LEI Wüstenrot Haus- und Städtebau GmbH Other GmbH S299001LTQMBI1NA2Y03 LEI GMA Gesellschaft für Markt- und Absatzforschung mbH S299002TR84M1GOAXDC55 LEI Württembergische France Strasbourg S.ä.r.l. G35400EFNEEYYHBPZE70 LEI Wäww Asset Management Dublin DAC Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution Ancillary services undertaking as defined in Article 1 (53) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35 Cher GmbH S299000ZTR4M1GOAXDC55 LEI Württembergische KÖ 43 GmbH Other GmbH S299000BOGSP6H1045135 LEI Württembergische Akademie GmbH Other GmbH S299000BOGSP6H1045135 LEI Württembergische Vertriebspartner GmbH S299000DU31RELHZ50P77 LEI Alligemeine Rentenanstalt Pensionskasse AG Institution for occupational retirement provision Aktiengesells 5299003RRH6Z1JDZXG72 LEI 3B Boden-Bauten-Beteiligungs-GmbH Other GmbH S299000VLYXO7V202D54 LEI Wäww Gesellschaft für Finanzbeteiligungen mbH Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution GmbH S299000CM2BK9MOUA4179 LEI Altmark Versicherungsmakler GmbH Other GmbH Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution Aktiengesells chaft Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution Aktiengesells chaft Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution Aktiengesells chaft Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution Aktiengesells chaft Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution Aktiengesells chaft	S29900DNVLRJMSQKRY82	S29900DNVLRIMSQNRYS LEI Wüsternot Grundstücksverweftungs- Other Other GmbH Non-mutual S29900CJRZC7LB09H951 LEI Wüsternot Immobilien GmbH Other GmbH Non-mutual S29900S65ZW0QVDPSR67 LEI W&W Asset Management GmbH And financial Institution, investment firm and financial Institution GmbH Non-mutual Financial Institution Financial Institution GmbH Non-mutual Financial Insti

					Criteria of influence	Inclusion in th	e scope of group supervision	Group solvenc calculation
% capital share	% used for the establishment of consolidated accounts	% voting rights	Other criteria	Level of influence	Proportional share used for group solvency calculation	YES/NO	Date of decision if Art. 214 is applied	Method used and under method 1, treatment of the undertaking
C0180	C0190	C0200	C0210	C0220	C0230	C0240	C0250	C0260
100.0	100.0	100.0		Dominant	100.0	Included in the scope		Method 1: Sectora rules
100.0	0.0	100.0		Dominant	0.0	Included in the scope		Other method
100.0	0.0	100.0		Dominant	0.0	Included in the scope		Other method
100.0	100.0	100.0		Dominant	100.0	Included in the scope		Method 1: Sectora
100.0	100.0	100.0		Dominant	100.0	Included in the scope		Method 1: Full consolidation
100.0	100.0	100.0		Dominant	0.0	Included in the scope		Other method
100.0	0.0	100.0		Dominant	0.0	Included in the scope		Other method
100.0	0.0	100.0		Dominant	0.0	Included in the scope		Other method
100.0	100.0	100.0		Dominant	100.0	Included in the scope		Method 1: Sectora rules
89.9	0.0	89.9		Dominant	0.0	Included in the scope		Other method
100.0	0.0	100.0		Dominant	0.0	Included in the scope		Other method
100.0	0.0	100.0		Dominant	0.0	Included in the scope		Other method
94.9	100.0	94.9		Dominant	94.9	Included in the scope		Method 1: Sectora rules
100.0	100.0	100.0		Dominant	0.0	Included in the scope		Other method
100.0	100.0	100.0		Dominant	100.0	Included in the scope		Method 1: Sectora rules
100.0	0.0	100.0		Dominant	0.0	Included in the scope		Other method
100.0	0.0	100.0		Dominant	100.0	Included in the scope		Method 1: Sectora rules
100.0	100.0	100.0		Dominant	100.0	Included in the scope		Method 1: Sectoral rules
100.0	0.0	100.0		Dominant	0.0	Included in the scope		Other method

S.32.01.22 | Undertakings in the scope of the group (continuation)

Country	Identification code of the undertaking	Type of code of the ID of the undertakin g	Legal name of the undertaking	Type of undertaking	Legal form	Category (mutual/non- mutual)	Supervisory authority
00010	C0020	C0030	C0040	C0050	C0060	C0070	C0080
DΕ	529900QYGMI9NHNTZ326	LEI	Beteiligungs-GmbH der Württembergischen	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual	
DΕ	529900VE4T3V4KKAWT68	LEI	WL Erneuerbare Energien Verwaltungs GmbH	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	GmbH	Non-mutual	
ÞΕ	52990090XKPK3PKV3586	LEI	Miethaus und Wohnheim GmbH i.L.	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual	
DΕ	529900FB29C36LKTAW50	LEI	V-Bank AG	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	Aktiengesells chaft	Non-mutual	Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistu ngsaufsicht
E	635400CI6PTHSYKCZG34	LEI	W&W Investment Managers DAC	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	Designated activity company	Non-mutual	
DE	529900X5W9AIGRURHZ17	LEI	BWK GmbH Unternehmensbeteiligungsgesellschaft	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	GmbH	Non-mutual	
DE	529900AFPUFKD829XX02	LEI	IVB - Institut für Vorsorgeberatung, Risiko- und Finanzierungsanalyse GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual	
HU	529900FB6W5ABZN08145	LEI	Fundamenta-Lakáskassza- Lakástakarékpénztár Zrt.	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	Zrt.	Non-mutual	Hungarian Financial Supervisory Authority
DΕ	5299002S5Z4QJ8XKUR28	LEI	Altmark Versicherungsvermittlung GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual	
ÞΕ	5299007ERE74KHXK4L75	LEI	W&W Service GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual	
ÞΕ	529900E5RXJBAJQXT676	LEI	Württembergische Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	GmbH	Non-mutual	
ÞΕ	529900AA1NUQGAO1HG78	LEI	Hinterbliebenenfürsorge der Deutschen Beamtenbanken GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual	
DE	529900JK2NDPTH0FVM12	LEI	Wohnimmobilien GmbH & Co. KG der Württembergischen	Ancillary services undertaking as defined in Article 1(53) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35	GmbH & Co. KG	Non-mutual	
ÞΕ	5299000CU0QEDKWUSS33	LEI	City Immobilien GmbH & Co. KG der Württembergischen	Ancillary services undertaking as defined in Article 1(53) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35	GmbH & Co. KG	Non-mutual	
E	5299009TXGTEFVHDYA25	LEI	Württembergische Logistik I GmbH & Co. KG	Other	GmbH & Co. KG	Non-mutual	
E	529900EKWNWVJKQDA164	LEI	Gerber GmbH & Co. KG	Ancillary services undertaking as defined in Article 1(53) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35	GmbH & Co. KG	Non-mutual	
ÞΕ	529900Y54ZKWC29NUN72	LEI	W&W Produktion GmbH i.L.	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual	
R	529900UPEBOMASZW4G96	LEI	Württembergische France Immobilière S.à.r.l.	Other	SARL	Non-mutual	
DE	529900XSSJDB2NMU0P31	LEI	WL Renewable Energy GmbH & Co. KG	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	GmbH & Co. KG	Non-mutual	

Group solvenc calculation	n the scope of group supervision	Inclusion in	Criteria of influence					
Method used and under method 1, treatment of the undertaking	Date of decision if Art. 214 is applied	YES/NO	Proportional share used for group solvency calculation	Level of influence	Other criteria	% voting rights	% used for the establishment of consolidated accounts	% capital share
C026	C0250	C0240	C0230	C0220	C0210	C0200	C0190	C0180
Other method		Included in the scope	0.0	Dominant		94.9	0.0	94.9
Method 1: Sectoral		Included in the scope	94.9	Dominant		94.9	0.0	94.9
Other method		Included in the scope	0.0	Dominant		100.0	0.0	100.0
Method 1: Sectora		Included in the scope	15.0	Significant		15.0	15.0	15.0
Method 1: Sectoral		Included in the scope	100.0	Dominant		100.0	100.0	100.0
Method 1: Sectoral		Included in the scope	34.1	Significant		34.1	34.1	34.1
Other method		Included in the scope	0.0	Dominant		94.9	0.0	94.9
Method 1: Sectora		Included in the scope	11.5	Significant		11.5	0.0	11.5
Other method		Included in the scope	0.0	Dominant		100.0	0.0	100.0
Other method		Included in the scope	0.0	Dominant		100.0	100.0	100.0
Method 1: Sectoral rules		Included in the scope	94.9	Dominant		94.9	0.0	94.9
Other method		Included in the scope	0.0	Dominant		94.9	0.0	94.9
Method 1: Full consolidation		Included in the scope	100.0	Dominant		94.9	100.0	94.9
Method 1: Full consolidation		Included in the scope	100.0	Dominant		94.9	100.0	94.9
Other method		Included in the scope	0.0	Dominant		94.9	0.0	94.9
Method 1: Full consolidation		Included in the scope	100.0	Dominant		94.9	100.0	94.9
Other method		Included in the scope	0.0	Dominant		100.0	0.0	100.0
Other method		Included in the scope	0.0	Dominant		100.0	0.0	100.0
Method 1: Sectora		Included in the scope	94.9	Dominant		94.9	100.0	94.9

S.32.01.22 | Undertakings in the scope of the group (continuation)

Country	Identification code of the undertaking	Type of code of the ID of the undertakin g	Legal name of the undertaking	Type of undertaking	Legal form	Category (mutual/non- mutual)	Supervisory authority	
C0010	C0020	C0030	C0040	C0050	C0060	C0070	C0080	
DE	529900AJX0PJDGE1NC77	LEI	WL Sustainable Energy GmbH & Co. KG	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	GmbH & Co. KG	Non-mutual		
DE	5299005GCMQTAID8DP71	LEI	Schulenburg GmbH & Co. KG	Other	GmbH & Co. KG	Non-mutual		
DE	529900ZJ3Z772SN6T284	LEI	Gestorf GmbH & Co. KG	Other	GmbH & Co. KG	Non-mutual		
DE	529900IUK7GEDCLF0189	LEI	Asendorfer Kippe ASK GmbH & Co. KG	Other	GmbH & Co. KG	Non-mutual		
DE	529900ZPA3NDJDND3L10	LEI	Ganzer GmbH & Co. KG	Other	GmbH & Co. KG	Non-mutual		
DE	529900EA5CMR95RA0R24	LEI	Windpark Golzow GmbH & Co. KG	Other	GmbH & Co. KG	Non-mutual		
DE	5299008WGKG60HGN7V46	LEI	WürttLeben Alternative Investments GmbH	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	GmbH	Non-mutual		
DE	529900WB102F3HTV0P05	LEI	WürttVers Alternative Investments GmbH	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	GmbH	Non-mutual		
DE	529900TEV6F0VFTB0Z17	LEI	KLV BAKO Vermittlungs-GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual		
DE	529900P7WCHGUPRR5464	LEI	KLV BAKO Dienstleistungs-GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual		
DE	529900PN2G6H0U073349	LEI	City Immobilien II GmbH & Co. KG der Württembergischen	Ancillary services undertaking as defined in Article 1(53) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35	GmbH & Co. KG	Non-mutual		
AT	5299006KHJ2ATJBTR632	LEI	G6 Zeta Errichtungs- und VerwertungsGmbH & Co OG	Other	GmbH & Co OG	Non-mutual		
DE	529900UL2X6BCXMAKF51	LEI	BWK Holding GmbH Unternehmensbeteiligungsgesellschaft	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	GmbH	Non-mutual		

Included in the

0.0 scope Method 1: Sectoral

rules

Inclusion in the scope of group Group solvency Criteria of influence supervision calculation % used for the establishment of Proportional share used for group Method used and under method 1, Date of decision if Art. 214 is applied consolidated accounts solvency calculation treatment of the undertaking % capital share Other criteria Level of influence YES/NO % voting rights C0180 C0190 C0200 C0210 C0220 C0230 C0240 C0250 C0260 Included in the scope Method 1: Sectoral 0.0 0.0 0.0 Dominant 0.0 rules Included in the scope 0.0 0.0 0.0 Dominant 0.0 Other method Included in the scope 0.0 0.0 0.0 Dominant 0.0 Other method Included in the 0.0 0.0 0.0 Dominant 0.0 Other method scope Included in the 0.0 Other method 0.0 0.0 0.0 Dominant scope Included in the 0.0 0.0 0.0 Dominant 0.0 Other method scope Included in the Method 1: Sectoral 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Dominant scope rules Included in the Method 1: Sectoral 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Dominant scope rules Included in the 0.0 0.0 0.0 Dominant 0.0 Other method Included in the 0.0 0.0 0.0 Dominant 0.0 Other method Method 1: Full consolidation Included in the scope 0.0 0.0 0.0 Dominant 0.0 Included in the 0.0 0.0 Dominant 0.0 Other method 0.0 scope

Significant

0.0

0.0

0.0

S.32.01.22 | Undertakings in the scope of the group (continuation)

Country	Identification code of the undertaking	Type of code of the ID of the undertakin g	Legal name of the undertaking	Type of undertaking	Legal form	Category (mutual/non- mutual)	Supervisory authority
C0010	C0020	C0030	C0040	C0050	C0060	C0070	C0080
DE	529900Y66NQNQ8TODP03	LEI	W&W brandpool GmbH	Credit institution, investment firm and financial institution	GmbH	Non-mutual	
DE	5299006674DHAPDFP336	LEI	treefin GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual	
DE	529900Y1LG0XGMMJBB84	LEI	Adam Riese GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual	
DE	5299002059VVQ9SLSK94	LEI	Rente.de AV GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual	
DE	529900F3A9NUNTKWAX88	LEI	Keleya Digital-Health Solutions GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual	
AT	529900LB58QH4Y9PMM57	LEI	SAMARIUM drei GmbH & Co OG	Other	GmbH & Co OG	Non-mutual	
DE	529900WPWEQL9KSE8Q16	LEI	V-Check GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual	
DE	529900YWZTBTAFZTR686	LEI	ver.di Service GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual	
DE	391200QGJR30S0R9Z162	LEI	V-Fonds GmbH	Other	GmbH	Non-mutual	
DE	529900VKI1GGXANN7C08	LEI	Württembergische Lebensversicherung AG	Life insurance undertaking	Aktiengesells chaft	Non-mutual	Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistu ngsaufsicht
DE	529900GJ0H3VGEOLVK85	LEI	Württembergische Krankenversicherung AG	Non-life insurance undertaking	Aktiengesells chaft	Non-mutual	Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistu ngsaufsicht
DE	5299003HYFC0PYBYQH77	LEI	Württembergische Versicherung AG	Non-life insurance undertaking	Aktiengesells chaft	Non-mutual	Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistu ngsaufsicht
DE	5299003H07ZT0Z5ZNN35	LEI	Wüstenrot & Württembergische AG	Reinsurance undertaking	Aktiengesells chaft	Non-mutual	Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistu ngsaufsicht
IE	529900XCXKLMM9NF7V28	LEI	W&W Europe Life Limited i.L.	Other	Limited	Non-mutual	

Method 1: Full

consolidation

Other method

Included in the

scope

0.0 Included in the scope

0.0

Inclusion in the scope of group Group solvency Criteria of influence supervision calculation % used for the establishment of Proportional share used for group Method used and under method 1, Date of decision if Art. 214 is applied consolidated accounts solvency calculation treatment of the undertaking % capital share Other criteria Level of influence YES/NO % voting rights C0190 C0200 C0210 C0220 C0230 C0240 C0250 C0260 C0180 Included in the scope Method 1: Sectoral 100.0 100.0 100.0 Dominant 100.0 rules Included in the scope 100.0 0.0 100.0 Dominant 0.0 Other method Included in the 100.0 100.0 100.0 Dominant 0.0 Other method scope Included in the 100.0 0.0 100.0 Dominant 0.0 Other method scope Included in the 0.0 22.0 0.0 22.0 Significant Other method scope Included in the 100.0 0.0 100.0 Dominant 0.0 Other method scope Included in the 0.0 Significant 0.0 Other method 15.0 15.0 scope Included in the Significant 0.0 Other method 50.0 50.0 0.0 scope Included in the 12.0 0.0 12.0 Significant 0.0 Other method Included in the scope Method 1: Full 100.0 94.9 100.0 94.9 Dominant consolidation Included in the scope Method 1: Full 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 Dominant consolidation 100.0 Included in the scope Method 1: Full 100.0 100.0 100.0 Dominant

Dominant

100.0

0.0

100.0

S.02.01.02 | **Balance sheet**

in € thousands

		Solvency II value
Assets		C0010
Intangible assets	R0030	-
Deferred tax assets	R0040	146,961
Pension benefit surplus	R0050	-
Property, plant and equipment held for own use	R0060	504,403
Investments (other than assets for index- or unit-linked contracts)	R0070	40,713,650
Property (other than for own use)	R0080	2,234,434
Holdings in related undertakings, including participations	R0090	2,173,964
Equities	R0100	383,360
Equities – listed	R0110	5,000
Equities – unlisted	R0120	378,360
Bonds	R0130	21,607,143
Government bonds	R0140	13,928,349
Corporate bonds	R0150	7,195,378
Structured notes	R0160	456,709
Collateralised securities	R0170	26,707
Collective investment undertakings	R0180	14,002,541
Derivatives	R0190	38,039
Deposits other than cash equivalents	R0200	274,168
Other investments	R0210	-
Assets for index- or unit-linked contracts	R0220	2,028,934
Loans and mortgages	R0230	1,650,525
Loans on policies	R0240	34,258
Loans and mortgages to individuals	R0250	1,354,398
Other loans and mortgages	R0260	261,869
Reinsurance recoverables from:	R0270	27,752
Non-life and health similar to non-life	R0280	158,118
Non-life excluding health	R0290	157,207
Health similar to non-life	R0300	912
Life and health similar to life, excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked	R0310	-130,356
Health similar to life	R0320	-140,114
Life excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked	R0330	9,757
Life index-linked and unit-linked	R0340	-10
Deposits to cedants	R0350	23,955
Insurance and intermediaries receivables	R0360	122,039
Reinsurance receivables	R0370	-
Receivables (trade, not insurance)	R0380	165,122
Own shares (held directly)	R0390	3,103
Amounts due in respect of own fund items or initial fund called up but not yet paid in	R0400	-
Cash and cash equivalents	R0410	192,063
Any other assets, not elsewhere shown	R0420	108,718
Total assets	R0500	45,687,224

S.02.01.02 | Balance sheet (continuation)

in € thousands

		Solvency II value
		Solvency II value
Liabilities		C0010
Technical provisions – non-life	R0510	1,206,343
Technical provisions – non-life (excluding health)	R0520	1,211,247
Technical provisions calculated as a whole	R0530	_
		4.047.400
Best estimate	R0540	1,017,198
Risk margin	R0550	194,050
Technical provisions – health (similar to non-life)	R0560	-4,904
Technical provisions calculated as a whole	R0570	-
Best estimate	R0580	-28,812
Risk margin	R0590	23,908
Technical provisions – life (excluding index-linked and unit-linked)	R0600	31,165,756
Technical provisions – health (similar to life)	R0610	1,489,592
Technical provisions calculated as a whole	R0620	-
Best estimate	R0630	588,475
Risk margin	R0640	901,117
Technical provisions – life (excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked)	R0650	29,676,163
Technical provisions calculated as a whole	R0660	-
Best estimate	R0670	29,672,951
Risk margin	R0680	3,212
Technical provisions – index-linked and unit-linked	R0690	1,821,024
Technical provisions calculated as a whole	R0700	-
Best estimate	R0710	1,698,704
Risk margin	R0720	122,319
Contingent liabilities	R0740	_
Provisions other than technical provisions	R0750	26,702
Pension benefit obligations	R0760	1,485,573
Deposits from reinsurers	R0770	103,000
Deferred tax liabilities	R0780	966,083
Derivatives	R0790	40,051
Debts owed to credit institutions	R0800	-
Financial liabilities other than debts owed to credit institutions	R0810	109,163
Insurance and intermediaries payables	R0820	208,256
Reinsurance payables	R0830	-
Payables (trade, not insurance)	R0840	397,713
Subordinated liabilities	R0850	294,954
Subordinated liabilities not in basic own funds	R0860	40,823
Subordinated liabilities in basic own funds	R0870	254,130
Any other liabilities, not elsewhere shown	R0880	1,406
Total liabilities	R0900	37,826,024
Excess of assets over liabilities	R1000	7,861,200

S.05.01.02 Premiums, claims and expenses by line of business

n € thousands								
		Line of bus	siness for: non-lit	fe insurance and i	reinsurance oblig	ations (direct bus	siness and accept	ed proportional reinsurance)
		Medical expense insurance	Income protection insurance	Workers' compensation insurance	Motor vehicle liability insurance	Other motor insurance	Marine, aviation and transport insurance	Fire and other damage to property insurance
		C0010	C0020	C0030	C0040	C0050	C0060	C0070
remiums written								
Gross - Direct business	R0110		147,606	_	479,679	371,627	24,038	629,790
Gross – Proportional reinsurance accepted	R0120	-	2	-	-	-	6	1,659
Gross – Non-proportional reinsurance accepted	R0130	\times			\times	\times	\times	\times
Reinsurers' share	R0140	-	-	-	-	434	107	71,238
Net	R0200	-	147,608	-	479,679	371,193	23,937	560,211
remiums earned								
Gross – Direct business	R0210	-	147,545	-	479,442	371,424	24,038	625,539
Gross – Proportional reinsurance accepted	R0220	-	5	-	-	-	6	1,540
Gross – Non-proportional reinsurance accepted	R0230	\times			\times	\times	\times	\times
Reinsurers' share	R0240	-	-	-	-	437	107	74,676
Net	R0300	-	147,550	-	479,442	370,987	23,937	552,403
laims incurred								
Gross – Direct business	R0310	-	52,792	-	314,965	222,097	14,981	298,989
Gross – Proportional reinsurance accepted	R0320	-1	-	-	-110	-	-221	-582
Gross – Non-proportional reinsurance accepted	R0330	\times						\times
Reinsurers' share	R0340	-	-	-	3,115	348	-23	40,586
Net	R0400	-1	52,792	-	311,741	221,749	14,783	257,822
hanges in other technical provisions								
Gross - Direct business	R0410	-	-122	-	2,274	1,520	688	1,612
Gross – Proportional reinsurance accepted	R0420	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Gross – Non-proportional reinsurance accepted	R0430	$\overline{}$			$\overline{}$	$\overline{}$	$\overline{}$	\times
Reinsurers' share	R0440	-						-
Net	R0500	-	-122	-	2,274	1,520	688	1,612
xpenses incurred	R0550	-	54,737	-	134,187	106,243	11,861	249,690
ther expenses	R1200	\geq						>
otal expenses	R1300							

proportional reinsurance) Line of business for: accepted non-proportional reinsurance Total						Line of business for: non-life insurance and reinsurance obligations (direct business and accepted proportional reinsurance)								
	Property	Marine, aviation, transport	Casualty	Health	Miscellaneous financial loss	Assistance	Legal expenses insurance	Credit and suretyship insurance	General liability insurance					
C0200	C0160	C0150	C0140	C0130	C0120	C0110	C0100	C0090	C0080					
2,051,158	<u> </u>				18,967	15,347	133,280	4,979	225,844					
2,417		\times	\times		7	-	=	-	743					
5	4	5	4	_										
110,445	25,534	249	2,632	148	7,380	-	342	-	2,381					
1,943,135	-25,530	-243	-2,636	-148	11,593	15,347	132,938	4,979	224,206					
2,043,584			><		18,837	14,660	132,505	3,870	225,725					
2,299					7	-	-	-	741					
5	4	5	4	-										
114,376	25,534	249	2,632	148	7,690		342		2,562					
1,931,512	-25,530	-243	-2,636	-148	11,153	14,660	132,163	3,870	223,904					
1,118,090	>				46,235	2,428	70,832	5,263	89,505					
-2,193		\times	\times	\times	-	-	-	-26	-1,254					
-6,692	121	-1,619	-5,203	9		\times	\times	\times						
74,887	7,346	1,444	7,954	110	13,763	-	125	-	120					
1,034,319	-7,225	-3,063	-13,156	-100	32,472	2,428	70,708	5,237	88,132					
6,725	$\overline{}$				162	4	-174	-37	807					
					-	-	-	-	-					
-	-	_	-	-		\rightarrow	\rightarrow		\times					
1,160	347	459	188	-	-22	-	-	-	188					
5,566	-347	-459	-188	-	184	4	-174	-37	620					
735,833	702	261	370	3	10,090	8,242	61,214	2,040	96,192					
-														
735,833														

S.05.01.02 Premiums, claims and expenses by line of business (continuation)

Line of business for: Life insurance obligations

		Health insurance	Insurance with profit participation	Index-linked and unit-linked insurance	Other life insurance
		C0210	C0220	C0230	C0240
Premiums written					
Gross	R1410	485,110	1,643,362	304,363	-
Reinsurers' share	R1420	27,970	4,295	-	-
Net	R1500	457,140	1,639,068	304,363	-
Premiums earned					
Gross	R1510	485,450	1,651,419	304,363	-
Reinsurers' share	R1520	27,512	4,326	-	-
Net	R1600	457,938	1,647,093	304,363	-
Claims incurred					
Gross	R1610	218,661	2,055,732	158,846	-
Reinsurers' share	R1620	31,797	-13,998	-	-
Net	R1700	186,864	2,069,730	158,846	-
Change in other technical provisions					
Gross	R1710	-207,808	-302,227	-104,049	-
Reinsurers' share	R1720	960	2,115	938	-
Net	R1800	-208,768	-304,341	-104,988	-
Expenses incurred	R1900	73,346	184,568	42,823	-
Other expenses	R2500		$\overline{}$		><
Total expenses	R2600				

Total	Life reinsurance obligations		ess for: Life insurance obligations	Line of business for: Life insurance		
	Life reinsurance	Health	Annuities stemming from non- life insurance contracts and relating to insurance obligations other than health insurance obligations	Annuities stemming from non- life insurance contracts and relating to health insurance obligations		
C0300	C0280	C0270	C0260	C0250		
2,437,374	4,539	-	-	-		
32,265	-	-	-	-		
2,405,109	4,539	-	-	-		
2,445,927	4,695	-	-	-		
31,838	-	-	-	-		
2,414,089	4,695	-	-	-		
2,474,426	9,437	-	11,987	19,764		
19,581	-	-	1,782	-		
2,454,844	9,437	-	10,205	19,764		
-609,684	4,400	-	-	-		
4,013	-	-	-	-		
-613,697	4,400	-	-	-		
301,059	321	-	-	-		
26,210						

S.22.01.22 Impact of long term guarantees and transitional measures

in € thousands						
		Amount with long- term guarantees and transitional measures	Impact of transitional on technical provisions	Impact of transitional on interest rate	Impact of volatility adjustment set to zero	Impact of matching adjustment set to zero
		C0010	C0030	C0050	C0070	C0090
Technical provisions	R0010	34,193,122	2,259,272	-	42,023	-
Basic own funds	R0020	5,028,302	-1,442,891	-	97,215	-
Eligible own funds to meet Solvency Capital Requirement	R0050	6,841,710	-1,442,891	_	97,215	-
Solvency Capital Requirement	R0090	2,938,371	-18,937	-	168,994	-

S.23.01.22 | Own funds

in € thousands						
		Total	Tier 1 – unrestricted	Tier 1 – restricted	Tier 2	Tier 3
		C0010	C0020	C0030	C0040	C0050
Basic own funds before deduction for participations in other financial sectors		><	\sim	\sim	\sim	
Ordinary share capital (gross of own shares)	R0010	493,334	493,334		-	
Non-available called but not paid in ordinary share capital at group level	R0020	-	-		-	
Share premium account related to ordinary share capital	R0030	994,742	994,742		-	
Initial funds, members' contributions or the equivalent basic own fund item for mutual and mutual-type undertakings	R0040	-	-		-	
Subordinated mutual member accounts	R0050	-	>	-	-	-
Non-available subordinated mutual member accounts at group level	R0060	-		-	-	-
Surplus funds	R0070	1,340,582	1,340,582			
Non-available surplus funds at group level	R0080	836,997	836,997			
Preference shares	R0090	-		-	-	-
Non-available preference shares at group level	R0100	-		-	-	-
Share premium account related to preference shares	R0110	-		-	-	-
Non-available share premium account related to preference shares at group level	R0120	-		-	-	-
Reconciliation reserve	R0130	4,968,512	4,968,512	><	><	><
Subordinated liabilities	R0140	254,130		-	254,130	-
Non-available subordinated liabilities at group level	R0150	254,130	> <	-	254,130	-
An amount equal to the value of net deferred tax assets	R0160	-		><		-
The amount equal to the value of net deferred tax assets not available at the group level	R0170	-		\rightarrow		-
Other own fund items approved by the supervisory authority as basic own funds not specified above	R0180	-	-	-	-	-
Non-available own funds related to other own funds items approved by supervisory authority	R0190	-	-	-	-	-
Minority interests (if not reported as part of a specific own fund item)	R0200	-	-	-	-	-
Non-available minority interests at group level	R0210	118,463	118,463	-	-	-
Own funds from the financial statements that should not be represented by the reconciliation reserve and do not meet the criteria to be classified as Solvency II own funds						
Own funds from the financial statements that should not be represented by the reconciliation reserve and do not meet the criteria to be classified as Solvency II own funds	R0220	-				
Deductions		><				
Deductions for participations in other financial undertakings, in- cluding non-regulated undertakings carrying out financial ac- tivities	R0230	1,813,408	1,813,408	-	-	
whereof deducted according to Art. 228 of Directive 2009/138/EC	R0240	-	-	-	-	
Deductions for participations where there is non-availability of information (Article 229)	R0250	-	-	-	-	-
Deduction for participations included by using D&A when a combination of methods is used	R0260	-	-	-	-	-
Total of non-available own fund items	R0270	1,209,591	955,460	-	254,130	-
Total deductions	R0280	3,022,999	2,768,868	_	254,130	
Total basic own funds after deductions	R0290	5,028,302	5,028,302	-	-	-

S.23.01.22 | Own funds (continuation)

in € thousands						
		Total	Tier 1 – unrestricted	Tier 1 – restricted	Tier 2	Tier 3
		C0010	C0020	C0030	C0040	C0050
Ancillary own funds		><	$\geq \leq$	$\geq \leq$	><	$\geq \leq$
Unpaid and uncalled ordinary share capital callable on demand	R0300	-	><	><	-	><
Unpaid and uncalled initial funds, members' contributions or the equivalent basic own fund item for mutual and mutual-type undertakings, callable on demand	R0310	-	\times	\times	-	
Unpaid and uncalled preference shares callable on demand	R0320	-	>	>	-	-
A legally binding commitment to subscribe and pay for subordinated liabilities on demand	R0330	-	\times	\times	-	-
Letters of credit and guarantees under Article 96(2) of Directive 2009/138/EC	R0340	-	><	><	-	><
Letters of credit and guarantees other than under Article 96(2) of Directive 2009/138/EC	R0350	-	\times	\times	-	-
Supplementary members calls under first subparagraph of Article 96(3) of Directive 2009/138/EC	R0360	-	\times	\times	-	
Supplementary members calls – other than under first subparagraph of Article 96(3) of Directive 2009/138/EC	R0370	-	\times	\times	-	-
Non-available ancillary own funds at group level	R0380	-	>	><	-	-
Other ancillary own funds	R0390	-	><	><	-	-
Total ancillary own funds	R0400	-	$>\!<$	> <	-	-
Own funds of other financial sectors		$>\!\!<$	$>\!<$	$>\!<$	><	> <
Credit institutions, investment firms, financial institutions, alternative investment fund managers, UCITS management companies — total	R0410	1,731,148	1,597,795	30,000	103,352	
Institution for occupational retirement provision	R0420	82,260	82,260	-	-	-
Non-regulated entities carrying out financial activities	R0430	-	-	-	-	>
Total own funds of other financial sectors	R0440	1,813,408	1,680,055	30,000	103,352	-
Own funds when using the D&A, exclusively or in combination of method 1		> <	> <	> <	><	> <
Own funds aggregated when using the D&A and combination of method	R0450	-	-	-	-	-
Own funds aggregated when using the D&A and combination of method net of IGT	R0460	-	-	-	-	-
		$>\!<$	><	><	><	
Total available own funds to meet the consolidated group SCR (excluding own funds from other financial sectors and from the undertakings included via D&A $)$	R0520	5,028,302	5,028,302	-	-	-
Total available own funds to meet the minimum consolidated group SCR	R0530	5,028,302	5,028,302	-	-	>
Total eligible own funds to meet the consolidated group SCR (excluding own funds from other financial sectors and from the undertakings included via D&A)	R0560	5,028,302	5,028,302	-	-	-
Total eligible own funds to meet the minimum consolidated group SCR	R0570	5,028,302	5,028,302	-	-	
Minimum consolidated group SCR	R0610	1,129,606	> <	> <	><	
Ratio of eligible own funds to minimum consolidated group SCR	R0650	445				
otal eligible own funds to meet the group SCR (including own funds from other inancial sectors and from the undertakings included via D&A)	R0660	6,841,710	6,708,357	30,000	103,352	-
Group SCR	R0680	2,938,371	><	><	><	><
Ratio of eligible own funds to group SCR including other financial sectors and the undertakings included via D&A	R0690	233	\rightarrow	\rightarrow	\rightarrow	\rightarrow

		C0060
Reconciliation reserve		
Excess of assets over liabilities	R0700	7,861,200
Own shares (held directly and indirectly)	R0710	3,103
Foreseeable dividends, distributions and charges	R0720	60,927
Other basic own fund items	R0730	2,828,659
Adjustment for restricted own fund items in respect of matching adjustment portfolios and ring-fenced funds	R0740	-
Other non-available own funds	R0750	-
Reconciliation reserve before deduction for participations in other financial sectors	R0760	4,968,512
Expected profits		
Expected profits included in future premiums (EPIFP) – life business	R0770	592,938
Expected profits included in future premiums (EPIFP) – non-life business	R0780	694,470
Total expected profits included in future premiums (EPIFP)	R0790	1,287,408

S.25.01.22 | Solvency Capital Requirement – for groups on standard formula

in € thousands

in € thousands				
		Gross Solvency Capital Requirement	USP	Simplifications
		C0110	C0090	C0120
Market risk	R0010	3,181,854		-
Counterparty default risk	R0020	141,302		
Life underwriting risk	R0030	1,459,837	-	-
Health underwriting risk	R0040	1,676,028	-	-
Non-life underwriting risk	R0050	892,850	-	-
Diversification	R0060	-2,444,039		
Intangible asset risk	R0070	-		
Basic Solvency Capital Requirement	R0100	4,907,830		
Calculation of Solvency Capital Requirement		C0100		
Operational risk	R0130	185,239		
Loss-absorbing capacity of technical provisions	R0140	-2,920,816		
Loss-absorbing capacity of deferred taxes	R0150	-329,673		
Capital requirement for business operated in accordance with Article 4 of Directive 2003/41/EC	R0160	-		
Solvency Capital Requirement excluding capital add-on	R0200	1,842,580		
Capital add-on already set	R0210	-		
Solvency Capital Requirement	R0220	-		
Other information on SCR		\sim		
Capital requirement for duration-based equity risk sub-module	R0400	-		
Total amount of notional Solvency Capital Requirement for remaining part	R0410	-		
Total amount of notional Solvency Capital Requirement for ring-fenced funds	R0420	-		
Total amount of notional Solvency Capital Requirement for matching adjustment portfolios	R0430	-		
Diversification effects due to RFF nSCR aggregation as set out in Article 304	R0440	-		
Minimum consolidated group Solvency Capital Requirement	R0470	1,129,606		
Information on other entities		\geq		
Capital requirement for other financial sectors (non-insurance capital requirements)	R0500	941,369		
Capital requirement for other financial sectors (non-insurance capital requirements) – credit institutions, investment firms and financial institutions, alternative investment funds managers, UCITS management companies	R0510	889,170		
Capital requirement for other financial sectors (non-insurance capital requirements) – institutions for occupational retirement provisions	R0520	52,199		
Capital requirement for other financial sectors (non-insurance capital requirements) – capital requirement for non-regulated entities carrying out financial activities	R0530	-		
Capital requirement for non-controlled participation requirements	R0540	-		
Capital requirement for residual undertakings	R0550	154,422		
Overall SCR		\sim		
SCR for undertakings included via D&A	R0560	-		
Solvency Capital Requirement	R0570	2,938,371		